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KEY RISKS AND CHALLENGES 

Following is a discussion of key risks and challenges facing management and the initiatives currently underway to manage such challenges. These 
matters involve risks that could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, liquidity or financial condition. 

Substantial Leverage, Uncertain Financial Markets and Liquidity Risk 

Our substantial leverage. resulting in large part from debt incurred to finance the Merger, requires significant cash flows to be dedicated to interest and 
principal payments and could adversely atTect our ability to raise additional capital to fund operations, limit our ability to rcact to changes in the economy, our 
industry or our business, and expose us to interest rate risk to the extent not hedged. Principal amounts of short-term borrowings and long-term debt, including 
amounts due currently, totaled S36.721 billion as of December 31, 2010. Taking into consideration interest-rate swap transactions. as of December 3 l, 2010 
approximately 87% of our total long-term debt portfolio is subject to fixed interest rates, at a weighted average interest rate of 8.9%. Interest payments on 
long-term debt in 2011 are expected to total approximately S2.750 billion, and principal payments are expected to total $651 million. 

While we believe our cash on hand and cash flow from operations combined with availability under existing credit facilities provide sufficient liquidity 
to fund current and projected expenses and capital requirements for 2011 (see "Financial Condition — Liquidity and (apital Resources section below). there 
can be no assurance that counterparties to our credit facility and hedging arrangements will perform as expected and meet their obligations to us. Failure of 
such counterpartics to meet their obligations or substantial changes in financial markets, the economy, regulatory requirements, our industry or our operations 
could result in constraint:, in our liquidity. While traditional counterparties with physical assets to hedge, as well as financial institutions and other parties, 
continue to participate in the markets. as a result of the financial crisis that arose in 2008. there has been a reduction of available counterparties for our 
hedging and trading activities, particularly for longer-dated transactions, which could impact our ability to hedge our commodity price and interest rate 
exposure to desired levels at reasonable costs. See discussion of credit risk in Item 7A, "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk," 
discussion of available liquidity and liquidity effects of the long-term hedging program in "Financial Condition — Liquidity and Capital Resources and 
discussion of potential impact of legislative rulemakings on the OTC derivatives market in "Significant Activities and Events — Financial Services Reform 
Legislation." 

In addition, as discussed above under "Significant Activities and Events — Natural Gas Prices and Long-Term Hedging Program," a continuation or 
worsening of low forward natural gas prices (and the related low wholesale electricity prices in ERCOT) could also limit our ability to hedge our wholesale 
electricity revenues at sufficient price levels to support our interest payments and debt maturities, result in further declines in the value of our baseload 
generation assets and adversely impact our efforts to refinance our substantial debt as discussed immediately below. 

The TCE1-1 Revolving Credit Facility matures in October 2013, and a substantial amount of our long-term debt matures in the period from 2014 through 
2017, We are focused on improving the balance sheet and expect to opportunistically look for ways to reduce the amount, and extend the maturity, of our 
outstanding debt Progress to date on this initiative includes the debt exchanges. issuances and repurchases completed in 2010 and 2009 discussed above 
under "Significant Activities and Events — Liability Management Program" and the August 2009 amendment to the Credit Agreement governing the TCEH 
Senior Secured Facilities that provided additional flexibility in restructuring debt obligations. See Note l 1 to Financial Statements for additional discussion of 
these transactions. 

In addition, because our operations are capital intensive. we expect to rely over the long-term upon access to financial markets as a significant source of 
liquidity for capital requirements not satisfied by cash-on-hand, operating cash flows or our available credit facilities. Our ability to economically access the 
capital or credit markets could be restricted at a time when we would like, or need, to access those markets. I.ack of such access could have an impact on our 
flexibility to react to changing economic and business conditions. 
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Natural Gas Prke and Market Heat-Rate Exposure 

Wholesale electricity prices in the ERCOT market generally move with the price of natural gas because marginal demand for electricity supply is 
generally met with natural gas-fueled generation facilities. Historically the price of natural gas has fluctuated due to changes in industrial demand, supply 

availability, weather effects and other economic and market factors and such prices have been very volatile in recent years. Since 2005, forward natural gas 
prices ranged from above $13 per MM13tu to below $4 per MMBtu. More recent declines in forward natural gas prices reflect discovery and increased drilling 

of shale gas deposits combined with lingering demand weakness associated with the economic recession. The wholesale market price of electricity divided by 
the market price of natural gas represents the market heat rate. Market heat rate movements also affect wholesale electricity prices. Market heat rate can be 
affected by a number of factors including the efficiency of the marginal supplier (generally natural ans-fueled generation facilities) in generating electricity. 

In contrast to our natural gas-fueled generation facilities, changes in natural gas prices have no significant effect on the cost of generating electricity 
from our nuclear and lignite/coal-fueled facilities. All other factors being equal, these baseload generation assets, which provided the substantial majority of 

supply volumes in 2010, increase or decrease in value as natural gas prices and market heat rates rise or fall, respectively, because of the effect on wholesale 
electricity prices in ERCOT. 

With the exposure to variability of natural gas prices, retail sales price management and hefting activities iue critical to the profitability of the business 
and maintaining consistent cash flow levels. 

Our approach to managing electricity price risk focuses on the following: 

• employing disciplined hedging and risk management strategies through physical and financial energy-related (electricity and natural gas) 
contracts intcnded to parnally hedge gross margins; 

• continuing focus on cost management to better withstand gross margin volatility: 

• following a retail pricing strategy that appropriately reflects the magnitude and costs of commodity price and liquidity risk, and 

• improving retail customer service to attract and retain high-value customers. 

As discussed above in "Significant Activities and Events," we have implemented a long-term hedging program to mitigate the risk of lower wholesale 
electricity prices due to declines in natural gas prices. 

The following sensitivity table provides estimates of the potential impact (in $ millions) of movements in natural gas and certain other commodity 

prices and market heat rates on realized prc-tax earnings for the periods presented. The estimates related to price sensitivity arc based on TCEH's unhedged 
position and forward prices as of December 31. 2010, which for natural gas reflects estimates of electricity generation less amounts hedged through the long-
term natural gas hedging program and amounts under existing wholesale and retail sales contracts. On a rolling twelve-month basis, the substantial majority of 
retail sales under month-to-month anangements are deemed to be under contract. 

Balance 201110 2012 2013 2014 

_ Si .00/MMBIu change in gas price (b) -s $ 	-80 $ 	-305 $ 	-490 
0.1/MMI3tu/MW11 change in market heat rate (c) -4 $ 	-32 $ 	-44 $ 	-46 
$1.00/gallon change in diesel fuel price $ 	-1 $ 	248 $ 	-40 

(a) Balance of 2011 is from February I, 2011 through December 31, 2011 
(b) Assumes conversion of electricity positions based on an approximate 8.0 market heat rate with natural gas being on the margin 75°.4 to 90°4 of the time 

(i.e., when coal is forecast to be on the margin. no na(ural gas position is assumed to be generated). 

(c) Based on Houston Ship Channel natural gas prices as of December 31. 2010. 
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Our market heat ratc exposure is impacted by changes in the mix of generation assets resulting from generation capacity changes such as additions and 
retirements of generation facilities. increased wind generation capacity could result in lower market heat rates. We expect that decreases in market heat rates 
would decrease the value of our generation assets because lower market heat rates generally result in lower wholesale electricity prices, and vice versa. We 
mitigate market heat rate risk through retail and wholesale electricity sales contracts and shorter-term market heat rate hedging transactions. We evaluate 
opportunities to mitigate market heat rate risk over extended periods through longer-term electricity sales contracts where practical considering pricing. credit, 
liquidity and related factors. 

On an ongoing basis, we will continue monitoring our overall commodity risks and seek to balance our portfolio based on our desired level of exposure 
to natural gas prices and market heat rates and potential changes to our operational forecasts of overall generation and consumption (which is also subject to 
volatility resulting from customer chum. weather, economic and other factors) in our native and growth business. Portfolio balancing may include the 
execution of incremental transactions. including heat rate hedges. the unwinding of existing transactions and the substitution of natural gas hedges with 
commitments for the sale of electricity at fixed prices. As a result, commodity price exposures and their effect on earnings could materially change from time 
to time. 

Competitive Retail Markets ond Customer Retention 

Competitive retail activity in Texas has resulted in retail customer churn. Our total retail customer counts rose 2% in 2008 but declined 3% in 2009 and 
6% in 2010. Based upon 2010 results discussed below in 'Results of Operations — Competitive Electric Segment," a 1% decline in residential customers 
would result in a decline in annual revenues of approximately 540 million. In responding to the competitive landscape in the ERCOT marketplace, we are 
focusing on the following key initiatives: 

. fvtaintaining competitive pricing initiatives as evidenced by price reductions on most residential service plans; 

• Profitably growing the retail customer base by actively competing for new and existing customers in areas in Texas open to competition. The 
customer retention strateey remains focused on continuing to implement initiatives to deliver world-class customer service and improve thc 
overall customer experience, 

• Establishing TXU Energy as the most innovative retailer in the Texas market by continuing to develop tailored pmduct offerings to meet 
customer needs. TXU Energy plans to invest $100 million over the five-year period beginning in 2008 (including S39 million invested through 
2010) in retail initiatives aimed at helping consumers conserve energy and other demand-side management initiatives that are intended to 
moderate consumption and reduce peak demand for electricity, and 

• Focusing business market initiatives largely on programs targeted to retain the existing highest-value customers and to recapture customers who 
have switched REPS. initiatives include maintaining and continuously refining a disciplined contracting and pricing approach and economic 
segmentation of the business market to enhance targeted sales and marketing efforts and to more effectively deploy the direct-sales force. 
Tactical programs put into place include improved customer service. aided hy a new cus(omer management system implemented in 2009. new 
product price/service offerings and a multichannel approach for the small business market. 

Volatile Energy Prices and Regulatory Risk 

Natural gas prices rose to unprecedented levels in the latter part of 2005. reflecting a world-wide increase in energy prices compounded by hurricane-
related infrastructure damage. The related rise in electricity prices elevated public awareness of enerp costs and dampened customer demand. Natural gas 
prices remain subject to events that create price volatility, and while not reaching 2005 levels. forNard natural gas prices rose substantially in 2007 and part of 
2008 before falling in the second half of 2008 through most of 2010. Sustained high energy prices and/or ongoing price volatility also creates a risk for 
regulatory and/or legislative intervention with the mechanisms that govem the competitive wholesale and retail markets in ERCOT We believe that 
competitive markets result in a broad range of innovative pricing and service alternatives to consumers and ultimately the most efficient use of resources and 
that regulatory entities should continue to take actions that encourage competition in the industry. Regulatory and/or legislative intervention could materially 
affect the competitive electricity industry in ERCOT, including disrupting the relationship between natural gas prices and electricity prices, which could 
materially impact the results of our long-term hedging program. tAlsu see "Regulatory Matters — Sunset Review.") We continue to closely monitor any 
potential legislative and regulatory changes and work with legislators and regulators, providing them information on the market and related matters. 
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Financial Services Reform Legislation 

In July 2010. financial reform legislation known as the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the Financial Reform Act) wa.s 
enacted. The primary purposes of the Financial Reform Act arc. among other things, to address systemic risk in the financial system, to establish a Bureau of 
Consumer Financial Protection with broad powers to enforce consumer protection laws and promulaate rules against unfair. deceptive or abusive praefices; to 
enhance regulation of the derivatives markets, including the requirement for central clearing of over-the-counter derivative instruments and additional capital 
and margin requirements for certain derivative market participants; and to implement a number of new corporate governance requirements for companies with' 
listed or, in some cases, publicly-traded securities. While the legislation is broad and detailed, substantial portions of the legislation are currently tinder 
rulemakings by federal governmental agencies to implement the standards set out in the legislation and adopt new standards. As a result, the full scope and 
effect of the legislation will likely not be known for several years 

Title VII of the Financial Reform Act provides for the regulation of the over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives market. The Financial Reform Act generally 
requires OTC derivatives (including the types of asset-backed OTC derivatives that we use to hedge risks associated with commodit) and interest rate 
exposure) to be cleared by a derivatives clearing organization. However, entities arc exempt from these clearing requirements if they (i) are not."Swap 
Dealers" or "Major Swap Participants" as will be defined in the rulernakings and (ii) use the swaps to hedge or mitigate commercial risk. The proposed 
definition of Swap Dealer is broad and will. as drafted, include many end Users. We are evaluating whether or not the type of asset-backed OTC derivatives 
that we use to hedge commodity and interest rate risk is exempt from the clearing requirements. Existing swaps are grandfathered from the clearing 
requirements. The legislation mandates significant reporting and compliance requirements for any entity that is determined to be a Swap Dealer or Major 
Swap Participant. 

The Financial Reform Act also requires the posting of cash collateral for uncleared swaps. Because these cash collateral requirements arc unblear as to 
whether an end-user or its counterparty (e g., swap dealer) is required to post cash collateral, there is a risk that the cash collateral requirement could be used 
to effectively negate the end-user clearing exemption. However, the legislative history of the Financial Reform Act suggests that it was not Congress intent to 
require end-users to post cash collateral with respect to swaps. If we were required to post cash collateral on our swap transactions with swap dealers, our 
liquidity would likely be materially impacted, and our ability to enter into OTC derivatives to hedge our commodity and intercst rate risks would be 
significantly limited. 

We cannot predict the outcome of the rulemakings to implement the OTC derivative market provisions of the Financial Reform Act. These rulemakings 
could negatively affect our ability to hedge our commodity and interest rate risks. Accordingly, we continue to closely monitor the rulernakings and any other 
potential legislative and regulatory changes and work with regulators and legislators, providing them information on our operations, the types of transactions 
in which we engage, our concerns regarding potential regulatory impacts, market characteristics and related matters. 

New nnd Changing Environmental Regulations 

We are subject to variuus environmental laws and regulations related to SO2, NO;and mercury as well as other emissions that impact air and water 
quality. We believe we arc in compliance with all current laws and regulations, but regulatory authorities continue to evaluate existine requirements and 
consider proposals for changes. If we make any major modifications to our power generation facilities, we may be required to install the best available control 
technology or to achieVe the lowest achievable entission rates as such terms are defined under the new source review provisions of the Clean Air Act. Any 
such modifications would likely result in substantial additional capital expenditures. (See Note 12 to Financial Statements for discussion of "Litigation 
Related to Generation Facilities," "Regulatory Reviews" and "Environmental Con(ingencies.") 
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We also continue to closely monitor any potential legislative, regulatory and judicial changes pertaining to global climate change. In view of the fact 
that a substantial portion of our generation portfolio consists of lignite/coal-fueled generation facilities, our results of operations, liquidity or financial 
condidon could be materially adversely affected by the enactment of any legislation, regulation or judicial action that mandates a reduction in GHG emissions 
or that imposes financial penalties, costs or taxes on entities that produce GHG emissions, or that establishes federal renewable energy portfolio standards. For 
example, federal. state or regional legislation or regulation addressing global climate change could result in us either incurring increased material costs to 
reduce our GHG emissions or to procure ernission allowances or credits to comply with a mandatory cap-and-trade emissions reduction program. See further 
discussion under Items 1 and 2, "Business and Properties — Environmental Regulations and Related Considerations." 

Exposures Related to Nuclear Asset Outages 

Our nuclear assets are comprised of two generation units at Comanche Peak, each with an installed nameplate capacity of 1,150 MW. The Comanche 
Peak plant represents approximately 15% of our total generation capacity. The nuclear generation units represent our lowest marginal cost source of 
electricity. Assuming both nuclear generation units experienced an outage, the unfavorable impact to pretax earnings is estimated (based upon market prices 
as of December 31, 2010) to be approximately $2 million per day before consideration of any insurance proceeds Also see discussion of nuclear facilities 
insurance in Nme 12 to Financial Statements. 

The inherent complexities and related regulations associated with operating nuclear generation facilities result in environmental, regulatory and 
financial risks The operation of nuclear generation facilities is complex and subject to continuing review and regulation hy the NRC, covering, arnong other 
things, operations, maintenance, emergency planning, security, and environmental and safety protection. The NRC may implement changes in regulations that 
result in increased capital or operating costs, and it may require extended outages, modify, suspend or revoke operating licenses and impose fines for failure to 
comply with its existing regulations and the provisions of the Atomic Energy Act. In addition. an  unplanned outage at another nuclear generation facility 
could result in the NRC taking action to shut down the Cornanche Peak plant as a precautionary measure. 

We participate in industry groups and with regulators to remain current on the latest developments in nuclear safety, operation and maintenance and on 
emerging threats and niitigating techniques. These groups include, but are not limited to, the NRC and the Institute of Nuclear Power Operations (INK)). We 
also apply the knowledge gained by continuing to invest in technology. processes and services to improve our operations and detect, mitigate and protect our 
nuclear generation assets. The Comanche Peak plant has not experienced an extended unplanned outage. and management continues to focus on the safe, 
reliable and efficient operations at the plant 

Oncor's Ring-Fencing and Credit Risk 

Our investment in Oncor, which represents approximately 30% of its membership interests, is a significant value driver of our overall business. Oncor's 
access to capital markets and cost of debt could be directly affected by its credit ratings. Any adverse action with respect to Oncor's credit ratings would 
generally cause borrowing costs to increase and the potential pool of investors and funding sources to decrease. Oncor's credit ratings are currently 
substantially highcr than those of the Texas Holdings Group. If credit rating agencies were to change their views of Oncor's independence from any member 
of the Texas Holdings Group, Oncor's credit ratings would likely decline. This risk is substantially mitigated by the ring-fencing measures as described in 
Note 1 to Financial Statements. 
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Cyber Security and Infrastructure Protection Risk 

A breach of cyber/data secbrity measures that impairs our information technology infrastructure could disrupt normal business operations and affect our 

ability to control our generation and transmission assets, access retail customer information and limit communication svith third parties. Any loss of 
confidential or proprietary data through a breach could materially and adversely affect our reputation, expose the company to legal claims or impair our ability 
to execute on business strateaies. 

We participate in industry groups and with regulators to remain current on emerging threats and mitigating techniques. These groups include, hut are 
not limited to: the US Cyber Emergency Response Team, the National Electric Sector Cyber Security Organization, the NRC and NERC. We also apply the 
knowledge gained by continuing to invest in technology, processes and services to detect, mitigate and protect our cyber assets. These investments include 
upgrades to network architecture, regular intrusion detection monitoring and eompliance with emerging industry regulation. 

APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Our significant accounting policies arc discussed in Note 1 to Financial Statements. We follow accounting principles generally accepted in the I js. 
Application of these accounting policies in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
about future events that affect the reporting of assets and liabilities at the balance sheet dates and revenues and expenses during the periods covered. The' 
following is a summary of certain critical accounting policies that are impacted by judgments and uncertainties and under which different amounts might be 
reported using different assumptions or estimation methodologies. 

Purchase Accounting 

In 2007, the Merger was accounted for under purchase accounting. whereby the purchase price of the transaction svas allocated to our identifiable assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed based upon their fair values. The estimates of the fair values recorded were.determined based on the principles in accounting 
standards related to the determination uf fair value (see Note 15 to Financial Statements) and reflect significant assumptions and judgments. Material 
valuation inputs for long-lived assets and liabilities included forward electricity and natural gas price curves and market heat rates, discount rates, 
nonperformance risk adjustments related to liabilities, retail customer attrition rates, generation plant operating and construction costs and asset lives. The 
valuations reflected considerations unique to the competitive wholesale power market in ERCOT as well as our assets. For example, the valuation of the 
baseload generation facilities considered our lignite fuel reserves and mining capabilities. 

The results of the purchase price allocation included an increase in the total carrying value of our baseload generation plants and the recording of 
intangible assets related to the retail customer base. the TXU Energy trade name and emission credits. Further, commodity and other contracts not already 
subject to fair value accounting were valued, and amounts representing favorable or unfavorable contracts (versus market conditions as of the date of the 
Merger) were recorded as intangible assets or liabilities, respectively. Management believes all material intangible assets were identified. See Note 4 to 
Financial Statements for details of the intangible assets recorded. 

With respect to Oncor, the realization of its assets and settlement of its liabilities are largely subject to cost-based regulatory rate-setting processes. 
Accordingly, the historical carrying values of a majority of Oncor's assets and liabilities were deemed to represent fair values. See discussion in Note 24 to 
Financial Statements regarding adjustments to the canying values of Oncor's regulatory asset and related long-term debt. 
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The excess of the purchase price.over the estimated fair values of the net assets acquired was recorded as goodwill. The goodwill amount recorded upon 
finalization of purchase accounting totaled $23.2 billion. Management believes the drivers of the goodwill amount included the incremental value of the future 
cash flow potential of the baseload generation facilities, including facilities under construction. over the values assigned to those assets under purchase 
accounting rules, considering the market-pricing mechanisms and growth potential in the ERCOT market, as well as the value derived from the scale of the 
retail business. Management also believes that the goodwill reflected the value of the relatively stable, long-lived cash flows of the regulated business, 
considering the constnictive regulatory environment and market growth potential. In accordance with accounting guidance related to goodwill and other 
intangible assets, goodwill is not amortized to net income, but is required to be tested for impairment at least annually. This guidance requires that goodwill be 
assigned to "reporting units; which management has determined to be the Competitive Electric segment and the Regulated Delivery segment, which are 
almost entirely comprised of TCEH and Oncor, respectively. The assignment of goodwill was based on the relative estimated enterprise values of the 
operations as of the date of the Merger. Goodwill amounts assigned totaled 518.3 billion to the Competitive Electric segment and $4.9 billion to the Regulated 
Delivery segment. None of this goodwill balance is being deducted for tax purposes. 

In the third quarter 2010, we recorded a goodwill impairment charge related to the Competitive Electric segment totaling 54.1 billion. In the first 
quarter 2009 and fourth quarter 2008, we recorded aoodwill impairment charges totaling S8.950 billion. of which S8.070 billion related to the Competitive 
Electric segrnent. The $90 million charge in the first quarter 2009 resulted frnm the completion of thc previously estimated fair value calculations supporting 
the initial 58.860 billion goodwill impairment charge that was recorded in the fourth quarter 2008. See discussion immediately below under "Impairment of 
Goodwill and Other Long-Lived Assets." 

Impairment of Goodwill and Other Long-Lived Assets 

e evaluate long-lived assets (including intangible assets with finite lives) for impairment, in accordance with accounting standards related to 
impairment or disposal of long-lived assets, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. One of 
those indications is a current expectation that "more likely than not" a long-lived asset will be sold or othenvise disposed of significantly before the end of its 
previously estimated useful life (as was the case for the natural gas-fueled generation assets in 2008 discussed below). For our baseload generation assets, 
another possible indication would be an expected long-term decline in natural gas prices and/or market heat rates. We evaluate investments in unconsolidated 
subsidiaries for impairment when factors indicate that a decrease in the value of the investment has occurred that is not temporary. Indications of a loss in 
value might include a series of operating losses of the investee or a fair value of the investment that is less than its carrying amount. The determination of the 
existence of these and other indications of impairment involves judgments that are subjective in nature and may require the use of estimates in forecasting 
future results and cash flows related to an asset, group of assets or investment in unconsolidated subsidiary. Further, the unique nature of our property, plant 
and equipment, which includes a fleet of generation assets with a diverse fuel mix and individual plants that have varying production or output rates, requires 
the use of significant judgments in determining the existence of impairment indications and the grouping of assets for impairment testing. 

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are required to be tested for impairrnent at least annually (we have selected December I ) or 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate an impairment may exist, such as the possible impairments to long-livcd assets discussed above. As 
required by accounting guidance related to goodwill and other intangible assets, we have allocated goodwill to our reporting units, which are our two 
segments: Competitive Electric and Regulated Delivery. and goodwill tmpairment testing is performed at the reporting unit level. (See Notes I and 3 to 
Financial Statements for discussion of the deconsolidation of Oncor Holdings as ofJanuary I. 2010. which resulted in a reduction in reported goodwill for the 
amount related to the Regulated Delivery segment, and sce above for discussion of impairment testing for equity-method investments such as Oncor 
Holdings.) Under this goodwill impairment analysis, if at the assessment date, a reporting unit's carrying value exceeds its estimated fair value (enterprise 
value), the estimated enterprise value of the reporting unit is compared to the estimated fair values of the reporting unit's operating assets (including 
identifiable intangible assets) and liabilities at the assessment date. and the resultant implied goodwill amount is then compared to the recorded goodwill 
amount. Any excess of the recorded goodwill amount over the implied goodwill amount is written off as an impairment charge. 
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The determination of enterprise value involves a number of assuniptions and estimates. We use a combination of three fair value inputs to estimate 
enterprise values of our reporting units: internal discounted cash flow analyses (income approach), comparable company values and any recent pending andlor 
completed relevant transactions. The income approach involves estimates of future performance that reflect assumptions regarding, among other things, 

forward natural gas and electricity prices, market heat rates, generation plant performance and retail sales volume trends. Another key variable in the income 
approach is the discount rate, or weighted average cost of capital. The determination of the discount rate takes into consideration the capital structure, debt 
ratings and current debt yields of comparable companies as well as an estimate of return on equity that reflects historical market returns and current market 
volatility for the industry. Enterprise value estimates based on comparable company values involve using trading multiples of EBITDA of those selected 
conipanies to derive appropriate multiples to apply to the EB1TDA of the reporting units. This approach requires an estimate, using historical acquisition data. 

of an appropriate control premium to apply to the reporting unit values calculated from such multiples. Critical judgments include the selection of comparable 
companies anti the weighting of the three value inputs in developing the best estimate of enterprise value. 

The 2010 annual impairment testing performed as of December 1, 2010 for goodwill and intangible Assets with indefinite useful lives in accordance 
with accounting guidance resulted in no impairment. 'Ilse goodwill testing deterniined that the carrying value of the Competitive Electric segment exceeded its 
estimated fair value (enterprise value). so the estimated enterprise value of the segment was compared to the estimated fair values of its operating assets and 
liabilities. This additional testing indicated that the recorded goodwill amount did not exceed the estimated implied goodwill amount, and thus no additional 

goodwill impairment was indicated beyond the charge recorded in the third quarter 2010 as discussed immediately below. Key variables in the tests included 
forward natural gas prices, electricity prices, market heat rates and discount rates, assumptions regarding each of which could have a significant effect on 
valuations. Because of the volatility of these factors, we cannot predict the likelihood of any future impairment. 

See Note 4 to Financial Staternent's for a discussion of the goodwill impairment charges of $4.1 billion recorded in 2010 and $8.950 billion recorded 
largely in 2008. The total of $13.050. billion in impairment charges represented almost 60°O of the goodwill balance resulting from purchase accounting for 
the Merger and reflected a decline of approximately 20% in the estimated enterprise value as of December I, 2010 from the indicated value at the October 
2007 Merger date. The impairment in 2010 reflected the estimated effect of lower wholesale power prices on the enterprise value of the Competitive Electric 
segment, driven by the sustained decline in forward natural gas prices. The impairment in 2008 primarily-arose from the dislocation in the capital markets that 
increased interest rate spreads and the resulting discount rates used in estimating fair values and the effect of declines in market values of debt and equity 
securities of comparable companies in the second half of 2008. Also see Note 4 to Financial Statements for discussion of the impairment charge of $481 
million ($310 million after-tax) related to the trade name intangible asset recorded in the fourth.quarter 2008 The estimated fair value of this intangible asset 
is based on an assumed royalty methodology. Impairment charges totaling $501 million in 2008 related to environmental allowances and credits arc also 

I discussed in Note 4 to Financial Statements. 

In 2008, we recorded an impairment charge of $229 million ($147 million after-tax) related to our natural gas-fueled generation facilities. The natural 

gas-fueled generation units are generally operated to meet peak demands for electricity, and the facilities were tested for impairment as an asset group. See 
Note 5 to Financial Statements for a discussion of the impairment. The estimated impairment was based on numerous judgments including forecasted 
production, forward prices of natural gas and electricity, overall generation availability in ERCOT and ERCOT grid congestion. See "Business — Significant 
Activities and Events" for discussion of natural gas-fueled units mothballed (idled) or retired in 2009 consistent with the factors that resulted in the 
impairment. 

Derivative Instruments ond Mark-to-Market Accounting 

We enter into contracts for the purchase nnd sale of energy-related commodities, and also enter into other derivative instruments such as options, swaps, 
futures and forwards primarily to manage commodity price and interest rate risks. Under accounting standards related to derivative instruments and hedging 
activities, these instruments are iubject to mark-to-market accounting, and the determination of market values for these instruments is based on numerous 

assumptions and estimation techniques. 
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Mark-to-market accounting recognizes changes in the fair value of derivative instruments in the financial s(atements as market prices change. Such 
changes in fair value are accounted for as unrealized mark-to-market gains and losses in net income with an offset to derivative assets and liabilities The 
availability of quoted market pnces in energy markets is dependent on the type of commodity (e.g., natural gas. electricity, etc.). time period specified and 
delivery point. In computing fair value for derivatives, each forward pricing curve is separated into liquid and illiquid periods. The liquid period varies by 
delivery point and commodity. Generally, the liquid period is supported by exchange markets. broker quotes and frequent trading activity. For illiquid periods, 
fair value is estimated based on forward price curves developed using modeling techniques that take into account available market information and other 
inputs that might not be readily observable in the market. We estimate fair value as described in Note 15 to Financial Statements and discussed under "Fair 

Value Measurements" below. 

Accounting standards related to derivative instruments and hedging activities allow for "normal" purchase or sale elections and hedge accounting 
designations at the inception of the contract, which generally eliminate or defer the requirement for mark-to-market recognition in net income and thus reduce 
the volatility of net income that can result from fluctuations in fair values. "Normal" purchases anti sales arc contracts that provide for physical delivery of 
quantities expected to be used or sold over a reasonable period in the normal course of business and arc not subject to mark-to-market accounting if the 
election as normal is made. Hedge accounting designations are rnade with the intent to match the accounting recognition of the contract's financial 
performance to that (lithe transaction the contract is intended to hedge. 

tinder hedge accounting, changes in fair value of instniments designated as cash flow hedges are recorded in other comprehensive income with an 
offset to derivative assets and liabilities to the extent the change in value is effective: that is, it mirrors the offsetting change in finr value of the forecasted 
hedged transaction. Changes in value that represent ineffectiveness of the hedge are recognized in net income immediately, and the etTective portion of 
changes in fair value initially recorded in other comprehensive income are recognized in net incoine in the period that the hedged transactions are recognized. 
Although as of December 31, 2010, we do not have any derivatives designated as cash Ilow or fair value hedges. we continually assess potential hedge 
elections and could designate positions as cash flow hedges in the future. In March 2007, the instruments making up a significant portion of the long-term 
hedging program that were previously designated as cash flow hedges were dedesignated as allowed under accounting standards related to derivative 
instruments and hedging activities, and subsequent changes in their fair value are being marked-tn-market in net income. In addition, in August 2008, interest 
rate swap transactions in effect at that nine were dedesignated as cash tlow hedges in accordance with accounting standards, and subsequent changes in their 
fair value are being marked-to-market in net income. See further discussion of the long-term hedging program and interest rate swap transactions under 

"Business — Significant Activities and Events." 
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The followitia tables provide the effects on both net income and other comprehensive income of mark-to-market accounting for those derivative 

instruments that we have determined to be subject to fair value measurement under accounting standards related to derivative instruments and hedging 
activities. 

Arnounts recognized in net income (loss) (after-tax): 

Year Ended December 31. 

2010 2009 2008 

Unrealized net gains on positions !narked-to-market in net income (a) $1,257 $1,573 $ 518 
Unrealized net (gains) losses representing reversals of previously recognized fair values of positions settled in the period (a) (607) (333) , 	25 
Unrealized ineffectiveness net losses on positions accounted for as cash flow hedges — — (3) , 
Reversals of previously recognized unrealized net losses related to cash flow hedge positions settled in the period 1 i — 	• 

Total 	 • $ 	651 $1 241 $ 540 

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (after-tax): 

Net losses in fair value of positions accounted for as cash flow hedges $ 	$ 	(20) $(183) 
Net losses on cash flow hedge positions recognized in net income to offset hedged transactions 59 	130 122 

Total $ 	59 $ 	110 

(a) 	Amounts for 2010, 2009 and 2008 include 5785 million, S788 million and $1.503 billion in net after-tax gains related to commodity positions, 
respectively, and $135 million in net after-tax losses, $452 million in net after-tax gains and $960 million in net after-tax losses related to interest rate 
swaps, respectively. 

The efl'ect of mark-t-market and hedge accounting for derivatives on the balance sheet is as follows: 

December 31, 

2010 2009 

Commodity contract assets $ 	4,705 $ 	3.860 
Commodity contract liabilities $ 	(1,608) $ 	(2,146) 
Interest rate swap assets $ • 	98 $ 	64 
Interest rate swap liabilities (1,544) $ 	(1,306) 
Net accumulated other comprehensive loss included in shareholders equity (amounts after tax) $ 	(69) $ 	(128) 

We report derivative assets and liabilities in the balance sheet without taking into consideration netting arrangements we have with counterparties. 
Margin deposits that contractually offset these assets and liabilities are reported separately in the balance sheet. See Note 15 to Financial Statements. 
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Fair Value Measurements 

We determine value under the fair value hierarchy established in accounting standards. We utilize several valuation techniques to measure the fair value 
of assets and liabilities, relying primarily on the market approach of using prices and other market information for identical and/or comparable assets and 
liabilities for those items that are measured on a recurring basis. These techniques include, but are not limited to, the use of broker quotes and statistical 
relationships between different price curves and are intended to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. In 
applying the market approach, we use a mid-market valuation convention (the mid-point between bid and ask prices) as a practical expedient. 

Under the fair value hierarchy. Level I and I.evel 2 valuations generally apply to our commodity-reluted contracts for natural gas and electricity 
derivative instruments entered into for hedging purposes, securities associated with the nuclear decommissioning trust, and interest rate swaps intended to fix 
and/or lower interest payments on long-term debt. Level 1 valuations use quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that arc accessible at 
the measurement date. Level 2 valuations are based on evaluated prices that reflect observable market information, such as actual trade information of similar 
securities, adjusted for observable differences. Level 2 inputs include: 

• quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 

• quoted priccs for identical or siinilar assets or liabilities in rnarkets that are not active: 

• inputs other than quoted prices that arc observable for the asset or liability such as interest rates and yield curves observable at commonly quo(ed 
intervals, and 

• inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means. 

Examples of Level 2 valuation inputs utilized include over-the-counter broker quotes and quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities that are 
corroborated by correlation or through statistical relationships between different price curves. For example, certain physical power derivatives are executed 
for a particular loca(ion at specific time periods that might not have active markets; however, an active market might exist for such derivatives for a different 
time period at the same location. We utilize correlation techniques to compare prices for inputs at both time periods to provide a basis to value the non-active 
derivative. (See Note 15 to Financial Statements for additional discussion of how broker quotes are utilized.) 

Level 3 valuations generally apply to oar more complex long-term power purchases and sales agreements, including longer-term wind and other power 
purchase and sales contracts and certain natural gas positions (collars) in the long-term hedging program. Level 3 valuations use largely unobservable inputs, 
with little or no supporting market activity, and assets and liabilities are classified as Level 3 if such inputs are significant to the fair value determination We 
use the most meaningful information available from the market, combined with our own internally developed valuation methodologies, to develop our best 
estimate of fair value. The determination of fair value for Level 3 assets and liabilities requires significant ntanagement judgment and estimation. 

Valuations of Level 3 assets and liabilities are sensitive to the assumptions used for the significant inputs. Where market data is available, the inputs 
used for valuation reflect that information as of our valuation date. In periods of extreme volatility, lessened liquidity or in illiquid markets, there may be more 
variability in market pricing nr a lack of market data to use in the valuation process. An illiquid market is one in which little or no observable activity has 
occurrcd or one that lacks willing buyers. Valuation risk is mitigated through the performance of stress testing of the significant inputs to understand the 
impuct that varying assumptions may have on the valuation and other review processes performed to ensure appropriate valuation. 

As part of our valuation of assets subject to fair value accounting, counterparty credit risk is taken into consideration by measuring the extent of netting 
arrangements in place with the counterparty along with credit enhancements and the estimated credit rating of the counterparty. Our valuation of I iabilities 
subject to fair value accounting takes into consideration the markers view of our crcdit risk along with the existence of netting arrangements in place with the 
counterparty and credit enhancements posted by us. We consider the credit risk adjustment to be a Level 3 input since judgment is used to assign credit 
ratings, recovery rate factors and default rate factors, 
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Level 3 assets totaled $40l million and S350 million as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and iepresented approximately 8% of the assets 
measured at fair value. or less than 1% of total assets in both years. Level 3 liabilities totaled $59 million and S269 million as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, 
respectively, and represented approximately 2% and 8%, respectIvely, of the liabilities measured at fair value, or less than I% of total liabilities. 

Valuations of several of our Level 3 assets and liabilities are sensitive to changes in discount rates, option-pricing model inputs such as volatility factors 
and credit risk adjustments. As of December 31, 2010, a $5.00 per MWh change in electricity price assumptions across unobservable inputs would cause an 
approximate $5 million change in net Level 3 assets A 10% change in coal price assumptions across unobservable inputs would cause an approximate $1 
million change in net Level 3 assets. See Note 15 to Financial StateMents for additional intbnnation about fair value measurements, including a table 
presenting the changes in Level 3 assets and liabilities for the twelve months ended December 31. 2010, 2009 and 2008. 

Variable Interest Entities 

A variable interest entity (VIE) is an entity with which we have a relationship or arrangement that indicates some level of control over the entity or 
results in economic risks to us Determining whether or not to consolidate a VIE requires interpretation of accounting rules and their application to existing 

business relationships and underlying agreements. Amended accounting rules related to VI Es became effective January 1.2010 and resulted in the 
deconsolidation of Oncor Holdings, which holds an approximate 80% interest in Oncor. In determining the tippropriateness of consolidation of a VIE, we 
evaluate its purpose, governance structure, decision making processes and risks that are passed on to its interest holders. We also examine the nature of any 
related party relationships among the interest holders of the VIE and the rights granted to the interest holders of the VIE to determine whether we have the 
right or obligation to absorb profit and loss from-  the VIE and the power to direct the significant activities of the VIE. See Notes 2 and 3 to Financial 
Statements for our analysis of the Oncor relationship and inlbrmation regarding our consolidated variable interest entities. 

Revesme Recogstifiun 

Our revenue includes adestimate for unbilled revenue that represents estimated daily kWh consumption after‘the meter read date to the end of the 
period multiplied by the applieable billing rates. Egtimated daily kWh usage is derived using historical kWh usage information adjusted for weather and other 
measurable factors affecting consumption Calculations of unbilled revenues during certain interim periods are generally subject to more estimation variability 
because of seasonal changes in demand. Accrued unbilled revenues totaled $297 million, $546 million and $505 million as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 
2008, respectively.' 

.4ecounting far Contingencies 

Our financial results may be affected by judgments and estimates related to loss contingencies. A significant contingency that we account for is the loss 
associated with uncollectible trade accounts receivable. The determination of such bad debt expense is based on factors such as historical write-off experience, 
aging of accounts receivable balances, changes in operating practices, regulatory rulings, general economic conditions, effects of hurricanes and other natural 
disasters and customers behaviors. Changes in customer count and mix due to competitive activity and seasonal variations in amounts billed add to the 
complexity of the estimation ptocess. Historical results alone are not always indicative of haure results, causing management to consider potential changes in 
customer behavior and make judgments about the colleetability of accounts receivable. Bad debt expense, the substantial majority of which relates to our 
competitive retail operations, totaled $108 million, $113 million and $81 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 

Litigation contingencies also may require significant judgment in estimating amounts to accrue. We accrue liabilities for litigation contingencies when 
such liabilities are considered probable of occurring and the amount is reasonably estimable. No significant amounts have been accrued for such continiencies 
during the three-year period ended December 31, 2010. See Item 3, "Legal Proceedings" for discussion of major litigation. 
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Accounting for Income Taxes 

Our income tax expense and related balance sheet amounts involve significant management estimates and judgments. Amounts of deferred income tax 
assets and liabilities, as well as current and noncurrent accruals, involve judgments and estimates of the timing and probability of recognition of income and 
deductions by la.xing authorities. In assessing the likelihood of realization of deferred tax assets, management considers estimates of thc amount and character 
of future taxable income. Actual income taxes could vary from estimated amounts due to the future impacts of various itenis, including changes in income tax 
laws, our forecasted financial condition and results of operations in future periods. as well as final review of filed tax returns by taxing authorities. Our 
income tax returns are regularly subject to examination by applicable tax authorities. In management's opinion, the liability recorded pursuant to income tax 
accounting guidance related to uncertain tax positions reflects future taxes that may be owed as a result of any examination. In 2010, we reduced our liability 
for uncertain tax positions by $162 million as a result of negotiations with the IRS. This reduction consisted of a S225 million reversal of accrued interest 
($146 million afler-tax). partially offset by a $63 million reclassification to net deferred tax liabilities. See Notes I, 7 and 8 to Financial Statements for 
discussion of income tax matters. 

Depreciation and Amortization 

Depreciation expense related to generation facilities is based on the estimates of fair value and economic useful lives as determined in the application of 
purchase accounting described above. The accuracy of these estimates directly afTects the amount of depreciation expense. If future events indicate that the 
estimated lives are no longer appropriate, depreciation expense will be recalculated prospectively from the date of such determination based on the new 
estimates of useful lives 

The estimated remaining lives range from 22 to 59 years for the lignite/coal- and nuclear-fueled generation units. 

Finite-lived intangibles identified as a result of purchase accounting are amortized over their estimated useful lives based on the expected realization of 
economic effects. See Note 4 to Financial Statements for additional information. 

Defined Benefit Pension Plans and OPEB Plans 

We provide pension benefits based on either a traditional defined benefit formula or a cash balance formula and also provide certain health care and lifc 
insurance benefits to eligible employees and their eligible dependents upon the retirement of such employees from our company. Reported costs of providing 
noncontributory defined pension benefits and OPEB are dependent upon numerous factors, assumptions and estimates. 

PURA provides for the recovery by Oncor of pension and OPEB costs for all applicable former employees of the regulated predecessor Integrated 
electric utility. These costs are associated with Oncoes active and retired employees, as well as active and retired personnel engaged in other EFII Corp. 
activates related to their service prior to the deregulation and disaggregation of our business eiTective January I, 2002. Oricor is authorized to establish a 
regulatory asset or liability for the difference between the amounts of pension and OPEB costs reflected in Oncoes approved (by the PUCT) billing rates and 
the actual amounts that would otherwise have been recorded as charges or credits to earnings. Accordingly, Oncor defers (principally as a regulatory asset or 
property) additional pension and OPEB costs consistent with PURA. Amounts deferred are ultimately subject to regulatory approval. 

Benefit costs arc impacted by actual employee demographics (including but not limited to age, compensation levels and years of accredited service), the 
level of contributions made to retiree plans, expected and actual earnings on plan assets and the discount rates used in determining the projected benefit 
obligation. Changes made to the provisions of the plans may also impact current and future benefit costs. Fluctuations in actual equity market returns as well 
as changes in general interest rates may result in increased or decreased benefit costs in future periods. 
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In accordance with accounting rules. changes in benefit obligations associated with these factors may not be immediately recognized as costs in the 
income statement, but are recognized in future years over the remaining average service period of plan participants. As such, significant portions of benefit 
costs recorded in any period may not reflect the actual level of cash benefits provided to plan participants. Pension and OPEB costs as determined under 
applicable accounting rules are summarized in the followmg table: 

Year Ended December 31. 

2010 2009 2008 
Pension costs $ 	100 $ 	44 $ 	21 
OPEB costs 80 • 

70 58 
Total benefit costs $ 	180 $ 	114 $ 	79 

Less amounts expensed by OncOr (and not consolidated) (37) — — 
Less amounts deferred principally as a regulatory asset or property by Oncor (93) (66) (42) 

Net amounts recognized as expense $ 	50 $ 	48 $ 	37 

Discount rate (a) 5.90% 6.90°..) 6 55% 

(a) 	Discount rate for OPEB was 6.85% in 2009. 

See Note 20 to Financial Statements regarding other disclosures related to pension and OPEB obligations. 

Sensitivity of these costs to changes in key assumptions is as follows: 

Aasunoraion  

Increase/ 

(dmrease) In 

RHO Pension and 

OPER Costa 

  

Discount rate — I% increase 	 $ ' 	 (52) 
Discount rate — I% decrease 	 62 
Expected return on assets — 1% increase 	 (22) 
Expected return on assets — 1% decrease 	 22 
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Effects of Change in Wholesale Electricity Market 

As discussed above under "Significant Activities and Events." the nodal wholesale market design implemented by ERCOT in December 2010 resulted 
in operational changes that facilitate hedging and trading of power. As pan of ERCars transition to a nodal wholesale market, volumes under nontrading 
bilateral purchase and sales contracts are no longer scheduled as physical power with ERCOT. As a result of these changes in market operations, reported 
wholesale revenues and purchased power costs in 201 l will be materially less than amounts reported in prior periods. Effective with the nodal market 
implementation, &volumes delivered to our retail and wholesale customers are less than our generation volumes (as determined on a daily settlement basis). 
we record additional wholesale revenues. Conversely. if volumes delivered to our retail and wholesale customers exceed our generation volumes, we record 
additional purchased power costs. The resulting additional wholesale revenues or purchased power costs are nffset in net gainflloss) from commodity hedging 
and trading activities. 

Pro Forma Consolidated Financiai Results 

As the result of deconsolidation of Oncor I loldings effective 2010. the results of Oncor Holdings arc reflected in the 2010 consolidated statement of 
income as equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiary (net of tax) Instead of separately as revenues and expenses as they are shown for periods prior to 
January 1, 2010. The following pro forma results for the year ended December 31, 2009 are presenterl to provide for a meaningful comparison, along with the 
analyses on the following pages. of consolidated operating results in consideration of the deconsolidation of Oncor Holdings as discussed in Notes l and 3 to 
Financial Statements. 

Venr Ended 

December 31, 

2010 

Vtur Ended Decernber 31, 2009 

As Reported 

Pro Forma 

Adjustments (a) Pro Forma 

(millions of dollars) 

Operating revenues $ 	8.235 $ 	9,546 1 (1,632) $ 	7,914 
Fuel, purchased power costs and delivery fees (4,371) (2,8781 (1,058) (3,936) 
Net gain from commodity hedging and trading activities 2,161 1,736 1.736 
Operating costs (837) (1,598) 908 (690) 
Depreciation and amortization (1.407) (1,754) 557 (1,197) 
Selling. general and administrative expenses (751) (1,068) 193 (875) 
Franchise and revenue-based taxes (106) (359) 250 (109) 
impairment of goodwill (4.100) (90) (90) 
Other income 2,051 204 (50) 154 
Other deductions (31) (97) 34 (63) 
Interest income 10 45 (1) 44 
Interest expense and related charges (3,554) (2.912) 306 (2.606) 
Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries (2,700) 775 (493) 282 
Income tax (expense) benefit (389) (367) 173 (194) 
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries (net of tax) 277 256 256 

Net income (loss) (2,812) 408 (64) 344 
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests (64) 64 

Net income (loss) attributable to EFH Corp. (2,812) $ 	344 $ $ 	344 

(a) 	All pro forma adjustments relate to Oncor Iloldings and result in the presentation of the investment in Oncor Holdings under the equity method of 
accounting for the year ended December 31, 2009. 
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Consolidated Financial Results — Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to Pro Fornta Year Ended December 31, 2009 

See comparison of results of the Competitive Electric segment for discussion of variances in: operating revenues; fuel, purchased power costs and 
delivery fees; nct gain (loss) from commodity hedging and trading activities, operating costs; depreciation and amortization, and franchise and revenue-based 
taxes. 

SG&A expenses decreased $124 million, or 14%, to $751 million in 2010 driven by $66 million in lower transition costs associated with outsourced 
support services and the retail customer information system implemented in 2009, $18 million in tower employee compensation-related expense and $12 

million of accounts receivable securitization prograrn fees that are reported as interest expense and related charges in 2010 (see Notes 10 and 19 to Financial 
Statements). 

See Note 4 to Financial Statements for discussion of the $4.1 billion impairment of goodwill recorded in the Competitive Electric segment in 2010. The 
$90 million impairment of goodwill recorded in 2009 largely related to the Competitive Electric segment and resulted from the completion of fair value 
calculations supporting a goodwill impairment charge recorded in the fourth quarter 2008 as discussed in Note 4 to Financial Statements. 

Other income totaled S2.051 billion in 2010 and $154 million in 2009. Debt extinguishment gains totaled $1.814 billion and $87 million in 2010 and 
2009, respectively (see discussion of debt exchanges and repurchases in Note 11 to Financial Statements). The 2010 amount also included a $116 million gain 
on termination of a long-term power sales contract, a S44 million gain on sale of land and related water rights and a $37 million gain on sale of interests in a 

natural gas gathering pipeline business. The 2009 amount included $23 million of ineome arising from the reversal of a use taX accrual reCorded in purchase 
accounling related to periods prior to the Merger, which was triggered by a state ruling in the third quarter 2009, and $1 I million of income arising from the 
reversal of exit liabilities recorded in purchase accounting due to sooner than expected transition of outsourcing services (see Note 19 to Financial 
Statements). 

Other deductions totaled $3 l milliOn in 2010 and $63 million in 2009. The 2009 amount included an impairment charge of $34 million related to land 
expected to be sold. See Note 9 to Financial Statements for details of other income and deductions. 

' 	Interest income decreased $34 million, or 77%. to $10 million in 2010 reflecting lower interest on $465 million in collateral under a ilinding 
arrancement, due to senlement of the arrangement as described in Note 17 to Financial Statements. 

Interest expense and related charges increased $948 million to $3.554 billion in 2010 reflecting a $207 million unrealized mark-to-market net loss 
related to interest rate swaps in 2010 cornpared. to  a $696 million net gain in 2009 and a $214 million decrease in capitalized interest due to completion of new 
generation facility construction activities, partially offset by $97 million in decreased noneash amortization of losses on interest rate swaps dedesignated as 
cash flow hedges, reflecting values attributed to earlier periods, as well as lower intcrcst expense resulting from reduced debt under the liability management 
program as described above under "Significant Activities and Events." Also, see Note 24 to Financial Statements. 

Income tax expense totaled $389 million in 2010 compared to $194 million in 2009. Excluding the effects of the $4.1 billion and $90 million 
nondeductible goodwill impairment charges in 2010 and 2009, respectively. the effective tax rates were 27 8% in 2010 and 52 2% in 2009. The decrease in 
the effective tax rate in 2010 was driven by lower interest accrued related to uncertain tax Positions, including thc effect of a $146 million reversal of 
previously accrued interest (see Note 7 to Financial Statements) net of the effect of an $8 million deferred tax charge related to the Patient Protection and 

. Affordable Care Act (see Note 8 to Financial Statements). 

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries (net of tax) increased $21 million to $277 million in 2010 driven by improved earnings of Oncor, 
which reflected higher revenues, primarily due to weather effects and rate increases, and the effect of a $25 million write off of regulatory assets in 2009, 
partially offset by increased noncash expenses recognized as a result of the PUCT's final order in the June 2008 rate review. 
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The consolidated net loss of S2.812 billion in 2010 represented a $3.156 billion decrease in results. 

Results in the Competitive Electric segrnent decreased $4.094 billion to a loss of $3.463 billion. 

Earnings from the Regulated Delivery segment increased $21 million to $277 million as discussed above. 

Corporate and Other net income tmaled $374 million in 2010 compared to net expenses of 5543 million in 2009. The amounts in 2010 and 2009 
include recurring interest expense on outstanding debt and notes payable to subsidiaries. as well as corporate general and administrative 
expenses. The change of $917 million reflected $670 million in higher debt extinguishment gains in 2010, the $121 million Corporate and Other 
portion of the 2010 reversal of accrued interest on uncertain tax positions discussed above, $68 million in lower SG&A expense primarily 
reflecting lower transition costs associated with outsourced support services and costs allocated to the competitive operations effective 2010 and 
a $20 million goodwill impairment charge in 2009, partially offset by an $8 million deferred tax charge due to the implementation of the Patient 
Protection and Affordable Care Act in 2010 (all amounts after-tax). 

Consolidated Financial Results — Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to rear Ended December 31, 2008 

Reference is made to comparisons of results by business segment following the discussion of consolidated results. The business segment comparisons 
provide additional detail and quantification of items affecting financial results. 

Operating revenues decreased $1.818 billion, or 16%, to $9.546 billion in 2009. 

• Operating revenues in the Competitive Electric segment decreased $1.876 billion, or 19°0, to $7.911 billion. 

• Operating revenues in the Regulated Delivery segment increased $110 million, or 4%, to $2.690 billion. 

Net intercompany sales eliminations increased $52 million, reflecting Onco?s higher distribution revenues from REP subsidiaries of TCEH. 

Fuel. purchased power costs and delivery feas decreased $1.717 billion, or 37%, to $2.878 billion in 2009, driven by lower purchased power costs. See 
discussion below in the analysis of Competitive Electric segment results of operations. 

Nct gains from commodity hedging and trading activities totaled $1.736 billion in 2009 and $2.184 billion in 2008 Results in 2009 and 2008 included 
unrealized mark-to-market net gains totaling $1.277 billion and $2.281 billion, respectively, driven by the effect of lower forward market prices of natural gas 
on the value of positions in the long-term hedging program. See discussion below in the analysis of Competitive Electric segment results of operations. 

Operating costs incieased $95 million, or 6%, to $1.598 billion in 2009. 

• Operating costs in the Competitive Electric segment increased $16 million, or 2%, to $693 million. 

• Operating costs in the Regulated Delivery segment increased $80 million, or 10%, to S908 million. 

Depreciation and amortization increased $144 million, or 9%, to $1 754 billion in 2009. 

• Depreciation and amortization in the Competitive Electric segment increased $80 million, or 7%, to $1.172 billion. 

• Depreciation and amortization in the Regulated Delivery segment increased 565 million, or 13°0. to $557 million 
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SG&A expenses increased $111 rnillion, or 12%. to $1.06:8 billion in 2009. 

• SG&A expenses in the Competitive Electric segment increased $59 million, or 9%, to $741 million. 

• SG&A expenses in the Regulated Delivery segment increased $30 million, or 18%, to 5194 million. 

• Corporate and Other SG&A expenses increaSed $22 million, or 20%. to 5133 milhon driven by higher transition costs associated with outsourced 
support services. 

See Note 4 to Financial Statements for discussion of the S90 million and $8.860 billion impairments of goodwill in 2009 and 2008, respectively. 

Other income totaled $204 million in 2009 and $80 million in 2008, including $39 million and $44 million, respectively, in accretion of the fair value 
adjustrnent to certain regulatory assets due to purchase accounting. The 2009 amount also included an $87 million debt extinguishment gain (see discussion of 
debt exchanges in Note 11 to Financial Statements), $23 million ot' income arising from the reversal of a use tax accrual recorded in purchase accounting 

related to periods prior to the Merger, which was triggered by a state ruling in the third quarter of 2009, and $21 million of income arising front the reversal of 
exit liabilities recorded in purchase accounting due to sooner than expected transition of outsourcing services (see Note 19 to Financial Statements). The 2008 
amount also included a $21 million net insurance recovery for damage to cenain mining equipment. 

Other deductions totaled $97 million in 2009 and $1.301 billion in 2008. The 2009 amount included an impairment charge of $34 million related to 

land expected to be sold within the next 12 months ana a $25 million write off of regulatory assets as discussed in Note 24 to Financial Statements. The 2008 
arnount included impairment charges of $501 million related to NO, and SO2envifonmental allowances intangible assets and $481 million related to trade 

name intangible assets, both discussed in Note 4 to Financial Statements, $229 million in impairment charges related to the natural gas-fueled generation 

facilities and 526 million in charges to reserve for net receivables (excluding termination related costs) from terminated hedging transactions with subsidiaries 
of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc., which filed for bankruptcy under Chapter 11 of the US Bankruptcy Code. See Note 9 to Financial Statements for details of 
other income and deductions. 

Interest income increased $18 million, or 67/0, to 545 million driven by interest on $465 million in collateral under a funding arrangement desenhed in 
Note 17 to Financial Statements. 

Interest expense and related charges decreased $2.023 billion to $2.912 billion in 2009 reflecting a'S696 million unrealized mark-to-market net gain 
related to interest rate swaps in 2009 as compared to a $IA77 billion net loss in 2008, which was partially offset by $I 18 million in increased noncash 
amortization of losses on interest rate swaps declesignated as cash flow hedges and a 534 million decrease in capitalized interest. See Note 24 to Financial 
Statements. 

Income tax expense totaled 5367 niillion in 2009 compaied to an income tax benefit of $471 million in 2008. The effective rate on income in 2009 was 
47.4%, and the effective rate on a lbss in 2008 was 4.5%. The increase in the rate reflects the impacts of nondeductible goodwill impairments of $90 million 
in 2009 and $8.860 billion in 2008. which increased the efTective 'tate by 5.0 percentage points in 2009 and decreased the effective rate by 24.8 percentage 

points in 2008. The increase also reflects the effect of interest accrued for uncertain tax positions, which increased the ratc on income in 2009 and decreased 
the rale on a loss in 2008. 

71 

0001217 



Tr,lite of Contents 

Reflecting the goodwill and other impairment charges recorded in 2008, afler tax-results Unproved S10.406 billion to $408 million in net income in 
2009. 

• After-tax results in the Competitive Electric segment improved $9 560 billion to ")i>31 million in net ii.come in 2009. 

• A tler-tax results in the Regulated Delivery segment improved $806 million to S320 million in net income in 2009 

• Corporate and Other net expenses totaled 5543 million in 2009 and $583 million in 2008. The amounts in 2009 and 2008 include recurring 
interest expense on outstanding debt and notes payable to subsidiaries, as well as corporate general and administrative expenses. The al-ler-tax 
decrease of $40 million reflected the debt extinguishment gain of $57 million and $16 million in interest income related to the collateral 
discussed above, partially offset by a $20 million goodwill impairment charge and the $14 million increase in SCi&A expense as discussed abo. 

Non-GAAP Earnings Measures 

ln communications with investors, we use a non-GAAP earnings measure that reflects adjustments to earnings reported in accordance with US GAAP 
in order to review underlying operating performance. These adjustina items, which are generally noncash, consist of unrealized mark-to-market gains and 
losses, impairment charges. debt extinguishment gains and other charges, credits or gains that are unusual or nonrecurring. All such items and related amounts 
arc disclosed in our annual report on Form 10-K and quarterly reports on Form 10-Q Our communications with investors also reference "Adjusted EB1TDA," 
which is a non-GAAP measure used in calculation of ratios in covenants of certain of our debt securities (see "Financial Condition — Liquidity and Capital 
Resources — Financial Covenants, Credit Rating Provisions and Cross Default Piuvisione below). 
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Velar Ended 13tember 31. 

Competitive Electric Segment 

Financial Results 

2010 2009 2008 
Operiting revenues S 	8,235 S 	7,911 $ 	9,787 
Fuel. purchased power costs and delivery fees (4,371) (3,934) (5,600) 
Net gain from commodity hedging and trading activities 2.161 1,736 2.184 
Operating costs (837) (693) (677) 
Depreciation and amodization (1,380) (1,172) (1,092) 
Selling, general and administrative expenses (722) (741) (682) 
Franchise and revenue-based taxes (106) (108) (110) 
Impairment of goodwill (4,100) (70) (8.000) 
Other income 903 59 . 	34 
Other deductions (21) (68) (1,274) 
Interest income 91 64 61 
interest expense and related charges (2.957) (1.946) (4,010) 
income (loss) before income taxes (3,104) 1,038 • (9,379) 
Income tax (expense) benefit (359) (407) 450 
Net income (loss) $ 	(3,463) S 	631 S 	(8.929) 
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Competitive Electric Segment 

Soles Volume and Customer Count Data 

Year Ended December 31, 2010 2009 

2010 2099 2008 % Chine % Change 

Sales volumes: 
Retail electricity sales volumes — (GWh): 

Residential 28,208 28.046 28,135 0.6 (0.3) 
Small business (a) 8,042 7,962 7,363 1.0 8.1 
Large business and other customers 15.339 14 573 13,945 5.3 4.5 

Total retail electricity 51,589 50,581 49,443 2.0 2.3 
Wholesale electricity sales volumes (13) 51 359 42 320 46.743 21.4 (9.5) 

Total sales volumes 102d  948 ....a.. 92.901 96,186 10.8 (3.4) 

15,532 14,855 14,780 Average volume (kWh) per residential customer (c) 4.6 0.5 
Weather (North Texas average) — percent of normal (d): 

Cooling degree days 102.9% 98.1% 107.3% 11 0 (8.6) 
Heating degree days 116.6% 105.8% 98.3% 10.2 7 6 

Customer counts: 
Retail electricity customers (end of period and in thousands) (e): 

Residential 1,771 1,862 1,914 (4.9) (2.7) 
Small business (a) 217 262 275 (17.2) (4.7) 
Large business and other customers 20 23 25 (13.0) (8.0) 

Total retail electricity customers 2.008 2147 
1  2,214 (6.5) (3.0) 

(a) Customers with demand of less than 1 MW annually. 
(b) Includes net amounts related to sales arid purchases of balancing energy in the "real-time market" 
(c) Calculated using average number of customers for the period 
(d) Weather data is obtaincd from Weatherbank. Inc., an independent company that collects and archives weather data from reporting stations of the 

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (a federal agency tinder the US Department of Commerce). Normal is defined as the average over a 
10-year period. 

(e) Based on number of meters. Typically, large business and other customers have more than one meter; therefore, number of meters does not reflect the 
number of individual customers. The year ended December 31, 2008 reflects reclassification of 18 thousand meters from residential to small business to 
conform to current presentation. 
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Competitive Electric segment 

Revenue and CammOdio: Hedging and Trading A ctivities 

Operating revenues: 
Read electricity revenues: 

Year Ended December 31, 2010 

% Chanze 

2009 

% Chance, 2010 2009 2008 

Residential $ 3,663 53,806 $3,782 (3.8) 0.6 
Small business (a) Lon 1,164 1,099 (9.6) 5.9 
Large business and other customers 1.211 1,261 1 447 (4.0) (12.9) 

Total retail electricity revenues 5.926 6.231 6,328 (4.9) (1.5) 
Wholesale electricity revenues (b) (c) 2.005 1,383 3,1 I 5 45.0 (55.6) 
Amortization of intangibles (d) 16 5 (36) — — 
Other opcmting revenues 288 292 380 (1.4) (23.2) 

Total operating revenues $ 8,235 57,911 $9.787 4.1 (19.2) 

Net gain from commodity hedging and trading activities: 
Unrealized net gains from changes in fair value $ 2,162 $1,741 $2,290 24.2 (24.0) 
Unrealized net losses representing reversals of previously recognized fair values of positions settled 

in the current period (1,009) (464) (9) — 
Realized net gains (losses) on settled positions 1,008 459 (97) — 

Total gain $ 2,161 $1.736 52.184 24.5 (20.5) 

(a) Customers with demand of less than 1 MW annually. 
(b) Upon settlement of physical derivative power sales and purchase contracts that are marked-to-market in net income, Wholesale electricity revenues and 

fuel And purchased power costs are reported at approximated market prices, as required by accounting rules, instead of the contract price. As a result, , 
these line item amounts include a noncash component, which the company considers "unrealized." (The offsetting differences between contract and 
marke( prices are reported in net gain from commodity hedging and trading activities.) These amounts arc as follows: 

Year Ended December 31. 

2010 2009 2008 

Reported in revenues s (28) $ 	- (166) $ 	42 
Reported in fuel and purchased power costs 96 ' 114 6 

Net gain (loss) s 68 :$ 152? $ 	48 

(c) Includes net amounts related to sales and purchases of balancing energy in the "real-time market." 
(d) Represents amortization of the intangible net asset value of retail and wholesalipower sales aareements resulting from purchase accounting. 
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Competitive Ekaric Samenr 

Production, Purchased Power and Delivery Cost Data 

Year Ended December 31, 2010 2009 

1010 2009 2008 % Chenee % Climate 
Fuel, purchased power costs and delivery fees (S millions): 

Nuclear fuel S 	159 S 	121(0 S 	95 31.4 27.4 
Lignite/coal 910 670 640 35,8 4.7 

Total baseload fuel 1,069 791 735 35.1 7.6 
Natural gas fuel and purchased power (a) 1,502 1,224 2,881 22.7 (57.5) 
Amortization of intangibles (b) 161 285(0 318 (43.5) (10.4) 
Other costs 187 202 351 (7.4) (42.5) 

Fuel and purchased power costs 2,919 2,502 4,285 16.7 (41.6) 
Delivery fees (c) 1 452 1 432 I 315 1.4 8.9 

Total S 	4i  371 ammsesta $ 1i  934 romilmma S 5i  600 sim=ws 11.1 (29.8) 

Fuel and purchased power tosts (which excludes generation facilities operating costs) per 
MWb: 

Nuclear fuel S 	7.89 $ 	3.98(1) $ 	4.92 31.9 21.5 
Lignitc/coal (d) S 	19.19 $ 16.47 $ 15.80 16.5 4.2 
Natural gas the! and purchased power S 	52.37 S 44.36 $ 81.99 18.1 (45.9) 

Delivery fees per MW1t $ 	28.06 S 28.09 S 26.33 (0.1) 6.7 
Production and purchased power vohtmes (GW11): 

Nuclear 20,208 20,104 19,218 0.5 4.6 
Lignite/coal 54 775 45.684 44 923 19.9 1.7 

Total baseload generation 74,983 65,788 64,141 14.0 2.6 
Natural gas-fueled generation 1,648 2.447 4.122 (32.7) (40.6) 
Purchased power (e) 26.317 24 666 27 923 6.7 (11.7) 

Total energy supply volumes 101t  948 ..ai... 92901 ........ 6 96 186 =m.. i 10.8 (3.4) 
Baseload capacity factors: 

Nuclear 100.3% 100.0% 95.2% 0.3 5.0 
Lignitc/coal 82.2% 86.5% 87.6% (5.0) (1.3) 

Total baseload 86.6% 90.3% 89.8% (4. I) 0.6 

(a) See note (b) on previous page. 
(b) Represents amortization of the intangible net asset values of emission credits, coal purchase contracts, nuclear fuel contracts and power purchase 

agreements and the stepped up value uf nuclear fuel resulting from purchase accounting. 
(c) includes delivery fee charges from Oncor that prior to 2010 were eliminated in consolidation. 
(d) Includes depreciation and amortization of lignite mining assets, which is reported in the depreciation and amortization expense line item, but is part of 

overall fuel costs. 
(e) Includes amounts related to line loss and power imbalances. 
(f) Reflects reclassification to correct amortization. 
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Competitive Electric Segment — Financial Resula — Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to rear Ended December 31, 2009 

Operating revenues increased $324 million, or 4%, to $3.235 billion in 2010. 

Wholesale electricity revenues increased $622 million, or 45%. to.$2.005 billion in 2010. A 21% increase in wholesale electricity sales volumes, 
reflecting production from the new generation units and increased sales to third-party REPs, increased revenues by $332 million. An 8% increase in average 
wholesale electricity prices, reflecting higher natural gas prices at the time the underlying contracts were executed, increased revenues by 5149 million. The 
balance of the revenue increase reflected lower unrealized losses in 2010 related to physical derivative c6mmodity sales contracts as discussed in footnote 

(b) to the "Revenue and Commodity fledging and Trading Activities" table above. 

Retail electricity revenues decreased S305 million, or 5%, to $5.926 billion and reflected the following: 

• Lower average pricing decreased revenues by $429 million reflecting declines in both the business and residential markets. I.ower 
average pricing is reflective of competitive activity in a lower wholesale power price environment and a change in business customer 
mix. 

• A 2% increase in sales volumes increased revenues by $124 million reflecting increases in both the business and residential markets. A 
4% increase in business markets sales volumes reflected a change in customer mix resulting from contracts executed with new customers. 
Residential sales volumes increased I% reflecting higher average consumption driven by colder winter weather and hotter summer 
weather, partially offset by a decline in residential customer counts. 

Fuel, purchased power costs and delivery fees increased $437 million. or 11%, to $4 371 billion in 2010 Higher purchased power costs contributed 
5255 million to the increase and reflected increased planned generation unit outages and higher retail demand, as well.as  increased prices driven by the effect 
of higher natural gas prices at the time the underlying contracts were executed. Other factors contributing to the increase included $126 million in higher 
lignite/coal costs at existing plants. reflecting higher purchased coal transportation and commodity costs, $114 million in increased lignite fuel costs related to 
production &mit the new generation units, a $39 niillion increase in nuclear fuel expense reflecting increased uranium and conversion costs, a $23 million 

increase in natural gas and fuel oil costs driven by higher prices. S20 million in higher delivery fees, reflecting increased retail sales volumes and tanffs, and 
an $18 million decrease in unrealized gains related to physical derivative commodity purchase contracts. These increases were partially offset by $124 million 
in lower amortization of the intangible net asset values (including the stepped-up value of nuclear fuel) resulting from purchase accounting, which reflected 
expiration of comrnodity contracts and consumption of the nuclear fuel. 

Overall bascload generation production increased 14% in 2010 driven by production froM the new generation units. Nuclear production increased 1%, 
and existing lignite/coal-fueled generation decreased 2%.driven by increased economic backdown. 
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Following is an analysis of amounts reported as net gain from commodity hedging and trailing activities for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 
2009, which totaled S2.161 billion and $1.736 billion, respectively: 

Year Ended December 31, 2010— Unrealized mark-to-market net gains totaling S1.15 billion included: 

51.157 billion in net gains related to hedge positions, which includes $2.133 billion in net gains from changes in fair value, driven by the impact 
of lower forward natural gas prices on the value of positions in the long-term hecle.;ig program, and $976 million in net losses that represent 
reversals of previously recorded net gains on pisitions settled in the period. and 

• $4 million in net losses related to trading positions, which includes $29 million in nct gains from changes in fair value, and S33 million in net 
losses that represent reversals of pieviously recorded net gains on positions settled in the period. 

Realized net gains totaling SI.008 billion included: 

• 5961 million in net gains related to positions that primarily hedged electricity revenues recognized in the period, and 

• $47 million in net gains related to trading positions. 

Year Ended December 31. 2009 — Unicalized mark-to-market net gains totaling $1.277 billion included: 

• $1.260 billion in net gains related to hedge positions, which includes 51.719 billion in net gains from changes in fair value, driven by the impact 
of lower forward natural gas prices on the value of positions in the long-term hedging program, and $459 minion in net losses that represent 
reversals of previously recorded net gains on positions settled in the period, and 

• $17 inillion in net gains related to trading positions, which includes S22 million in net gains from changes in fair value. and $5 million in net 
losses that represent reversals of previously recorded net gains on positions settled ia the period. 

Reali7ed net gains totaling S459 million included: 

• $449 million in net gains related to positions that primarily hedged electricity revenues recognized in the period, and 

• 	SlO million in net gains related to trading positions. 

linrcalized gains ancl losses that arc related to physical derivative commodity contracts and are reported as revenues and purchased power costs, as 
required by accounting rules, totaled $68 million in net gains in 2010 and S52 million in net losses in 2009. 

Operating costs increased $144 million, or 21%. to $837 million in 2010. The increase reflected $90 million in incremental expense related to the new 
generation units. The balance of the increase was driven by installation and maintenance of emissions control equipment at the existing lignite/coal-fueled 
generation facilities and higher maintenance costs at both the nuclear and existing lignite/coal-fueled facilities reflecting timing and scope of project work. 

Depreciation and amortiration increased $208 million, or 18%, to $1.380 billion in 2010. The increase reflected $162 million in incremental expense 
related to the new generation units and associated mining operations. The balance of the increase was driven by equipment additions. 
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•SG&A expenses decreased $19 million, or 3%, to $722 million in 2010. The decrease reflected: 

• $31 million in lower transition costs associated with outsourced services and the retail customer information management system implemented in 
2009; 

• 516 million in lower employee compensation-related expense in 2010; 

• $12 million of accounts receivable securitization program fees that are reported in 2010 as interest expense and related charges (see Note 10 to 
Financial Statements), and 

• $8 million in lower bad debt expense, 

partially offset by $46 million of costs allocated from corporate in 2010, princiAlly fees paid tO •the Sponsor Group. 

See Note 4 to Financial Statements for discussion of the 54.1 billion impairment of goodwill recorded in 2010 and of the $70 million impairrnent of 
goodwill recorded in 2009 that resulted from the completion of fair value calculations supporting a goodwill impairment charge recorded in the fourth quarter 
of 2008. 

Other income totaled $903 million in 2010 and $59 rnillion in 2009. Other income in 2010 included debt extinguishment gains of $687 million. a $116 

million gain on termination of a power sales contract. a 544 million gain on thc sale of land and related water rights and a $37 million gain associated with the 
sale of interests in a natural gas gathering pipeline business. The 2009 amount included a $23 million reversal of a use tax accrual, an 511 million reversal of 
exit liabilities recorded in connection with the termination of outsourcing arrangements and 525 million in several individually immaterial items. Other 

deductions totaled S2I million in 2010 and $68 million in 2009. The 2010 amount included several individually immaterial items. The 2009 amount included 
534 million in charges for the impairment of land expected to be sold, 57 million in severance charges and other individually immaterial miscellaneous 
expenses. See Note 9 to Financial Statements for additional details 

Interest income increased $27 million, or 42%, to $91 million in 2010 reflecting higher notes receivable balances from affiliates. 

Interest expense and related charges increased by $1.011 billion, or 52%, to $2.957 billion in 2010 reflecting a $207 million unrealized mark-to-market 
net loss related to interest rate swaps in 2010 compared to a $696 million net gain in 2009 and a $214 million decrease in capitalized interest due to 

completion of new generation facility construction activities, partially offset by a $97 million decrease in noncash amortization of losses on interest rate swaps 
dedesignated as cash flow hedges. 

Income tax expense totaled 5359 million in 2010 compared to 5407 million in 2009. Excluding the $4.1 billion and $70 million nondeductible goodwill 
impairment charges in 2010 and 2009, respectively, the effective tax rates were 36.0% and 36.7%, respectively. 

Results for the segment decrcased S4.094 billion in 2010 to a loss of $3.463 billion reflecting the $4.1 billion goodwill impairrnent charge and increased 
interest expense, partially offset by debt extinguishment gains and an increase iti net gairts from commodity hedging and trading activities. 
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Competitive Electric Segment — Financial Results — Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2008 

Operating revenues decrewed SI 876 billion, or 19%. to $7.911 billion in 2009. 

Wholesale electricity revenues decreased $1.732 billion, or 56%, to $1.383 billion in 2009 as compared to 2008. Volatility in wholesale revenues and 
purchased power costs reflects movements in natural gas prices, as lower natural gas prices in 2009 drove a 46% decline in average wholesale electricity sales 
prices. Reported wholesale revenues and purchased power costs also reflect changes in volumes of bilateral contracting activity entered into to mitigate the 
effects of demand volatility and congestion. Results in 2009 reflect lower demand volatility and a decline in congestion. which drove a 10% decline in 
wholesale sales volumes. Net  purchases of balancing electricity from ERCOT totaling $80 million in 2009 and $214 million in 2008, which were previously 
disclosed separately, are now included within wholesale electricity revenues. 

Retail electricity revenues declined S97 million, or 2%, to $6.231 billion and reflected the following: 

• Lower average pricing contributed $242 million to the revenue decline. The change in average pricing reflected lower average contracted 
business rates driven by lower wholesale electricity prices, partially offset by higher average pricing in the residential and non-contract 
business markets resulting from advanced meter surcharges as well as customer mix. 

• Retail sales volume growth of 2% increased revenues by S145 million. Volumes rose in the business markets dnven by changes in 
customer mix resulting from contracting activity, but declined slightly in the residential market driven by a 3% decrease in customers. 

Other operating revenues decreased $88 million, or 23%, to $292 million in 2009 due to lower natural gas prices arid tower volumes on sales of natural 
gas to industrial customers. 

The change in operating revenues also reflected a $41 million decrease in amortization of intangible assets arising from purchase accounting reflecting 
expiration of retail sales contacts. 

Fuel, purchased power costs and delivery fees decreased $1.666 billion, or 301/4, to S3,934 billion in 2009. This decrease was driven by lower purchased 
power costs due to the effect of lower natural gas prices, decreased demand volatility and reduced congestion as discussed above regarding wholesale 
revenues. Lower costs of replacement power during unplanned generation unit repair outages contributed to impmved margin. Other factors contributing to 
lower fuel and purchased power costs included lower natural gas-fueled generation and lower related fuel costs ($374 million), the effect of lower natural gas 
prices on natural gas purchased for sale to industrial customers (S116 million) and lower amortization of intangible assets arising from purchase accounting 
(126 million). 

Overall baseload generation production increased 3% in 2009 reflecting a 5% increase in nuclear production arid a 2% increase in lignitelcoal-fueled 
production. The increase in nuclear production, which reflects two refueling outages in 2008 compared to one refueling outage in 2009 and investments to 
increase generation capacity, resulted in improved margin. The increase in lignite/coal-fueled production reflected generation from the new units placed in 
service in the fourth quarter 2009, partially offset by generation reductions during certain periods when power could be purchased in the wholesale market at 
prices below production costs, which was largely due to lower natural gas prices and higher wind generation availability. 
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Following is an analysis of amounts reported as net gain from commodity hedging and trading activities for theyears ended December 31, 2009 and 
2008, which totaled $1.736 billion and $2.184 billion, respectively: 

Year Ended December 31, 2009— Unrealized mark-to-market net gains totaling $1.277 billion included: 

• $1.260 billion in net gains related to hedge positions, which includes $1.719 billion in net gains from changes in fair value, driven by the impact 
of lower forward natural gas prices on the value of positions in the long-term hedging program, and $459 million in net losses that represent 
reversals of previously recorded net gains on positions settled in the period, and 

• $17 million in net gains related to trading positions, which includes $22 million in net gains front changes in fair value and $5 million in net. 
losses that represent reversals of previously recorded net gains on positions settled in the period. 

Realized net gairts totaling S459 million included: 

• $449 rnillion in net gains related to positions that primarily hedged electricity reveraics recognized in thc period, and 

• $10 million in net gains related to trading positions 

Year Ended December 31. 2008 — Unrealized mark-to-market net gains totaling $2.281 billion included: 

$2.324 billion in net gains related to hedge positions, which includes $2.282 billion in net gains froni changes in fair value and $42 million in net 
gains that represent reversals of previously recorded fair values of positions settled in the period; 

• 568 million in "day one net losses related to large hedge positions (see Note 17 to Financial Statements), and 

• $25 million in net gains related to trading positions, which includes $76 million in net gains front changes in fair value and $51 million in net 
losses that represent reversals of previously recorded fair values of positions settled in the period. 

Realized nct losses totaling 597 million included: 

5177 million in net losses related to hedge positions that primarily offset hedged electricity revenues and fuel arid purchased power costs 
recognized in the period, and 

$80 million in net gains related to trading positions. 

Unrealized gains and losses that are related to physically settled derivative commodity contracts anti are reported as revenues and purchased power 
costs, as requited by accounting rules. totaled $52 million in net losses in 2009 and $48 million in net gains in 2008. 

Operating costs increased $16 million, or 2%, to S693 million in 2009 driven by $28 million in costs related to the new lignite-fueled generation 
facilities. The change also reflected $19 million in higher maintenance costs incurred during planned and unplanned lignite-fueled generation unit outages in 
2009 that was more than offset by the $31 million effect of two planned nuclear generation unit outages in 2008 as compared to one in 2009. 
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Depreciation and amortization increased $80 million, or 7%, to $1.172 billion in 2009. The increase was driven by $39 million in higher amortization 
expense related to the imangible asset representing retail customer relationships recorded in purchasc accounting and $24 million due to the placement in 
service of two new generation units and related mining assets. Increased lignite generation unit depreciation as a result of normal capital additions as well as 
adjustments to useful lives of components was partially offset by lower natural gas generation unit depreciation resulting from an impairment in 2008. 

SG&A expenses increased $59 million. or 9%, to $741 million in 2009. The increase reflected $36 million in higher retail bad debt expense, reflecting 
higher delinquencies due to delays in final bills and disconnects resulting from a system conversion. customer losses and general economic conditions. The 
increase also reflected higher employee related expenses. the implementation of a new retail customer information management system and the transition of 
certain previously outsourced customer operations. partially offset by $13 million in lower fees associated with the sale of receivables program. 

See Note 4 to Financial Statements for discussion of the impairments of goodwill of $70 million in 2009 and $8.0 billion in 2008. 

Other income totaled $59 million in 2009 and $34 rnillion in 2008. The 2009 amount included a $23 million reversal of a use tax accrual, an $t 1 
million reversal of exit liabilities recorded in connection with thc termination of outsourcing arrangements (see Note 19 to Financial Statements), a $6 million 
fe ieceived related to an interest rate swap/commodity hedge derivative agreement, $5 million in royalty incorne and $5 million in sales/use tax refunds. The 
2008 amount included an insurance recovery of $21 million and S4 million in royalty incorne See Note 9 to Financial Statements for more details. 

Other deductions totaled $68 million in 2009 and $1.274 billion in 2008. The 2009 amount included $34 million in charges for the impairment of land 
expected to be sold within the next 12 months, $7 million in charges for severance and other individually immaterial miscellaneous expenses. The 2008 
amount included S501 million in impairment charges related to NO„ and S02  environmental allowances intangible assets and $481 million related to trade 
name intangible assets, both discussed in Note 4 to Financial Statements, S229 million in impairment charges related to the natural gas-fueled generation 
facilities discussed in Note 5 tu Financial Statements and $26 million in charges to reserve for net receivables (excluding termination related costs) from 
terminated hedging transactions with subsidianes of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc.. which filed for bankruptcy under Chapter 11 of the US f3ankruptcy 
Code. See Note 9 to Financial Statements for more details. 

Interest expense and related charges decreased $2.064 billion. or 51% to $1.946 billion in 2009. The decrease reflected a $696 million unrealized mark-
to-market net gain related to interest rate swaps in 2009 compared to a $1.477 billion net loss in 2008, partially offset by S118 million in increased noncash 
amortization of losses on interest rate swaps &designated as cash flow hedges in August 2008. 

income tax expense totaled S407 million in 2009 conipared to an income tax benefit totaling $450 million in 2008. Excluding the impacts of thc 
goodwill impairment of $70 million in 2009 and 58.0 billion in 2008, the effective income tax rate was 36.7% in 2009 and 32,6% in 2008. (These 
nondeductible charges distort the comparison; therefore, they have been excluded for purposes of a more meaningful discussion.) The increase in the rate 
reflects the effect of interest accrued for uncertain tax positions, which increased the rate on income in 2009 and decreased the rate on a loss in 2008. 

After-tax results for the segnient improved 59.560 billion to net income of $631 million in 2009, reflecting the 2008 impairment of goodwill, the 2008 
impairment charges reported in other deductions and the change in unrealized mark-to-market values of interest rate swaps reported in interest expense, 
partially offset by lower net gains from commodity hedging and trading activities driven by lower unrealized mark-to-market net gains. 
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Regulated Delivery Segntent 

The following tables present financial operating results of the Regulated Delivery segment for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008. 
Comparative segment results for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 are discussed above with consolidated results of equity in earnings of 
unconsolidated subsidiaries. Effective January I, 2010, Oncor (and its majority owner, Oncor Holdings) was deconsolidated as a result of amended 
consolidation accounting standards related to variable interest entities (see Note 3 to Financial Statements) 

Financial Results 

Year Ended Deeember.311, 

2009 2008 

Operating revenues 2,690 S 2,580 
Operating costs (908) (828) 
Depreciation and amortization (557) (492) 
Selling, general and administrative expenses (194) (164) 
Franchise and revenue-based taxes (250) (255) 
Impairment of goodwill (860) 
Other income 49 45 
Other deductions (34) (19) 
Interest income 43 45 
Interest expense and related charges (346) (317) 
Income (loss) before incóme taxes 493 (265) 
Income tax expense (a) (173) (221) 
Net income (loss) 320 $ (486) 

(a) 	Effective with the sale of noncontrolling interests (see Note 14 to Financial Statements), Oncor is taxed as a parmership and thus not subject to income 
taxes; however, subsequent to the sale, Oncor reflects a "provision in lieu of income taxes," and the results of segrnents are evaluated as if they file their 
own income tax returns. 
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Operating Data 

Operating statistics — volumes: 

Yen Ended December 31. 

2009 2008 

Electric energy billed volumes (Gwh) 103,376 107,828 
Reliability statistics (a): 

System Average Interruption Duration Index (SAID() (nonstorrn) 84.5 85.4 
System Average Interruption Frequency Index (SAIF1) (nonstorm) 1.1 1.1 
Customer Average Interruption Duration Index (CAID1) (nonstorm) 77 2 74.7 

Electric points of delivery (end of period and in thousands): 
Electricity distribution points of delivery (based on number of meters) 3.145 3,123 

Operating revenues: 
Electricity distribution revenues (b): 

Affiliated (TCEH) 1,017 $ 998 
Nonaffiliated 1,339 1.264 

Total distribution revenues 2,356 2,262 
Third-party transmission revenues 299 280 
Other miscellaneous revenues 35 38 

Total operating revenues 2 690 $ 	2,582 1, 

(a) SAID! is the average number of minutes electric service is interrupted per consumer in a year. SAIF1 is the average number of electric service 
intemiptions per consumer in a year. CAIDI is the average duration in minutes per electric service interruption in a year. The statistics presented are 
based on the preceding twelve months data. 

(b) Includes transition charge revenue associated with the issuance of sectiritization bonds totaling $147 million and $140 million for the years ended 
December 31. 2009 and 2008, respectively. Also includes disconnectneconnect fees and other discretionary revenues for services requested hy REPs. 

Regulated Delivety Segment — Financial Results — Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2008 

Operating revenues increased $I 10 million, or 4%. to $2.690 billion in 2009. The increase reflected: 

• $55 million from increased distribution tariffs, including the August 2009 rate review order; 

• $28 million from a surcharge to recover advanced metering deployment costs and $11 million from a surcharge to recover additional energy 
efficiency costs, both of which became effective with the January 2009 billing cycle; 

• $20 million in higher transmission revenues reflecting rate increases to recover ongoing investment in the transmission system; 

• an estimated $14 million impact from growth in points of delivery: 

• $9 million performance bonus for meeting PUCT energy efficiency targets, and 

$7 million in higher charges to REPs related to transition bonds (with an offsetting increase in amonization of the related regulatory asset), 

partially offset by an estimated $27 million in lower average consumption primarily due to the effects of rn ilder weather and general economic 
conditions and $7 million due to less requested REP discretionary arid third-party maintenance services. 

84 

0001230 



Table of ( unients 

Operating costs increased $80 million, or 10%, to $908 million in 2009. The increase reflected $45 million in higher fees paid to other transmission 
entities. $21 million in additional expense recognition as a result of the MCI's August 2009 final order in the rate review (see discussion immediately below) 

and $10 million in costs related to prograrns designed to improve customer electricity demand efficiency, the majority of which are reflected in the revenue 

increases discussed above. 

Under accounting rules for rate regulated utilities, certain costs are deferred as regulatory assets (see Note 24 to Firnincial Statements) when incurred 
and are recognized as expense when recoveiy of the costs are allowed in revenue under rigulatory approvals. Accordingly. beginning in September 2009, the 
effective date of the new tariffs resuhing from the rate review, Oncor began to amortize as operating costs or SG&A expenses certain costs previously 
deferred as regulatory assets over the recoverability period under the rate teview order and recognized higher costs related to the current period. The 

additional expense recognized included $14 million related to storm recovery costs and SIO million related to pension and OPEB costs (including $3 million 
reported in SO&A expense). 

Depreciation and unionization increased $65 million, or 13%, to $557 million in 2009. The increase reflected $34 million in higher depreciation due to 
ongoing investments in property, plant and equipment (including S 11 million related to advanced meters), $24 million due to increased depreciation and 
amortization rates implemented upon the PUCT approval of new tariffs in September 2009 and 57 million in higher amortization of regulatory assets 
associated with sccuritization bonds (with an offsetting increase in revenues). 

SG&A expenses increased $30 million. or 18%, to $194 million in 2009. The increase reflected $12 million related to advanced meters and $3 million 
in additional expense recognition as a result of the PUCT's final order in the rate review, both of which have related revenue increases, $8 million in higher 

professional and contractor fees driven by outsourcing transition and CREZ development activities and $6 million in higher costs related to ernployee benefit 
plans. partially offset by a 53 million one-time reversal of bad debt expense due to the PUCT's finalization of the Certification of Retail Electric Providers rule 
in April 2009. Write-offs of uncollectible amounts owed by nonaffiliated REPs are deferred as a regulatory asset. 

Taxes other than amounts related to income taxes decreased $5 million, or 2°,f3, to $250 million in 2009 reflecting a decrease in local franchise fees due 
to decreased volumes of electricity delivered. 

Sec Note 4 to Financial Statements for a discussion of the $860 million goodwill impairment charge recorded in 2008. 

Other income totaled $49 million in 2009 and S45 million in 2008. The 2009 and 2008 amounts included accretion of an adjustment (discount) to 
regulatory assets resulting from purchase accounting totaling $39 million and $44 million, respectively. The 2009 amount also included $10 million due to the 

reversal of exit liabilities recorded in purchase accounting related to the termination of outsourcing arrangements. See Note 19 to Financial Statements. 

Other deductions totaled $34 million in 2009 and $19 million in 2008 The 2009 amount included a S25 million write off of regulatory assets (see Note 
24 to Financial Statements). The 2009 and 2008 amounts included costs totaling $2 million and S13 million, respectively, associated with a rate settlement 

with certain cities in 2006. 

Interest income decreased $2 million. or 4%, to $43 million in 2009. The decrease reflected $4 million in lower reimbursement of transition bond 
interest from TCEH due to lower remaining principal amounts of the bonds and $2 million in lower interest income on temporary cash investments and 
restricted cash due to lower interest ratcs, partially offset by $4 million in higher earnings on investments held for certain employee benefit plans. 

Interest expense and related charges increased $29 million, or 9%. to $346 million in 2009. The increase reflected $17 million in higher average 

borrowings, reflecting ongoing capital investments. The increase also reflected $12 million due to higher average interest rates, which was driven by 
refinancing of short-term borrowings with S1.5 billion of senior secured notes issued in September 2008. The majority of the proceeds of the September 2008 
notes issuance was used to pay outstanding short-tem borrowings under Oncor's credit facility. 
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Income tax expense totaled 51 73 million in 2009 compared to $221 million in 2008. The effective rate decreased to 35.1% in 2009 from 37.2°i) in 2008, 
excluding the impact of the S860 million goodwill impairment in 2008. (This nondeductible charge distorts the comparison; therefore, it has been excluded for 
purposes of a more meaningful discussion.) The decrease in the rate was driven by the reversal of accrued interest due to the favorable resolution of uncertain 
tax positions. 

Net income for 2009 totaled 5320 million and net loss for 2008 totaled S486 million, The change reflects the S860 million goodwill impairment charge 
recorded in 2008, as well as $33 million in lower results in 2009 driven by the effect of lower average consumption on revenues, the write-off of certain 
regulatory assets and increased interest expense. 
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Energv-Related Convnodiry Contracts and Mark-talilarket A divideS 

The table below summarizes the changes in commodity contract assets and liabditics for the periods presented. The net changes in these assets and 
liabilities. excluding "other activity" as described below, represent the pretax effect on eamings of positions in the commodity-contract portfolio that are 
marked-to-market in net income (see Note 17 to Financial Statements). The portfolio consists primarily of economic hedges but also includes trading 
positions. 

Year Ended December 31, 
2010 2009 2008 

Commodity contract net asset (liability) as of beginning of period S 	1,718 $ 	430 $ 	(1,917) 
Senlements of positions (a) (943) (518) 39 
Changes in fair value (b) 2,162 1,741 2,294 
Other activity (c) 160 65 14 
Commodity contract net asset as of end of period $ 	3,097 $ 	1 718 =,./==, S 	430 

Represents reversals of previously recognized unrealized gains and losses upon settlement (offsets realized gains arid losses recognized in the senleMent 
period). 
Represents unrealized gains and losses recognized, primarily related to positions in the long-term hedging program (see discussion above under "Long-
Term Hedging Program). Includes gains and losses recorded at contract inception dates (see Note 17 to the Financial Statements). 
The 2010 amount includes a $116 million noncash gain on termination of a long-terni power sales contract. Includes amounts related to options 
purchased and sold and physical natural gas exchange transactions. 

Unrealized gains and losses related to commodity contracts are summarized as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 
2010 2009 2008 

Unrealized gains (losses) related to contracts marked-to-market 1,219 $ 	1,223 $ 	2,333 
Ineffectiveness gains (losses) related to cash flow hedges 2 2 4) 
Total unrealized gains (losses) related to commodity contracts $ 	2.329 
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Maturity Table — The following table presents the net commodity contract asset arising from recognition of fair values under mark-to-market accounting as 
of December 31, 2010. scheduled by the source of fair value and contractual settlement dates of the underlying positions. 

Maturity dotes of unrealized commodity contract asset as of December 31.2010 

Let duo Excess of 

source of fair vaine jat.._...._ar ........ 1-3 years 4,5 vears _...!....att_s Total 

Prices actively quoted $ 	(139) $ 	(9) $ 	— $ 	— $ 	(148) 
Prices provided by other external sources 1.248 1,655 — — 2,903 
Prices based on models (7) (21) 370 — 342 

Total $ 	1.102 $ 	1,625 $ 	370 $ 	— $ 	3097 
1  

Percentage of total fair value 36% 52% 12% 
.1•119111111•1=1111 

— % 
.=C1=.20. 

100°6 

The "prices actively quoted" category reflects only exchange traded contracts for which active quotes are readily available. The "prices provided by 
other external sourcee category represents forward commodity positions valued using prices for which over-the-cottnter broker quotes are available in active 
markets. Over-the-counter quotes for power in ERCOT that afe deemed active markets (excluding the West hub) generally extend through 2013 and over-the-
counter quotes for natural gas generally extend through 2015, depending upon delivery point. The 'prices based on modele category contains the value of all 
nonexchange traded options. valued using option pricing models. In addition. this category contains other contractual arrangements that may have both 
forward and option components, as well as other contracts that are valued using proprietary long-term pricing models that utilize certain market based inputs. 
See Note 15 to Financial Statements for fair value disclosures and discussion of fair value measurements. 
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'COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Cash tlow hedge activity reported in other comprehensive income included (all amounts after-tax): 

Net decrease in fair value of cash flow hedges: 

Year Ended December 31, 

2010 2009 2008 

Commodities $ — $ 	(20) $ \ 	(8) 
Financing — interest rate swaps — — (175) _ 

.--.7.7--- (20) _ (183) . 
Derivative value net losses reported in net income that relate to hedged transactioni recognized in the period: 

Commodities i t I 11 
Financing — interest rate swaps 58 119 111 

59 130 122 
Total income (loss) effect of cash flow hedges reported in other comprehensive incorne $ 	59 $ 	110 1_(61) 

We have historically used, and expect to continue to use. derivative instruments that are effective in offsetting future cash flow variability in interest 
rates and energy commodity prices, but as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, there were no such instruments accounted for as cash flow or fair value hedges. 
Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income include the value of dedesignated and terminated cash flow hedges at the time of such dedesignation/ 
termination. less amounts reclassified to earnings as the original hedged transactions are recognized, unless the hedged transactions become probable of not 
occurring. The effects of the hedge will be recorded in the statement of income as the hedged transactions are actually settled and affect earnings. Also see 
Note 17 to Financial Statements. 
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FINANCIAL CONDITION 

Liattiaits and Capital Resources 

Operating Cash Flows 

Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to Year Ended December 31. 2009— Cash provided by operating acttvities declined $605 million to S1.106 
billion in 2010. The deconsolidation of Oncor in 2010 reduced reported cash provided by operating activities by $932 million. The decrease also reflected a 
S350 million effect of the amended accounting standard related to the accounts receivable securitization program (see Note 10 to Financial Statements), under 
which the $383 million of funding under the program upon the January 1. 2010 adoption is reported as a use of opetating cash flows and a source of financing 
cash flows, with subsequent 2010 activity reported as financing, and the 533 million decline in funding in 2009 is reported as use of operating cash flows. 
These accounting effects were partially offset by improved working capital performance, particularly in retail accounts receivable due to the effects in 2009 of 
implementing a new customer information management system and more timely collections in 2010, as well as higher cash earnings from the competitive 
business driven by the contribution of the new generation units. 

Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to Year Ended December 31. 2008 — Cash provided by operating activities totaled $1.711 billion and 
51 505 bit lion in 2009 and 2008, respectively. The 5206 million inerease reflected: 

• a $489 million decrease in cash interest paid due to the payment of approximately $465 million of interest with an increase in toggle rtotes instead 
of cash as discussed under "Toggle Notes Interest Election" below, and 

• a $57 million favorable impact of timing of advanced metering surcharges, 

partially offset by a $347 million decrease in net margin deposits received primarily due to the effects of forward natural gas prices on positions in the long-
term hedging program. 

Depreciation and amortization expense reported in the statement of cash flows exceeded the amount reported in the statement of income by $371 
million. $418 million and 5460 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The difference represented amortization of 
nuclear fuel, which is reported as fuel costs in the statement of income consistent with industry practice. and amortization of intangible net assets and debt fair 
value discounts arising from purchase accounting that is reported in various other income statement line items including operating revenues, fuel and 
purchased power costs and delivery fees, other income and interest expense and related charges. 

Financing Cash Flows 

Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2009 Cash used in financing activities totaled $264 million in 2010 
compared to cash provided of $422 million in 2009. The $686 million change was driven by debt repurchases under our liability management program (see 
Note 11 to Financial Statements). partially offset by the effect of the arnended accounting standard related to the accounts receivable securitization program 
(see Note 10 to Financial Statements), under which the $96 million of funding under the program in 2010 is reported as financing cash flows. 

Year Ended December 31, .?009 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2008 Cash provided by financing activities totaled $422 million and S2.837 
billion in 2009 and 2008, respectively. The 52.415 billion decrease was driven by $1.253 billion in net proceeds from the sale of noncontrolling interests in 
2008 (see Note 14 to Financial Statements) and reduced borrowings in 2009 related to the construction of new generation facilities, which were nearing 
completion. 

Sec Note 11 to Financial Statements for further detail of short-term borrowings and long-term debt. 
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investing Cash Flows 

Year Ended December 31. 2010 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2009 • Cash used in investing activities totakd $468 million and $2.633 
billion in 2010 and 2009, respectively. Capital expenditures (excluding nuclear fuel) totaled $838 million and $2.348 billion in 2010 and 2009, respectively. 
The SI.510 billion decline in capital spending reflected the deconsolidation of Oncor ($998 million capital expenditures in 2009) (see Note 3 to Financial 
Statements) in 2010 and a decrease in spending related to the construction of the now complete new generation facilities. The decline In cash used in investing 
activities also reflected a $400 million cash investment posted with a derivative counterparty in 2009 that was retumed in 2010. 

Capital expenditures in 2010 consisted or. 

• $487 million for mnjor maintenance, prirnarily in existing generation operations; 

• $140 million related to completion of the construction of a second generation unit and mine development at Oak Grove; 

3106 millinn for environmental expenditures related to existing generation units; 

$42 million for information technology and other corporate investments; 

• $34 million related to nuclear generation developinent, and 

• •$29 million primarily related to the new retail customer infomiation system. 

Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2008 Cash used in investing activities totaled $2.633 billion and $2.934 
billion in 2009 and 2008, respectively, including capital expenditures totaling $2.348 billion and $2.849 billion, respectively. The decline in capital spending 
primarily reflected a decrease in spending related to the construction of the new generation facilities, partially ofnet by capital expenditures in the regulated 
business for advanced metering deployment and CREZ. 

Debt Financing ,4ctivity — Activities related to short-term borrowings and long-term debt during the year ended December 31, 2010 are as follows (all .  
amounts presented are principal, and repayments and repurchases include amounts related to capital leases and exclude amounts related to debt discount, 
financing and reacquisition expenses): 

Borrowings (111) 

Repayments 

and 

Repurchases (b) • 

TCEH 1,779 $ 2,758 
EFCH 9 
EF1H 2,180 
EFH Corp. 1.255 4,444 

Total long-term 5.214 7.211 
Total short-terrn — TCEH tc) 172 

Total 5.386 3 7.211 

(a) 	Includes the following activities (see Note 11 to Financial Statements): 

• $500 million of EFH Corp. 10% Notes issued by EFH Corp., the proceeds of which may be used in debt exchanges or 
repurchases. 

• $350 million of TCEH 15°0 Notes issued by TCEH, the net proceeds from which were used to repurchase TCEH Senior 
Notes. 

• Principal increases in payment of accrued interest totaling $194 million and $205 million of EFH Corp. nnd TCEH Toggle 
Notes, respectively. 

• $561 million of EFH Corp„ l0% Notes issued by EFI1 Corp. in debt exchanges. 

• $2.180 billion of EFIH 10°0 Notes issued by El:1H in debt exchanges. 

• $1.221 billion of TCEH 15°0 Notes issued by TCFH in debt exchanges 

(b) Includes 55.862 billion of noncash retirements (including discounts captured on cash repurchases) as a result of 2010 debt exchange 
and repurchase transactions discussed in Note 11 to Financial Statements. 

(c) Short-term amounts represent net borrowings/repayments. 

See Note 11 to Financial Statements for further detail of long-term debt and other financing arrangements: 
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We regularly monitor the capital and bank credit markets for liability management opponunities that we believe will improve our balance sheet, 
including capturing debt discount and emending debt matunties. As a result, wc may engage, from time to time, in liability management transactions. Future 
activities under the liability management program may include the purchase of our outstanding debt for cash in open market purchases or privately negotiated 
transactions (inchiding pursuant to a Section I Ob-5(l) plan) or via public or private exchange or tender offers. Moreover, as part of our liability management 
program. we may refinance our existing debt, including the TCEH Senior Secured Crcdit Facilities. 

In evaluating whether to undertake any liability management transaction, including any refinancing. we will take into account liquidity requirements, 
prospects for future access to capital, contractual restrictions. the market price of our outstanding debt and other factors. Any liability management 
transaction, including any refinancing, may occur on a stand-alone basis or in connection with, or immediately following, other liability management 
transactions. 

Available Liquidity — The following table summarizes changes in available liquidity for the year ended December 31. 2010 (excluding Oncor): 

Available Liquidity 

December 31, 2010 December .31, 2009 Çllanee 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,534 $ 1,161 $ 	373 
TCEH Revolving Credit Facility (a) 1.440 1,721 (281) 
TCEH Letter of Credit Facility 261 399 ((38) 

Subtotal $ 3,235 S 3,281 $ 	(46) 
Short-term investment (b) — 490 (490) 

Total liquidity (c) $ 3 '35 3.77 l $ 	(539 

(a) As of December 31, 2010 and 2009. the TCEH Revolving Credit Facility includes $94 million and 5141 million, respectively, of commitments from 
Lehman that are only available from the fironting banks and the swiogline lender. 

(b) December 31, 2009 amount includes $425 million cash investment (including accrued interest) and $65 million in letters of credit posted related to 
certain interest rate and commodity hedge transactions. Pursuant to the related agrecinent, the collateral was returned in March 2010. See Note 17 to 
Financial Statements. 

(c) As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, total liquidity includes 5465 million and $333 million, respectively, of net receipts of margin deposits front 
counterparties related to commodity positions (net of $166 million and $187 million, respectively, posted with counterporties). 

Note: Available liquidity in the future could benefit from additional exercises of the payment-in-kind (PIK) option on the EFH Corp, Toggle Notes and TCEll 
Toggle Notes, which for the remaining paynient dates frorn May 2011 through November 2012 would avoid cash interest payments of approximately S424 
million. 

See Note 11 to Financial Statements for additional discussion of the credit facilities. 

The S536 million decrease in available liquidity reflected the impact of the liability management program and an increase in letters of credit posted a.s 
collateral support with ERCOT in conjunction with ERCOrs transition to a nodal wholesale market structure. 

Pension and OPEB Plan Funding— Pension and OPER plan funding is expected to total $175 million and $26 million, respectively. in 201 I. Based 
on the funded status of the pension plan as of December 31, 2010, funding is expected to total S932 million for the 2011 to 2015 period. The increase in 
funding reflects requirements under the Pension Protection Act of 2006, which were impacted by thc effect of lower interest ratcs in the computation of our 
pension liability. Oncor is expected to fund 72% of this amount consistcnt with its share of the pension liability. We made pension and OPEB contributions of 
$45 million and $25 million, respectively, in 2010. of which $58 million was contributed by Oncor. 

See Note 20 to Financial Statements for more information regarding the pension and OPEB plans, including the funded status of the plans as of 
December 31. 2010. 
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Tonle Notes Interest Election — EFI-1 Corp. and TCEH have the option every six months at their discretion, ending with the interest payment due 
November 2012. to use the payment-in-kind (PIK) feature of their respective toggle notes in lieu of making cash interest payments. We elected to do so 
heginning with the May 2009 interest payment as an efficient and cost-effective method to further enhance liquidity. Once EFH Corp. and/or TCEH make a 
PIK elution, the election is valtd for each succeeding interest payment period until EFH Corp. and/or TCEH revoke the applicable election. Use of the PIK ' 
feature will he evaluated at each election period, taking into account market conditions and other relevant factors at such time. 

EFH Corp made its 2010 and 2009 interest payments and will make its May 2011 interest payment on the EFH Corp. Toggle Notes by using thc PIK 
feature of those notes. During such applicable interest periods, the interest rate on these notes is incrcased from 11.25% to 12.00%. EFH Corp increased the 
aggregate principal amount of the notes by 5194 million in 2010 (excluding $130 million principal amount issued to EFIH as holder of S2.166 billion 
principal amount of EFH Corp. Toggle Notes acquired in the debt exchange completed in August 2010 that is eliminated in consolidation) and $309 million in 
2009 and is expected to further increase the aggregate principal amount of the notes by $34 million in May 2011 (excluding $138 million principal amount 
expected to be issued to EF1H). The elections increased liquidity in 2010 by an amount equal to $182 milliod(excluding $122 million related to notes held by 
FEIN) and is expected to tiirther increase liquidity in May 2011 by an amount equal to a currently estimated $32 million (excluding $129 million related to 
notes held by EFIH). constituting the amounts of cash interest that otherwise would have been payable orrthe notes. 

Similarly. TCEH made its 2010 and 2009 interest payments arid will make its May 2011 interest payment on the TCEH Toggle Notes by using the PIK 
feature of those notes. During the applicable interest periods, the interest rate on the notes is increased from l0.50% to 11.25%. TCEH increased the aggregate 
principal amount of the notes by approximately S212 million in 2010, including $7 million principal amount paid to EFH Corp. and eliminated in 
consolidation, and $202.5 million in 2009 and is expected to further increase the aggregate principal amount of the notes by $79 million M May 2011. The 
elections increased liquidity in 2010 by an amount equal to $198 million and is expected to further increase liquidity in May 2011 by an amount equal to an 
estimated $74 million, constituting the arnounts of cash interest that otherwise would have been payable on the notcs. 

Liquidiv Effects of Commodity Hedging and Trading Activities — Commodity hedging and trading transactions typically require a counterparty to. 
post collateral if the forward price of the underlying commodity moves such that the hedging or trading instrument held by such counterparty has declined in 
value. TCEH uses cash. letters of credit, asset-backed liens and other forms of credit support to satisfy such collateral obligations. In addition, TCEH's 
Commodity Collateral Posting Facility (CCP facility). an uncapped senior secured revolving credit facility that matures in December 2012. funds the cash 
collateral posting requirements for a significant portion of the positions in the long-term hedging program not otherwise secured by e first-lien in the assets of 
TCEH. The aggregate principal amount of the CCP facility is determined by the exposure arising from higher forward market prices. regardless of the amount 
of such exposure. un a portfolio of certain natural gas hedging transaction volunies. Including those hedging transactions where margin deposits are covered 
by unlimited borrowings under the CCP facility, as of December 3 I, 2010, more thnn 95% of the long-term natural gas hedging program transactions were 
secured by a first-lien interest in the assets of TCEH that is pari passu with the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities, the effect of which is a significant reduction 
in the liquidity exposure associated with collateral requirements for those hedging transactions. Due to declines in forward natural gas prices, no amounts 
were borrowed against the CCP facility at December 31, 2010 and 2009. See Note 11 to Financial Statements for more inforrnation about the TCEli Senior 
Secured Facilities, which includes the CCP facility. 
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As of December 31. 2010, TCEH received or posted cash and letters of credit for commodity hedging and trading activities as follows: 

$165 million in cash has been posted with counterparties for exchange cleared transactions (iricluding initial margin), as compared to $183 
million posted as of December 31. 2009; 

• $630 rnillion in cash has been received from counterparties, net of $1 million in cash posted, for over-the-counter and other non-exchange cleared 
transactions, as compared to S516 million received, net of $4 million in cash posted, as of December 31, 2009: 

• $473 million in letters of credit have been posted with counterparties, as compared to $379 million posted as of December 31, 2009, and 

• $25 million in letters of credit have been received from counterparties. as compared to $44 million received as of December 31, 2009. 

With respect to exchange cleared transactions, these transactions typically require initial margin (i.e., the upfront cash and/or letter of credit posted lo 
take into account the size and maturity of the positions and credit quality) in addition to variance margin (i.e., the daily cash margin posted to take into 
account cluinges in the value of the underlying commodity). The amount of initial margin required is generally defined by exchange rules. Clearing agents, 
however, typically have the right to request additional initial margin based on various factors including market depth, volatility and credit quality, which may 
be in the form of cash, letters of crcdit, a guaranty or other forms as negotiated with thc r.learing agent. With respect to cash collateral that is received, such 
cash collateral is either used for working capital and other corporate purposes, including reducing short-term borrowings under credit facilities, or it is 
required to be deposited in a separate account and restricted from being used for working capital and other corporate purposes. With respect to over-the-
counter transactions, counterparties generally have the right to substitute letters of credit for such cash collateral.ln such event, the cash collateral previously 
posted would he returned to such counterparties thereby reducing liquidity in the event that it was not restricted. As of December 31, 2010, restricted cash 
collateral held totaled $33 million. See Note 24 to Financial Statements regarding restricted cash. 

With the long-term hedging program, increases in natural gas prices generally result in increased cash collateral and letter of credit postings to 
counterpartics. As of Decemher 31, 2010, approxirnately 300 million MMBtu of positions related to the long-term hedging program were not directly secured 
on an asset-lien basis and thus have cash collateral posting requirements. The uncapped CCP facility supports the collateral posting requirements related to 
most of these transactions. 

Interest Rate Swap Transactions — See Note t 1 to Financial Statements for 'FCEF1 interest rate swaps entered into as or December 31, 2010. 

Income Ta.x Refunds/Payments — Income tax payments related to the Texas margin tax are expected to total approximately $65 million, and net 
refunds of federal ;ncoine taxes are expected to total approximately $57 million in the next 12 months. Payments in the year ended December 31, 2010 totaled 
$64 million. In 2009, we received a refund totaling $98 million in income taxes and related interest related to IRS audits of 1993 and 1994 income tax returns 
and made net payments totaling approximately $44 million related to the Texas margin tax. In 2008, we received net federal income tax refunds of 5229 
million. including $98 mtllion related to 2007 tax payments and $142 million related to a net operating loss carryback to the 2006 tax year. 

As discussed in Note 7 to Financial Statements, we assess uncertain tax positions under a "more-likely-than-not" standard. We cannot reasonably 
estimate the ultimate amounts and timing of tax payments associated with uncertain tax positions, but expect that no material federal income tax payments 
related to such positions will he made in 2011. 
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Accounts Receivable Sccuritization Prograrn — TXU Energy participates in ETH Corp.'s accounts receivable securitization program with financial 
institutions (the funding entities). As discussed in Note 1 to Financial Statements, in accordance with amended transfers and servicing accounting standards, 
the trade accounts receivable amounts under the program are reported as pledged balances and the related funding amounts are reported as short-term 

borrowings. Under the program, TXU Energy (originator) sells retail trade accounts receivable to TXU Receivables Company, a consolidated wholly-owned 
bankruptcy-remote direct subsidiary of EFH Corp., which sells undivided interests in the purchased accounts receivable for cash to entities established for this 
purpose by the funding entities. All new trade receivables under the program generated by the originator are continuously purchased by TXU Receivables 

Company with the proceeds from collections of receivables previously purchased. Funding under the program totaled $96 million and $383 million as of 
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. See Note 10 tò Financial Statements for a more complete description of the program including amendments to the 
program in June 2010 and a related reduction in funding, the impact of the program on the financial statements for the periods presented and the contingencies 
that could result in termination of the program and a reduction of liquidity should the underlying financing be settled. 

Liquidity Needs, Inchiding Capital Expenditures — Capital expenditures, including capitalized interest, for 2011 are expected to total approximately 
$700 million and include: 

$525 million for investtnents in TCEH generation facilities, including approximately: 

• $450 million for major maintenance. primarily in generation opeiations, and 

• S75 million for environmental expenditures related to generation units (a); 

$125 million for nuclear fuel purchases, and 

$50 milliOn for information technology and other corporate investmems. 

(a) 	Expenditures are classified as environmental in nature if the projects are the direct result of environmental regulations 

We expect cash flows from operations combined with availability under our credit facilities discussed in Note 11 to Financial Statements to provide 
sufficient liquidity to fund our current obligations, projected working capital requirements and capital spending for a period th.at includes the next twelve 
months. 

Distributions front Omer — Until December 31, 2012, distributions paid by Oncor to its members are limited to an amount not to exceed Oncor's net 
income determined in accordance with GAAP, subject to certain defined adjustments. Distributions are further limited by an agreement that Oncoes 
regulatory capital structure, as determined by the PUCT, will be at or below the assumed debt-to-equity ratio established periodically by the PUCT for 
ratemaking purposes, which is currently set at 60% debt to 40% equity. (See Note 13 to Financial Statements.) Also, see "Regulatory Matters —Oncor 

Matters with the PUCT" for discussion of a rate review filed by Oncor in January 2011 that, runong other things. requests a revised regulatory capital 'structure 
of 55% dcbt to 45% equity. 

In January 2009, the PUCT awarded certain CREZ construction projects to Oncor. See discussion below under "Regulatory Matters — Oncor Matters 
with the PUCT." As a result of the increased capital expenditures for CREZ and the debt-to-equity ratio cap, wc expect distributions to EFH Corp. from Oncor 
will be substantially reduced or temporarily discontinued during the CREZ construction period, which is expected to be completed in 2013 

CapitaItation — Our capitalization ratios consisted of 120.9% and 104.6% long-term debt, less amounts due currently, and (20.9)°0 and (4.6)% 
common stock equity, as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Total debt to capitalization, including short-term debt, was 119.66 i and 104.4% as of 
December 3 1. 2010 and 2009, respectively. 
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Financial Covenants. Credit Rating Provisions and Cross Default Provisions - The tams of certain of ottr financing arrangements contain 
maintenance covenants with respect to leverage ratios andlor minimum net worth. As of December 3 l. 2010, we were in compliance with all such 
maintenance covenants. 

Covenants and Restricuons under Financing Arrangements — Each of the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities and the indentures governing substantially 
all of the debt we have issued in connection with, and subsequent to, the Merger contain covenants that could have a material impact on the liquidity and 
operations of EFH Corp. and its subsidiaries. 

Adjusted EBITDA (as used in the restricted payments covenant contained in the indenture governing the EFH Corp. Senior Secured Notes) for the year 
ended December 31, 2010 totaled S5,240 billion for EFH Corp. See Exhibits 99(b). 99(c) and 99(d) for a reeonciliation of net income to Adjusted EBITDA 
for EMI Corp., TCEH and EFIH, respectively, for the ycars ended December 31, 2010 and 2009. 
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The table below sumrnarizes TCEH's secured debt to Adjusted EBITDA ratio under the maintenance covenant in the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities 
and various other financial ratios of EF11 Corp.. EF1H and TCEH that are applicable under certain other threshold covenants in the TCEH Senior Secured 
Facilities and the indentures governing the TCEH Senior Notes, the TCEH Senior Secured Second Lien Notes (for 2010), the EFH Corp Senior Notes, the 
EFH Corp. Senior Secured Notes and the EF1H Notes as of December 31, 20 10 and 2009. The debt incurrence and restricted payments/limitations on 
investrnents coVenants thresholds described hclow represent levels that must be met in order for EFH Corp., EFIH or TCEH to incur certain permitted debt or 
make certain restricted payments and/or investments. EFH Corp. and its consolidated subsidiaries arc in compliance with their maintenance covenants. 

Maintenance Covenant: 
TCEH Scnior Seeured Facilities: 	. 

Secured debt to'Adjusted EB1TDA ratio (a) 
Debt Incurrence Covenants: 

EFH Corp. Senior Secured Notes: • 

December 31, 

2010 

December 31, 

2009 

Threshold Lesel as of 

December 31. 2010 

5.19 to 1.00 4.76 to 1 00 Must not exceed 6.75 to 1.00 (b) 

EFFI Corp. fixed charge coverage ratio 1.3 to 1.0 1.2 to 1 0 At least 2.0 to 1.0 
. 	TCEH fixed charge cover'age ratio 1.5 to 1.0 1.5 to 1.0 At least 2.0 to 1.0 

EFIII Notes: 
EFIH fixed charge coverage ratio lc) (d) 53 8 to 1.0 At !east 2.0 to 1.0 

TCEli Senior Notes and TCEH Senior Secured Second Lien Notes: 
TCEH fixed charge coverage ratio 1.5 ti; 1.0 15 to 1.0 At least 2.0 to 1.0 

TCEII Senior Secured Facilities: 
TCEH fixed charge coverage ratio 1.5 to 1.0 1.5 to 1 0 At least 2.0 to 1.0 

Restricted Payments/Limitations on Investments Covenants: 
EFH Corp. Senior Notes: 

' 	General restrictions (Sponsor Group payments): 
EFH Corp. leverage ratio 8.5 to 1.0 9.4 to 1 0 _ Equal to or less than 7.0 to 1.0 

F.FH Corp. Senior Secured Notes.  
_ General restrictions (non-Sponsor Group payments): 

EFH Corp. fixed charge coverage ratio (e) 1.6 to 1.0 1.4 to 1.0 At least 2.0 to 1.0 , General restrictions (Sponsor Group payments): 
EFH Corp. fixed charge coverage ratio (e) 1 3 to 1.0 1.2 to 1.0 At least 2.0 to 1.0 
EFH Corp. leverage rntio 8.5 to 1.0 9.4 to 1;0 Equal to or less than 7.0 to 1.0 

' EFIH Notes: 
General restrictions (non-EFH Corp. payments): 

EF1H fixed charge coverage ratio (c) (t) 23.9 to 1.0 3.9 to 1.0 'At least 2 0 to 1.0 
General restrictions (EFH Corp payments): 

EF1H fixed charge coverage ratio (c) (f) (d) 53 8 to 1.0 At least 2.0 to 1.0 
EFII-I leverage ratio 	-- 	

. 5.3 to 1.0 4.4 to 1.0 Equal to or less than 6.0 to 1.0 
TCEH Senior Notes and TCEH Senior Secured Second Lien Notes. 

TCEH fixed charge coverage ratio 1.5 to 1.0 1.5 to 1.0 At least 2.0 to 1.0 
TCEH Senior Secured Facilities: 

Payments to Sponsor Group: 
TCEH total debt to Adjusted EBITDA ratio 7.9 to 1.0 8.4 to 1.0 Equal to or less than 6.5 to 1.0 

(a) In accordance with the terms of the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities and as the result of the new Sandow and first Oak Grove generating units achieving 
average capacity factors of greater than or equal to 70% for the three months ended March 31. 2010, the maintenance covenant as of December 31, 
2010 includes Adjusted EBITDA for the units and the proportional amount of outstanding debt under the Delayed Draw Term LOan (see Note 11 to 

r 
 Financial Statements) applicable to the two unit.s. 

(b) Threshold level will decrease to a maximum of 6.50 to 1 00 effective Decetnber 31, 2011. Calculation excludes secured debt that ranks junior to the 
TCEII Senior Secured Facilities. 

(c) Although EFIII currently meets thc fixed charge coverage ratio threshold applicable to certain covenants contained in the indentures governing the 
EF1H Notes. EFIH's ability to use such thresholds to incur debt or make restricted payments/investments is currently limited by the covenants contained 
in the EFH Corp. Senior Notes and the EFH Corp. Senior Secured Notes. 

(d) l EFIH meets the ratio threshold. Because EF1H's interest income exceeds tnterest expense, the result of the ratio calculation is not meaningful. 
(e) The EFH Corp. fixed charge coverage ratio for non-Sponsor Group payments includes the results of Oncor Holdings and its subsidiaries. The EFH 

Corp. fixed charge coverage ratio for Sponsor Group payments excludes the results of Duca Holdings and its subsidiaries. 
(1) 	The EFIH fixed charge coverage ratio for non-EFH Corp payments includes the results of Oncor Holdings and its subsidiaries. The EF1H fixed charge 

coverage ratio for EFH Corp. payments excludes the results of Oncor Hohtings and its subsidiaries. 

97 

0001243 



Table of ftifllrtiis 

Material Credit Rating Covenants and Credit Worthiness Effects on Liquidiry— As a result of TCEH's non-investment grade credit rating and 
considering collateral thresholds of certain retail and wholesale zommodity contracts, as of December 31, 2010, counterparties to those contracts could have 
required TCEH to post up to an aggregate of $17 million in additional collateral. This amount largely represents the below market terms of these contracts as 
of December 31, 2010; thus, this amount will vary depending on the value of these contracts on any given day. 

Certain transmission and distribution utilities in Texas have tariffs in place to assure adequate credit worthiness of any REP to support the REP% 
obligation to collect securitization bond-related (transition) charges on behalf of the utility. Under these tariffs, as a result of TCEH's below investment grade 
credit rating, TCEH is required to post collateral support in an amount equal to estimated transition charges over specified time periods. The amount of 
collateral support required to be posted, as well as the time period of transition charges covered, varies by utility. As of December 31, 2010, TCEH has posted 
collateral support in the form of letters of credit to the applicable utilities in an aggregate amount equal to $28 million, with $14 million of this amount posted 
for the benefit of Oncor. 

The PUCT has rules in place to assure adequate credit worthiness of each REP, including the ability to return customer deposits, if necessary. Under 
these rules. as of December 31, 2010, TCEH posted letters of credit in the arnount of S73 million, which arc subject to adjustments. 

The RRC has rules in place to assure adequate credit worthiness of parties that have mining reclamation obligations. Under these rules, should the RRC 
determine that the credit worthtness of Luminant Generation Company 1,LC (a subsidiary of TCEI-1) is not sufficient 10 support its reclamation obligations. 
TCEH may be required to post cash or letter of credit collateral support in an amount currently estimated to be approximately $650 million to $900 million. 
The actual amount (if required) could vary depending upon numerous factors, including Luminant Generation Company LI.C's credit worthiness and the level 
of mining reclamation obligations. 

ERCOT has rules in place to assure adequate credit worthiness of parties that participate in the "day-ahead" and "real-time markets" operated by 
ERCOT. Under these rules, TCEH has posted collateral support, predominantly in the form of letters of credit, totaling $240 million as of December 31, 2010 
(which is subject to weekly adjustments based on settlement activity with ERCOT). This arnount includes an increase of approximately $2C0 million in letters 
of credit in the fourth quarter 2010 driven by the December 2010 implementation of the nodal wholesale market. 

Other arrangements of EFH Corp. and its subsidiaries, including Oncor's credit facility, the accounts receivable securitization program (see Note 10 to 
Financial Statements) and certain leases, contain terms pursuant to which the interest rates charged under the agreements may bc adjusted depending on the 
relevant credit ratings. 

In the event that any or all of the additional collateral requirements discussed above are triggered, we believe we will have adequate liquidity to satisfy 
such requirements. 

Material Cross Default Provisions — Certain financing arrangements contain provisions that may result in an event of default if there were a failure 
under other financing arrangements to meet payment terms or to observe other covenants that could or does result in an acceleration of payments duc. Such 
provIsions are referred to as "cross default.' provisions. 

A default by TCEH or any of its restricted subsidiaries in respect of indebtedness, excluding indebtedness relating to the accounts receivable 
securitization program, in an aggregate amount in excess of $200 million may result in a cross default under the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities. Under these 
facilities. such a default will allow the lenders to accelerate the maturity of outstanding balances ($22.304 billion as of December 31. 2010) under such 
facilities. 

The indentures governing the TCEll Senior Notas and the TCEH Senior Secured Second Lien Notes contain a cross acceleration provision where a 
payment default at maturity or on acceleration of principal indebtedness under any instrument or instruments of TCEH or any of its restricted subsidiaries in 
an aggregate amount equal to or greater than $250 million may cause the acceleration of the TCEll Senior Notes and TCEH Senior Secured Second Lien 
Notes. 
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Under the terms of a TCEH rail car lease, which had 545 million in remaining lease payments as of December 31, 2010 and terminates in 2017, if 
TCEH failed to perform under agreements causing its indebtedness in aggregate principal amount of $100 million or more to become accelerated, the lessor 

could, arriong other remedies, terminate the lease and effectively accelerate the payment of any remaining lease payments due under the lease. 

Under the terms of another TCEH rail car lease, which had $50 million in remaining lease payments as of December 31,2010 and terminates in 2028, if 
obligations of TCEH in excess of $200 million in the aggregate for payments of obligations to third party creditors under lease agreements, deferred purchase 
agreements or loan or credit agreements are accelerated prior to their original stated maturity, the lessor could, among other remedies, terminate the lease and 
effectively accelerate the payment of any remainlng lease payments due under the lease. 

The indentures goveming the EFH Corp, Senior Secured Notes contain a cross acceleration provision whereby a payment default at maturity or on 

acceleration of principal indebtedness under any instrument or Instruments of EFH Corp. or any of its restricted subsidiaries in an aggregate amount equal to 
or greater than $250 million may cause the acceleration of the EFH Corp. Senior Secured Notes. 

The indentures goveming the EFIH Notes contain a cross acceleration provision whereby a payment default at maturity or on acceleration of principal 

indebtedness under arty instrument or instruments of EF1H or any of its restricted subsidiaries in an aggregate amount equal to or greater than $250 million 
may cause the acceleration of the EFIH Notes. 

The accounts receivable sccuritization program contains a cross default provision with a threshold of $200 million that applies in the aggregateto the 

originator, any parent guarantor of an originator or any subsidtary acting as collection agent under the program. TXU Receivables Company and EFH 
Corporate Services Company (a direct subsidiary of EFH Corp.), as collection agent, in the aggregate have a cross default threshold of $50.000. If any of the 
aforementioned defaults on indebtedness of the applicable threshold were to occur, the program could terminate. 

We enter into encrgy-related and financial contracts, the master forms of which contain provisions whereby an event of default or acceleration of 
settlement would occur if we were to default under an obligation in respect of borrowings in excess of thresholds, which vaiy. stated in the contracts. The 
subsidiaries whose default would trigger cross default vary depending on the contract. 

Each of TCEFfs natural gas hedging agreements and interest rate swap agreements that are secured with a lien on- its assets on a pari passu basis with 
the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities contains a cross default provision:In the event of a default hy TCal or any of its subsidiaries relating to indebtedness 
(such amounts varying by con(ract but ranging from $200 million to $250 million) that results in the acceleration of such deht, then each counterparty under 
these hedging agreements would have the right to terminate its hedge or interest rale swap agreement with TCEH arid require all outstanding obligations under 
such agreement to be settled. 

Other arrangements. including leases, have cross default provisions, the triggering of which would not be expected to result in a significant effect on 
liquidity. 	. 
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Long-Term Contractual Obligations and Commitments— The following table summarizes our contractual cash obligations as of December 31. 2010 
(see Notes 11 tmd 12 to Financial Statements fur additional disc(osures regarding these long-term debt and noncancellable purchase obligations). 

One to 	Three to 	More 

Less Than 	Three 	Five 	Than Five 

Contractual Cash Oblipplions 	One Year 	Years 	Years 	 Vf Ilf3 	Total  

Long-term debt — principal (a) 	 S 	651 S 	533 S 24.233 S 	10,003 $ 35,420 
Long-term debt — interest (b) 	 2.749 	5,378 	3,519 	5,517 	17.163 
Operating and capital leases (c) 	 69 	124 	96 	275 	564 
Obligations under commodity purchase and services agreements (d) 	 1.357 	1.347 	719 	(.023 	4.446 

Total contractual cash obligations 	 S 	4fi  826 $ 7.382 1..21a2 $ 16.818 LI.7424  ,....iimmomonni 

(a)  

(b)  

(c)  
(d)  

Excludes capital lease obligations, unamortized discounts and fair value premiums and discounts related to purchase accounting. Also excludes 5113 
million of additional principal amount of notes expected to be issued in May 2011 and due in 2016 and 2017, reflecting the election of thc PIK feature 
on toggle notes as discussed above under "Toggle Notes Interest Election." 
Includes nct amounts payable under interest rate swaps. Variable interest payments and net amounts payable under interest rate swaps are calculated 
based on interest rates in effect as of December 31, 2010. 
Includes short-term noncancellable leases. 
Includes capacity payments, nuclear Nei and natural gas take-or-pay contracts, coal contracts, business services and nuclear-related outsourcing and 
other purchase commitments. Amounts presented for variable priced contracts assumed the year-end 2010 price remained in effect fur all periods except 
where contractual price adjustment or index-bascd prices were specified. 

The following are not included in the table above: 

contracts between affiliated entities and intercompany debt; 

individual contracts that have an annual cash requirement of less than $1 million (however, multiple contracts with one counterparty that are 
more than IA million on an aggregated basis have been included); 

contracts that are cancellable without payment uf a substantial cancellation penalty; 

employment contracts with management; 

estimated funding of pension plan totaling $175 million in 2011 and approximately $932 million for the 2011 to 2015 period as discussed above 
under "Pension and OPEB Plan Funding," and 

• liabilities related to uneenain tax positions totaling $1.6 billion discussed in Note 7 to Financial Statements as the ultimate timing of payment is 
not known. 

Guarantees —See Note 12 to Financial Statements for details of guarantees. 

OFF—BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS 

See Notes 3 and 12 to Financial Statements regarding VIEs and guarantees. 

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

See Note 12 to Financial Statements for discussion of commitments and contingencies. 

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

See Note 1 to Financial Statements for a discussion of changes in accounting standards. 
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REGULATORY MATTERS 

See discussions in Part l under "Environmental Regulations'and Related Consideratione and in Note 12 to Financial Statements. 

Sunset Reriew 

PURA. the PUCT, the RRC, ERCOT, the TCEQ and the Office of Public Uri* Counsel (OPUC) will be subject to "sunser review by the Texas 
Legislature in the 2011 legislative session. Sunset review includes. generally, a comprehensive review of the need for and effectiveness of an administrative • 
agency (the PUCT, the RRC, ERCOT, the TCEQ or the OPUCI. along with um evaluation of the advisability of any changes to that agency's authorizing 
legislation (PURA). In 2010, the Texas Sunset Advisory Commission adopted various recommendations regarding these agencies and submitted its 
recommendations for the Texas Legislature's consideration early in the session, which began in January 2011. We cannot predict the outcome of the sunset 
review process. 

Oncor Matters with the PUCT 

Stipulation Approved by the PUCT — In April 2008, the PUCT entered an order (PUCT" Docket No. 34077), which became final in June 2008, 
approving the terms of a stipulation relating to the filing in 2007 by Oncor and Texas Holdings with the PUCT pursuant to Section 14.10I(b) of PURA and 
PUCT Substantive Rule 25.75. The filing reported an ownership change involving Texas Holdings purchase of F.FH Corp. Among other things, the 
stipulation required the filing of a rate case by Oncor no later than July I, 2008 based on a test year ended December 31, 2007, which Oncor filed in June 
2008 as discussed below. In July 2008, Nucor Steel filed an appeal of the PUCTs order in the 200th  District Court of Travis County, Texas, A hearing on the 
appeal was held in June 2010, and the District Court affirmed the PUCT order in its entirety. Nucor Steel appealed that ruling to the Third District Court of 
Appeals in Austin. Texas in July 2010. Oral argument before the court is scheduled for March 2011. While Oncor is unable to predict the outcome of the 
appeal. it does not expect the appeal to affect the major provisions of the stipulation. 

Rate Cases — In January 2011, Oncor filed for a rate review with the PUCT and 203 cities (PUCT Docket No. 38929) based on a test year ended 
June 30, 2010. If approved as requested, this review would result in an aggregate annual rate increase of approximately S353 million over the test year period 
adjusted for the impact of weather. Oncor also requested a revised regulatory capital structure of 55% debt to 45% equity. The debt-to-equity ratio established 
by the PUCT is currently set at 60% debt to 40% equity. The PUCT. cities and other participating parties, with input from Oncor. established a procedurai 
schedule for the review. A hearing on the merits of Oncor's request is scheduled to commence in May 2011, and resolution of the proposed increase is 
expected to occur during the second half of 2011 Oncor cannnt predict the outcome of this rate review. 

In June 2008, Oncor filed for a rate review with the PUCT and 204 cities (PUCT Docket No. 35717). In August 2009, the PUCT issued a final order 
with respect to the rate review. The final order approved a total annual revenue requirement for Oncor of S2.64 billion, based on a 2007 test year cost of 
service and customer characteristics. New rates were calculated for all customer classes using 2007 test year billing metrics and the approved class cost 
allocation and rate design. The PUCT staff estimated that the final order resulted in an approximate S I 15 million increase in base rate revenues over Oncor's 
2007 adjusted test year revenues. before recovery of rate case expenses. Prior to implementing the new rates in September 2009, Oncor had already begun 
recovering S45 million of the SI 15 million increase as a result of approved transmission cost recovery factor and energy efficiency cust recovery factor 
filings. such as those discussed below. 
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Key findings by the PUCT in the rate review included.  

• recognizing and affirming Oncoes corporate ring-fence from EFH Corp. and its unregulated affiliates by rejecting a proposed consolidated tax 
savings adjustment arising out of EFH Corp.'s ability to offset Oncor's taxable income against losses from other investments; 

• approving the recovery of all of Oncor's capital investment in its transmission and distribution system, including investment in certain autoinated 
meters that will be replaced pursuant to Oncoes advanced meter deployment plam 

• denying recovery of S25 million of regulatory assets, which resulted in a $1.6 rnillion after-tax loss being recognized in the third quarter 2009, and 

• setting Oncors return on equity at 10.25%. 

New rates were implemented upon approval of new tariffs in September 2009 In November 2009, the PUCT issued an Order on Rehearing that 
established a new rate class but did not change the revenue requirements. In January 2010, the PUCT denied all Second Motions for Rehearing, which made 
the November 2009 Order on Rehearing final and appealable. Oncor and four other parties appealed various portions of the rate case final order to a state 
district court. Oral arguments in the appeal were held in October 2010. In January 2011. the District Court signed its judgment reversing the PUCT with 
respect to two issues: the PUCT's disallowance of certain franchise fees and the PUCTs decision that PURA no longer requires imposition of a rate discount 
for state colleges and universities. Oncor intends to file an appeal with the Austin Court of Appeals in February 2011 with respect to the issues it appealed to 
the District Court and did not prevail upon. as well as the District Court's decision on discounts for state colleges and universities. 

Competitive Renewable Energy Zones (CREZs)— In January 2009, the PUCT awarded Oncor 17 CREZ construction projects (PUCT Docket Nos. 
35665 and 37902) requiring 14 related Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN) amendment proceedings before the PUCT. As of February 2011. 16 
of the 17 projects and 13 of the 14 CCN amendments have been approved by the PUCT. The projects involve the construction of transmission lines tu support 
the transmission of electricity from renewable energy sources, principally wind generation facilities, in west Texas to population centers in the eastern part of 
the state. Based on the selection of final routes for the three default and nine priority projects, identification of additional costs not included in the original 
ERCOT estimate (e.g.. wind interconnection facilities and required modifications to existing facilities) and Oncoes preferred routes for the remaining five 
subsequent projects, Oncor currently estimates that the cost of thesc projects will total approximately $1.75 billiun. Individual project costs could change 
based on final route specifications for the subsequent projects as dztermined by the PUCT. In addition, ERCOT completed a study in December 2010 that will 
allow Oncor and other transmission service providers to build additional facilities to provide further voltage support to the transmission grid as a result of 
CREZ. Oncor and other transmission service providers are working with ERCOT to complete cost estimates for the required work by the second half of 2011. 
As of December 3l , 2010, Oncoes cumulative CREZ-related capital expenditures totaled $316 million. including $202 million during the year ended 
December 31, 2010. It is expected that the necessary permitting actions and other requirements and all construction activities for Oncoes CREZ construction 
projects svill be completed by the end of 2013. 

Advanced Metering Deployment Surcharge Filing (PUCT Docket Nos. 35718 and 36157)— In May 2008, Oncor filed with the PUCT a description 
and request for approval of its proposed advanced metering system deployment plan and proposed surcharge for the recovety of estimated future investment 
for advanced metering deployment. In September 2008, a PUCT order became final approving a settlement reached with the majority of the parties to this 
surcharge filing. Thc settlement included the following major provisions, as amended by the final order in thc 2008 rate review: 

• the full deployment of over three million advanced meters to all residential and most non-residential retail electricity customers in Oncoes service 
area:, 

• a surcharge beginning on January 1, 2009 and continuing for 11 years; 

• a total revenue requirement over the surcharge period of $1.023 billion; 

• estimated capital expenditures for advanced metering facilities of $686 million, 

• related operation and maintenance expenses for the surcharge period of $153 million; 

• $204 million of operation and maintenance expense savings, and 

an advanced metering cost recovery factor of $12 19 per month per residential retail customer and varying front $2.39 to $5.15 per month for non-
restdential retail customers. 
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As of December 31, 2010, Oncor has installed approximately 1,514,000 advanced digital meters, including approximately 854,000 during the year 
ended December 31, 2010. As the new meters are integrated, Oncor reports 15-minute interval. billing-quality electricity consumption data to ERCOT for 
market settlement purposes. The data makes it possible for REPs to support ne* programs and pricing options. Cumulative capital expenditures for the 
deployment of the advanced meter system totaled S360 million as of December 31:2010. including $164 million in 2010. Oncor expects to complete 
installations of the advanced meters by the end of 2012. 

Oncor may, through subsequent reconciliation proceedings. request recovery of additional costs that are reasonable and necessary. While there is a 
presumption that costs spent in accordance with a plan approved by the PUCT are reasonable and necessary, recovery of any costs that are found not to have 
been spent or properly allocated, or not to be reasonable or necessary, must be refunded: 

Transmission Cost Recovery and Rates (PUCT Docket Nos. 37882, 38460, 38938 and 38495)— In order to recover increases in its transmission 
costs, including incremental fees paid to other transmission service providers due to an increase in their rates, Oncor is allowed to request an update twice a 
year to the transmission cost recovery factor (lvRtz) component of its retail delivery rates charged to REPs. In January 2010, an application was filed to 
increase the TCRF, which was administratively aciproved in February 2010 and became effective March I, 2010. This application increased Oncor's 
annualized revenues by approximately $13 million. In July 2010. an application was filed to increase thc TCRF, which was administratively approved in 
August 2010 and became effective September 1, 2010. This application increased Oncor's annualized revenues by approximately $15 Million. ln December 
2010. an application was filed to increase the TCRF, which was administratively approved in January 2011 for implementation effective March 1, 2011. This 
application is 'expected to increase Oncor's annualized revenues by approximately $33 million. 

In July 2010. Oncor filed an application for an interim update of its wholesale transmission rate, and the PUCT approved the new rate effective 
September 29, 2010. Oncor's annualized revenues increased by an estimated $43 million with $27 million of this Increase recoverable through transmission 
rates charged to wholesale customers and the remaining $16 million recoverable front REPs through the TCRF component of Oncor's delivery rates. 

PUCT Rulemaking — In 2010, the PUCT published rule changes in two proceedings that impact transmission rates. In the first proceeding (PUCT 
Project No. 379(19), the PUCT changed the TCRF nik to allow for more complete cost recovery of wholesale transmission charges incurred by distribution 
service providers. Previously, increased wholesale transmission charges were recoverable by distribution service providers, effective with the March 1 and 
September I TCRF updates. but distribution service providers could not recover increased charges incurred prior to such updates. TCRI: filings are still 
effective March 1 and September 1, but distribution service providers will be allowed to inelude wholesale transmission charges based on the effective date of 
the wholesale transmission rate changes. As a result, Oncor defers such increased costs as a regulatory asset until they are recovered in rates. In the second 
proceeding (PUCT Project No. 37519), the PUCT changed the wholesale transmission rules to allow transmission service providers to update their wholesale 
transmission rates twice in a calendar year, as compared to once per year under the previous rules. providing more timely recovery of incremental capital 
investment. Other changes included in this rule (i) tie the effective date of the biannual update portion of the rule to the effective date of the TCRF rule in 
PUCT Project No. 37909, (ii) require the PUCT to consider the effects of rcduccd regulatory lae when setting rates in the next full rate review and 
(iii) provide for administrative approval of uncontested Interim wholesale transmission rate applications. 
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Remand of 1999 Whoksole Transmission Matrix Case (P(JCT Docket No. 38780)— In October 2010, the PUCT established Docket No. 38780 for 
the remand of Docket No. 20381, the 1999 wholesale transmission charge matrix case. A joint settlement agreement was entered into effective October 6. 
2003. This settlement resolves disputes regarding wholesale transmission pricing and charges for the perial ofJanuary 1997 through August 1999. the period 
prior to the September l, 1999 effective date of the legislation that authorized 100% postage stamp pricing for ERCOT wholesale transmission. Since a series 
of appeals has become tinal, the 1999 matrix docket has been remanded to the PUCT to address additional issues. If the appealing parties prevail and the 

PUCT rules adversely with respect to these issues, Oncor could be subject to liabilities totaling up to approximately $22 million. At this time. Oncor cannot 
predict the outcome of these matters 

Application for 2011 Energy Efficiency Cost Recovery Factor (PUCT Docket No. 38217)— In April 2010, Oncor filed an application with the PUCf 
to request approval of an energy efficiency cost recovery factor (EECRF) for 2011. PUCT rules require Oncor to make an annual EECRF filing by May I for 
implementation at the beginning of the next calendar year. In September 2010, the PUCT ruled that Oncor will be allowed to recover $51 million through its 
2011 EECRF, including $45 million for 2011 program costs and an Sll million performance bonus based on 2009 results partially offset by a $5 million 
reduction for over-recovery of 2009 costs. as compared to $54 million recovered through its 2010 EECRF. The resulting rnonthly charge for residential 
customers will be $0.91, as compared to the 2010 residential charge of SO 89 per month. 
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Mine Safety Disclosures — Required by the Dodd-Frank frail Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act 

Safety is a top priority in all our businesses, and accordingly, it is a key component of our focus on operational excellence, our employee performance 
reviews and employee compensation Our health and safety program objectives are to prevent workplace accidents and ensure that all employees return home 
safely and comply with all regulations. 

We currently own and operate 12 surface lignite coal mines in Texas to provide fuel for our electricity generation facilities These minina operations are 
regulated by the US Mine Safety and Health Administration (MSHA) under the Federal Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977, as amended (the Mine Act) as 
well as other regulatory agencies such as the RRC. The MSHA inspects US mines, including ours, on a regular basis and if it believes a violation of the Mine 
Act or any health or safety standard or other retaliation has occurred, it may isslte a citation or order, generally accompanied by a proposed fine or assessment. 
Such citations and orders can be contested and appealed to the Federal Mine Safety and f fenith Review Commission (FMSHRC). which often results in a 
reduction of the severity and amount of fines and assessments and sometimes results in dismissal. The number of citations, orders and proposed assessments 
vary depending on the size of the mine as well as other factors. 	. 

Disclosures related to specific mines pursuant to Section 1503 of the recently enacted Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act 
sourccd from data documented as of.lanuary 10, 2011 and January 17, 2011 in the MSHA Data Retrieval System for the thrcc months and year ended 
December 31, 2010, respectively (except pending legal actions, which are as of December 31, 2010), are as follows: 

Three Months Ended December 31, 2010 	 Year Ended December 31, 2010 

Mine (s) 

Section 104 

S ind S 

Cimtions (b) 

Proposed 

MSDA 

Assessments 

(S thousands) 

tcl 

Pending 

Legal 

Action (d) 

Section 104 

S and S 

Clintiorss (h( 

Proposed 

51SIIA 

Assessments 

(5 thousands) 

le) 

Pending 

Legal 

Acnon td) . 

Beckville 1 — 1 8 18 1 
Big Brown — 2 4 9 1 
Kosse 6 — — 6 1 — 
Oak Hill 3 • 11 1 7 13 i 
Sulphur Springs 1 2 3 3 3 3 
Tatum — — i — — 1 
Three Oaks l — i 3 9 1 
Winfield South — 1 1 i 4 1 

• 
(a) Excludes mines for which there were no applicable events. 
(b) includes MSHA citations for health or safety standards that could significantly and substantially contribute to a serious injury if lett unabated. 
(c) Total dollar value for proposcd assessments received from MSHA for all citations and orders issued in the period ended December 31, 2010, including 

but not !united w Sections 104, 107 and l 10 citations and orders that are not required to be reported. 
(d) Pending actions before the FMSHRC involving a coal or other mine. 

During the three months ended December 31, 2010. our mining operations received two citations and orders under Section 104(d) (Oak Iiill mine). no 
citations, orders or written notices under Sections 104(b), 104(e), 107(a) or 110(b)(2) of the Mine Act. and they experienced no fatalities. During the year 
ended December 31, 2010, our mining operations received two citaticins and orders under Scction 104(d) (Oak Hill Mine). one ordcr under Section 107(a) 
(Beckville mine), no citations. orders or written notices under Sections 104th), I 04(e) or 110(b)(2) of the Mine Act, and they experienced no fatalities. 

Summary 

We cannot predict future regulatory or legislative actions or any changes in economic and securities market conditions. Such actions or changes could 
significantly alter our basic financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 
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Item 7A. 	QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

lvlarket risk is the risk that we may experience a loss in value as a result of changes in market conditions affecting factors, such as commodity prices 
and interest rates that may be experienced in the ordinary course of business Our exposure to market risk is affected by a number of factors. including the 
size, duration and composition of our energy and financial portfolio, as well as the volatility and liquidity of markets. instruments used to manage this 
exposure include interest rate swaps to manage interest rate risk related to debt, as well as exchange traded, over-the-counter contracts and other contractual 
arrangements to manage commodity price risk. 

Risk Oversight 

W e nianage the commodity price, counterparty credit and commodity-related operational risk related to the unregulated energy business within 
limitations established by senior management and in accordance with overall risk management policies. Interest rate risk is managed centrally by the 
corporate treasury function. Market risks are monitored by risk management groups that operate independently of the wholesale commercial opera:ions, 
utilizing defined practices and analytical methodologies. These techniques measure the risk of change in value of the portfolio of contracts and the 
hypothetical effect on this value from changes in market conditions and include, but are not limited to, Value at Risk (VaR) methodologies. Key risk control 
activities include, but are not limited to, transaction review and approval (including credit review), operational and market risk measurement, validation of 
transaction capture, portfolio valuation and reporting, including mark-to-market valuation, VaR and other risk measurement metrics. 

We have a corporate risk management organization that is headed by the Chief Financial Officer, who also functions as the Chief Risk Officer. The 
Chief Risk Officer, through his designees, enforces applicable risk limits, including the respective policies and procedures to ensure compliance with such 
limits and evaluates the risks inherent in our businesses. 

Commodity Price Risk 

The competitive business is subject to the inherent risks of market fluctuations in thc price of electricity, natural gas and other energy-related products it 
markets or purchases. We actively manage the portfolio of owned generation assets, fuel supply and retail sales load to mitigate the near-temi impacts of these 
risks on results of operations. Similar to other participants in the market, we cannot fully maruige the long-term value impact of structural declines or increases 
in natural gas and power prices and spark spreads (differences between the mail:et price of electricity and its cost of production). 

In managing energy price risk, we enter into a varier:, of market transactions including, but not limited to, short- and long-term contracts for physical 
deliveiy, exchange traded and over-the-cuunter financial contracts and bilateral contracts with customers. Activities include hedging. the structuring of long-
term contractual arrangements and proprietary trading. We continuously monitor the valuation of identified risks and adjust positions based on current market 
conditions. We strive to use consistent assumptions regarding forward market price curves in evaluating and recording the effects of commodity price risk. 

Long-Term Hedging Program See "Significant Activities and Events" above for a description of the program. including potential effects on 
reported results. 
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VaR Methodology — A VaR methodology is used to measure the amount of market risk that exists within the portfolio under a variety of market 

conditions. The resultant VaR produces an estimate of a portfolio's potential for loss given a specified confidence level and considers among other things, 
niarket movements utilizing standard statistical techniques given historical and projected market prices and volatilities. 

A Monte Carlo simulation methodology is used to calculate VaR and is considered by management to be the most effective way to estimate changes in 
a portfolio's value based on assumed market conditions for liquid markets. The uselif this method requires a number of key assumptions, such as use of (i) an' 
assumed confidence level; (ii) an assumed holding period (i.e., the time necessary for management action, such as to liquidate positions), and (iii) historical 
estimates of volatility and correlation data. 

Trading VaR — This measurement estimates the potential loss in fair value, due to changes in market conditions, of all contracts entered into for 
trading purposes based on a 95% confidence level and an assumed holding period of five to 60 days. 

Year Ended 	 Year Ended 

December 31,1010 	 December 31,2009 
Month-end average Trading VaR: $ 3 $ 4 
Month-end high Trading VaR: $ 4 $ 7 
Month-end low Trading VaR: $ 1 $ 2 

VaR for Energy-Related Contracts Subject W Mark-to-Market (MtM) Accounting — This measurement estimaics the potential loss in fair value, due 
to changes in market conditions, of all contracts marked-to-market in net income (principally hedges not accounted for as cash flow hedges and trading 
positions). based on a 95% confidence level and an assumed holding period of five to 60 days. 

Year Ended 	 Year Ended 

December 31, 2010 	 December 31. 2009 
Month-end average MtM VaR: $ 426 $ 1,050 
Month-end high MIM VaR: $ 621 $ 1,470 
Month-end lOw MtM VaR: $ 321 $ 638 

Earnings at Risk (EaR) — This measurement estimates the potential reduction of pretax earnings for the periods presented, due to changes in market 
conditions, of all energy-related contracts marked-to-market in net income and contracts not marked-to-market in net income that are expected to be settled 
within the fiscal year (physical purchases and sales of commodities). Transactions accounted for as cash flow hedges are also included for this measurement. 
A 95% confidence level and a five to 60 day hokling period are assumed in determining EaR. 

Year Eoded 	 Year Ended 

December .31, 2010 	 DeCember 31, 2009 
Month-end average EaR: 477 $ 1,088 
Month-end high EaR: 662 $ 1,511 
Month-end low EaR: 323 $ 676 

The decreases in the risk measures (MtM VaR and EaR) above reflected fewer positions in the long-term hedging program due to settlement upon 
maturity, lower market volatility and lower underlying commodity prices. 
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Interest Rate Risk 

The table below provides information concerning our financial instrumcnts as of December 31. 2010 and 2009 that are sensitive to changes in interest 
rates, which include dcbt obligations arid interest rate swaps. We have entered into interest rate swaps under which we have exchanged the difference between 
fixed-rate and variable-rate interest amounts calculated with reference to specified notional principal amounts at dates that generally coincide with interest 
payrnents under our credit facilities. In addition, in connection with entering into certain interest rate basis swaps to further reduce fixed borrowing costs. we 
have changed the variable interest rate terms of certain TCEII debt from three-month LIBOR to one-month LIBOR, as discussed in Note l 1 to Financial 
Statements. The weighted average interest rate prewnted is based on the rate in effect at the reporting date. Capital leases and the effects of unamortind 
premiums anti discounts and fair value hedges are excluded from the table. See Note I I to Financial Statements for a discussion of changes in debt 

obligations. 

Expected Maturity Date 

(miitioni or dollars, except pereentagell 

Long-terin debt (including current maturities): 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

There- 

After 

2010 

Total 

Carrying 

Amount 

2010 

Total 

Fair 

Value 

20419 

fošal 

Carrying 

Amount 

209 

Total 

Fair 

VIllue 

Fixed rate debt amount (a) S 446 $ 	32 $ 	91 $ 	483 $3,187 $ 9.798 $14,037 $ (0,052 $20,861 $17.296 
Average interest rate 3.86% 8.17% 7 24% 5.66% 10.24% 10.32% 9.98% 8.95% 

Variable rate debt amount $ 	205 S 	205 $ 	205 520,563 $ — $ 	205 S21,383 $16.542 $ 21,608 $17,463 
Average interest rate 3.76% 3.76% 3.76% 3.76% — % 0.32% 3.73% 3.71% 

Total debt 5 	651 $ 	237 $ 	296 $21.046 $3.187 S10,003 $35,420 526.594 $42,469 534,759 

Debt swapped to fixed: 
Amount $ 600 $2,600 $3,600 $ 9,000 $ — $ — $15,800 $16,300 

Average pay rate 7.57% 7.99% 7.60% 8.18% — — 7.99% 7.98% 
Average receive rate 3.79% 3.79% 3.79% 3.79% — — 3.79% 3.74% 

Variable basis swaps: 
Amount S5.450 $7,200 $1,500 $ 	1,050 $ — $ — $ 15,200 S16,250 

Average pay rate 0.32% 0.33% 0.29% 0.33% — — 0.32% 0 33% 
Average receive rate 0.26% 0.26% 0 26% 0.26% — — 0,26% 0.24% 

(a) 	Reflects the remarketing date and not the maturity date for certain debt that is subject to mandatory tender for remarketing prior to maturity. See Note 
11 io Financial Statements for details conceming long-temi debt subject to mandatory tender for remarketing. 

As of December 31, 2010, the potential reduction of annual pretax earnings due to a one percentage point (100 basis points) increase in floating interest 
rates on long-terrn debt totaled approximately $45 million, taking into account the interest rate swaps discussed in Note ll to Financial Statements. 
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Credit Risk 

Credit risk relates to the risk of loss associated with nonperformance by counterparties. We maintain credit risk policies with regard to our 
counterparties to minimize overall credit risk. These policies prescribe practices for evaluating a potential counterparty's financial condition.. credit rating and 
other quantitative and qualitative credit criteria and specify authorized risk mitigation tools including, but not limited to, use of standardized master netting 
contracts and agreements that allow for netting of positive and negative exposures associated with a single counterparty. We have processes for monitoring 
and managing credit exposure of onr businesses including methodologies to analyze counterparties financial strength, measurement of current and potential 
future exposures and contract language that provides rights for netting and sct-off. Credit enhancements such as parental guarantees. letters of credit, surety • 
bonds and margin deposits are also utilized. Additionally, individual counterparties and credit portfolios are managed to assess overall credit exposure. This 
evaluation results in establishing exposure limits or collateral requirements for entering into an agreement with a counterparty that creates exposure. 

AdditMnally, wc have established controls to determine and monitor the appropriateness of these limits on an ongoing basis. Prospective material adverse 
changes in the payment history or financial condition of a counterparty or downgrade of its credit quality result in the reassessment of the credit limit with that 
counterparty. This process can result in the subsequent reductMn of the credit limit or a request for additional financial assurances. 

Credit Exposure — Our gross exposure to credit risk associated with trade accounts receivable (retail and wholesale) and net asset positions (before 
credit collateral) arising from commodity contracts and hedging and trading activities totaled $2.869 billion as of December 31. 2010. The components of this 
exposure are discussed in more detail below. 

Assets subject to credit risk as of December 31, 2010 include $615 million in retail trade accounts receivable before taking into account cash deposits 

held as collateral for these receivables totaling $70 million. The risk of material loss (after consideration uf bad debt allowances) from nonperformance by 
these customers is unlikely based upon historical experience. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are established for the potential loss from 
nonpayment by these customers based on historical experience, market or operational conditions and changes in the financial condition of large business 
customers. 

The remaining credit exposure arises from wholesale trade receivables, commodity contracts and hedging and trading activities, including interest rate 

hedging. Counterparties to these transactions include energy companies. financial institutions, electric utilities, independent power producers, oil and gas 
producers, local distribution companies and energy trading and marketing companies. As of December 31, 2010, the exposure to credit risk from these 
countcrpartics totaled $2 254 billion taking into account the standardized master netting contracts and agreements described abae but before taking into 
account $648 million in credit collateral (cash, letters of credit and other credit support). The net exposure (afler credit collateral) of $1.606 billion increased 

5309 million in the year ended December 31, 2010, reflecting the increase in derivative assets related to the long-term hedging program due to the decline in 
forward natural gas prices, partially offtet by the return of the $400 million in collateral discussed in Note 17 to Financial Statements and the increase in 
derivative liabilities related to interest rate swaps due to lower interest rates. 

Of this $1.606 billion net exposure, essentially all is with investment grade Customers and counterparties, as determined using publicly available 
information including major rating agencies' published ratings and our internal credit evaluation process. Those customers and counterparties without a S&P, 
rating of at least BBH- or similar rating from another maior rating agency are rated using internal credit methodologies and credit scoring models to estimate a 
S&P equivalent rating. The company routinely monitors and manages credit exposure to Mese custothers and counterparties on this basis. 
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The following table presents the distribution of credit exposure as of December 31, 2010 arising from wholesale trade receivables, commodity contracts 
and hedging and trading activities. This credit exposure represents wholesale trade accounts receivable and net asset positions on the balance sheet arising 
from hedging and trading activities atter taking into consideration netting provisions within each contract, setoff provisions in the event of default and any 
mastcr netting contracts with counterparties. See Note 17 to Financial Statements for further discussion of portions of this exposure related to activities 
marked-to-market in the financial statements. 

Gross Exposure hv Maturity 

Exposure 

Greater 

Before Credit 	 Credit 	 Net 	 2 years or 	Behteen 

than 5 

Collateral 	 Collateral 	_...Uz2L_sre 	 less 	 2-5 years 	sears 	Total 

Investment gradc 2.229 $ 	646 S 	1,583 $ 	1,597 $ 	632 $ $ 	2,229 
Noninvestment grade 25 2 23 26 (I) 25 

Totals 2.254 $ 	648 S 	1,606 $ 	1,623 $ 	631 $ $ 	2,254 

98.9% 
alet.emaleamilaa 

98.6% Investment grade 
Noninvestment grade 1.1%  

In addition to the exposures in the table above. contracts classified as "normal" purchase or sale and non-derivative contractual commitments are not 
marked-to-market in the financial stateinents. Such contractual commitments may contain pricing that is favorable considering current market conditions and 
therefore represent economic risk if the counterpartics do not perform. Nonperformance could have a material adverse impact on future results of operations, 
financial condition and cash flows, 

Significant (10% or greater) concentration of credit exposure exists with three counterparties. which represented 4IN 35% and 12% of the net $1.606 
billion exposure. We view exposure to these counterparties to be within an acceptable level of risk tolerance due to the applicable counterpartys credit rating 
and the importance of our business relationship with the counterparty. However, this concentration increases the risk that a default would have a material 
effect on results of operations. 

With respect to credit risk related to the long-term hedging program. essentially all of the transaction volumes are with counterparties with an A credit 
rating or better. However, there is current and potential credit concentration risk related to the limited number of counterparties that comprise the substantial 
majority of the program with such counterparties being in the banking and financial sector. The trarsactions with these counterpartics contain certain credit 
rating provisions that would require the counterparties to post collateral in the event of a material downgrade in the credit rating of the counterparties. An 
event of default by one or more hedge counterparties could subsequently result in termination-related settlement payments that reduce available liquidity if 
amounts are owed to the counterparties related to the commodity contracts or delays in receipts of expected settlements if the hedge counterparties owe 
amounts to us. While the potential concemration of risk with these counterparties is viewed to be within an acceptable risk tolerance, the exposure to hedge 
counterpanies is managed through the various ongoing risk management measures described above. 
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This report and other presentations made by us contain "forward-looking statements." All statements, other than statements of historical facts. thafare 
included in this report, or made in presentations, in response to questions or otherwise, that address activities, events or developments that we expect or 
anticipate to occur in the future, including such matters as projections, capital allocation, future capital expenditures, business strategy, competitive strengths, 
goals. future acquisitions or dispositions, development or operation of power generation assets, market and industry developments and the growth of our 

businesses and operations (often, but not always, through the use of words or phrases such as "intends," "plans," "will likely result: ''are expected to," "will 
continue: "is anticipated: "estimated," "should," "projection," "target," "goal; "objective and "outlook");  are forward-looking statements. Although we 
believe that in making any such forward-looking statement our expectations are based on reasonable assumptions, any such forward-looking statement 
involves uncertainties and is qualified in its entirety hy reference to the discussion of risk factors under item IA,."Risk Factore and the discussion under 

Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operatione in this report and the following important factors, among 
others. that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those projected in such forward-looking statements: 

• prevailing governmental policies and regulatory actions, including those of the Texas Legislature, the Govemor of Texas, the US Congress, the 
FERC, the NERC, the TR.E, thc PUCT, the RRC, the NRC, the EPA, the TCEQ and the CFTC, with respect to, among other thinas: 

• allowed prices; 

• (allowed rates of return: 

• permitted capitnl structure; 

• industry. market and rate structure; 

• purchased power and recOvery of investments; 

• operations of nuclear generating facilities; 

• operations of fossil-fueled generating facilities; 

• operations of mines; 

• acquisition and disposal of assets and facilities; 

• development, construction and operation of facilities; 

decommissioning costs; 

• present or prospective wholesale and retail competition; 

• changes in tax laws and policies; 

• changes in and compliance with environmental and safety laws and policies, including climate change initiattves. and 

• clearing over the counter derivatives through exchanges and posting of cash collateral therewith; 

legal and administrative proceedings and settlements; 

general industry trends; 

economic conditions, including the impact of a recessionary environment, 

our ability to attract and retain profitable customers; 

our ability to profitably serve our customers; 

restrictions on competitive retail pricing; 

• changes in wholesale electricity prices or energy cOmrnodity prices; 

• changes in prices of transportation of natural gas, coal, crude oil and refined products, 

• unanticipated changes in market heat rates in the ERCOT electricity market; 

• our ability to effectively hedge against unfavorable commodity prices, market beat rates and interest rates; 

• weather conditions and other natural phenomena, and acts of sabotage, wars or teiTorist activities; 

• unanticipated population growth or decline, or changes in market demand and demographic panems, particularly in ERCOT, 

• changes in business strategy, development plans or vendor relationships; 

• access to adequate transmission facilities to meet changing demands; 

• unanticipated changes in interest rates, commodity prices, rates of inflation or foreign exchange rates, 

• unanticipated changes in operating expenses, liquidity needs and capital expenditures; 

• commercial bank market and capital market conditions and the potential impact of disruptions in US and intemational credit markets; 
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• the willingness of our lenders to amend and extend the maturities of our debt agreements and the terms and conditions of any such amendments; 

• access to capital, the cost of such capital, and the results of financing and refinancing efforts. including availability of funds in capital markets; 

financial restrictions placed on us by the agreements governing our debt instruments; 

our ability to generate sufficient cash flow to make interest payments on, or refinance, our debt instruments; 

our ability to successfully execute our liability management program; 

competition for new energy development and other business opportunities; 

inability of various counterparties to meet their obligations with respect to our financial instruments; 

changes in technology used by and services offered by us; 

changes in electricity transmission that allow additional electricity generation to compete with our generation assets; 

significant changes in our relationship with our employees, including the availability of qualified personnel. and the potential adverse effects if 
labor disputes or grievances were to occur; 

changes in assumptions used to estimate costs of providing employee benefits, including medical and dental benefits, pension and OPEEt. and 
future funding requirements related thereto; 

changes in assumptions used to estimate future executive compensation payments; 

• hazards customary to the industry and the possibility that we may not have adequate insurance to cover losses resulting from such hazards; 

• significant changes in critical accounting policies: 

• actions by crcdit rating agencies; 

• our ability to effectively execute our operational strategy, and 

• our ability to implement cost reduction initiatives. 

Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which it is made, and except as may be required by law, we undertake no obligation to 
update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which it is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events 
New factors emerge from time to time. and it is not possible for us to predict all of them; nor ezat we assess the impact of each such factor or the extent to 
which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statement. As such, you 
should not unduly rely on such forward-looking statements. 

INDUSTRY AND MARKET INFORMATION 

The industry and market data and other statistical information used throughnut this report arc based on independent industry publications, government 
publications, reports by market research firms or other published independent sources, including certnin data published by ERCOT, the PUCT and NYMEX. 
We did not commission any of these publications or reports. Some data is also based on good faith estimates, which arc derived from our review of internal 
surveys, as well as the independent sources listed above. independent industry publications and surveys generally state that they have obtained information 
from sources believed to be reliable, but do not guarantee the accuracy and completeness of such information. While we believe that each of these studies and 
publications is reliable, we have not independently verified such data and make no representation as to the accuracy of such information. Forecasts are 
particularly likely to be inaccurate, especially over long periods of time, and we dn not know what assumptions regarding general economic growth are used 
in preparing the forecasts included in this report. Similarly, while we believe that such internal and external research is reliable. it has not been verified by any 
independent sources, and we make no assurances that the predictions contained therein are accurate. 
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Item 8. 	FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SL:PPLENIENTARY DATA 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRNI 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Energy Future Holdings Corp 
Dallas, Texas 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of.Energy Future Holdings Corp. and subsidiaries ("EFH Corp.") as of December 31. 2010 
anti 2009, and the related statements of consolidated income (loss). comprehensive income (loss), cash flows and equity for each of the three years in the 

period ended December 31, 2010. These financial statements are the responsibility of EFH Corp.'s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that 
wc plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 

examining, on a test basis. evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes' assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, us well as evaluating the overall financial Statement presentation. We believe that our audits 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Energy Future Holdings Corp. and 
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 2010, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

As discussed in Notes 1 anti 2 to the consolidated financial statements, EFH Corp. adopted arnended consolidation accounting standards related to variable 
interest entities, and as also discussed in Notes 1 and 10 to the consolidated financial stateinents, EFH Corp. adopted amended guidance regarding transfers of 
financial assets effective January 1, 2010, on a prospective basis. 

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Uni(ed States), EFH Corp.'s intemal control 
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 17, 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion on EFIf Corp.'s internal 
control Uver financial reporting. 

1s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP 
Dallas, Texas 
February 17, 2011 
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ENERGY FUTURE HOLDINGS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME (LOSS) 

(Millions of Dollars) 

Year Eaded December 31, 
2010 2009 2008 

Operating revenues S 	8,235 $ 	9,546 S 	11,364 
Fuel, purchased power costs and delivery fees (4.371) (2,878) (4,595) 
Net gain from commodity hedging and trading activities 1,736 
Operating costs 2'6 01371) (1,598) (1.503) 
Depreciation and amortization 
Selling. general and administrative expenses 

(1,407) 
(751) 

(1,754) 
(1,068) 

2

;3

1

6

8

3

4

) 

 

(1,610) 
(957) 

Franchise and revenue-based taxes (106) (359) 
Impairment of goodwill (Note 4) (4,100) (90) (8,860) 
Other income (Note 9) 2,051 204 80 
Other deductions (Note 9) (31) (97) (1,301) 
Interest income 45 27 
Interest expense and related charges (Note 24) (3.

7

5

0

r4

)

) (2.912) (4,939  
Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries 0.0 

 

775 (10,469) 
Income tax (expense) benefit (Note 8) (389) (367) 471 
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries (net of tax) (Note 2) 277 
Net income (loss) (2,812) 408 (9.998) 
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (64) 160 
Net income (loss) attributablelo EFli Corp. L.(22) $ 	344 $ 	(9.838) 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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ENERGY FUTURE HOLDINGS CORP. AND SOBSIDIARIES 
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 

(Millions of Dollars) 

Veer Ended Deeember311, 

2010 2009 2008 
Net income (loss) $(2,812) $408 $ (9,998) 
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax effects: 

Effects related to pension and other retirement benefit obligations (net of tax benefit of $8. $20 and $69) (Note 20) (13) (40) (84) 
Cash flow hedges: 

Net decrease in fair value of derivatives (net of tax benefit of $—, $10 and $99) (20) (183) 
Derivative value net loss related to hedged transactions recognized during the period and reported in net income (loss) 

(net of tax benefit of S31, $72 and $66) 59 130 122' ' 
Total effect of cash flow hedges 59 110 (61) 

Total other compiehensive income (loss) 46 70 (145) 
Comprehensive income (loss) (2,766) 478 (10,143) 
Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests - 	160 
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to EFH Corp. $(2,766) $414 $ 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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ENERGY FUTURE HOLDINGS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIFS 
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED CASII FLOWS 

(Minions of Dollars) 

Cash flows — operating activities 

Year Ended December 31. 

2010 2009 2001t 

Net income (loss) $ (2,812) $ 	408 $ (9,998) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amoratation 1.778 2,172 2,070 
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 	net 604 253 (477) 
Impaimient of goodwill (Note 4) 4,100 90 8.860 
Debt extinguishment gains (Note I I ) (1,814) (87) 
Unrealized net gains from mark-to-rnarket valuations of commodity positions (1,221) (1,225) (2,329) 
Interest expense on toggle notes payable in additional principal (Notes 11 and 24) 446 524 83 
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries (277) 
Unrealized net (gains) losses from mark-to-market valuations of interest rate swaps (Note 11) 207 (696) 1,477 
Distributions of eamings from unconsolidated subsidiaries 169 
Gain on termination of long-term power sales contract (Note 9) (116) 
13ad debt expense (Note 10) 108 113 81 
Losses on dedesignated cash flow hedges (interest rate swaps) 87 184 66 
Net gain on sale of assets (81) (5) (1) 
Stock-based incentive compensation expense 19 14 30 
Reversal of reserves recorded in purchase accounting (Note 9) (44) 
Impairment of land 34 
Write off of regulatory assets (Note 24) 25 
Impairment of emission allowances intangible assets (Note 4) 501 
Impairment of trade name intangible asset (Note 4) 481 
Impairment of natural gas-fueled generation facilities (Note 5) 229 
Charge related to Lehman bankruptcy (Note 9) 26 
Other, net 11 (4) (20)  
Changes in operating assets and liabilities. 

Accounts receivable — trade 258 (125) (505) 
Impact of accounts receivable securitization program (Note 10) (383) (33) 53 
inventories (6) (59) (21)  
Accounts payable — trade (93) (141) 385 
Commodity and other derivative contractual assets and liabilities (441 (64) (28) 
Margin deposits — net 132 248 595 
Deferred advanced metering system revenues (Note 24) 57 
Other — net assets 151 (43) 440 
Other — net liabilities (117) 115 (493) 

Cash provided by operating activities ; 	1,106 $ 	1 711 $ 	1 505 
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ENERGY FUTURE IIOLDINGS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS (CONT.) 

(Nlillions of Dollars) 

Cash flows — financing activities 
Issuances of long-tenn debt/secunties (Note I1)• 

Pollution control revenue bonds 
oncor long-term debt 

Yrar Ended December 31, 

OlD 2009 2008 

$ 	— 
— 

$ 	— 
— 

$ 	242 
1,500 

Other long-term debt 853 522 1,443 
Common stock — _ 34 

Repayments/repurchases of long-term debt/securities (Notc 11): 
Pollution control revenue bonds — — (242) 
Other long-term debt (1.351) (396) (925) 
Common stock — — (3) 

Net short-term borrowings under accounts receivable securifization program (Note 10) 96 — 
Increase (decrease) in other short-term borrowings (Note 11) 	

. 
172 332 (481) 

Proceeds from silk of nonconrrolling interests, net of transaction costs (Note 14) — — 1,253 
Decrease in note payable to unconsolidated subsidiary (37)  
Contributions from noncontrolling interests 32 48 — 
Distributions paid to noncontrolling interests • — ‘  (56) (2) 
Debt exchange and issuance costs (62) (49) (21) 
Other, net . 	33 21 39 

Cash provided by (used in) finaming activities $ 	(264) $ 	422 $ 	2.837 
Cash flows 	investing activities . 

Capital expenditures , (838) (2,348) (2,849) 
Nuclear fuel purchases (106) (197) (166) 
Money market fund redemptions (investments) *— 142 (142) 
Investment redeemed/(posted) with derivative counterpart),  (Note 17) 400 (400) — 
Reduction of letter of credit facility deposited with trustee (Note 11) _ 115 — 
Reduction of restricted cash related to pollution control revenue bonds — _ 29 
Other changes in restricted cash (33) 9 i 
Proceeds from sale of assets 147 42 80 
Proceeds from sale of environmental allowances and credits 12 19 39 
Purchases of environmental allowances and credits (30) (19) (34) 
Proceeds from sales of nuclear decommissioning trust fund securities 974 3,064 1,623 
Investments in nuclear decommissioning trust fund securities (990) (3,080) (1,639) 
Cash settlements related to outsourcing contract termination (No(e 19) — . — 70 
Settlement of loan (Note 19) 	 ,.. 

— — 25 
Other, net (1) 20 29 

Cash used in investing activities $ 	(468) $ 	(2.633) $ 	(2,934) 
Net.change in cash and cash equivalents 374 (500) 1,408 
Efkct of deconsolidation of Oncor Holdings (29) — — 
Cash and cash equivalents — beginning balance 1.189 1.689 281 
Cash and cash equivalents — ending balance $ 	1.534 S 	1.189 $ 	1,689 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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ENERGY FUTURE HOLIMNGS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(Millions of Dollars) 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

December 31, 

2010 

2099 

Ant,,211,L11.  

Cash anti cash equivalents (Note I) $ 	1,534 $ 	1,189 
Investment posted with counterparty (Note 17) 425 
Restricted cash (Note 24) 33 48 
Trade accounts receivable — net (2010 includes 5612 in pledged ainounts related to a VIE (Notes 3 and 10)) 999 1,260 
Inventories (Note 24) 395 485 
Commodity and other derivative contractual assets (Note 17) 2,712 2,391 
Accumulated dekrred income taxes (Note 8) 5 
Margin deposits misted to commodity positions 1E6 187 
Other current assets 60 136 

Total current assets 5.919 6,125 
Restricted cash (Note 24) 1,135 l,149 
Receivables from unconsolidated subsidiary (Note 22) 1,463 
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries (Note 2) 5,544 44 
Other investments (Note 18) 697 706 
Property, plant and equipment — net (Note 24) 20,366 30,108 
Goodwill (Note 4) 6,152 14,316 
Identifiable intangible assets — net (Note 4) 2,400 2,876 
Regulatory assets — net (Note 24) 1.959 
Commodity and other derivative contractual asscts (Note 17) 2,071 1,533 
Other noncurrent assets. principally unamortized debt issuance casts 641 845 

Total assets $ 	46.388 $ 	59.662 
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Current liabilities: 
Short-term borrowings (2010 includes S96 related (o a VIE (Notes 3 and 11)) $ 	1,221 $ 	1,569 
Long-term debt due currently (Note I I) 669 417 
Trade accounts payable 681 896 
Payables due to unconsolidated subsidiary (No(e 22) 254 
Commodity and other derivative contractual liabilities (Note 17) 2,233 2,392 
Margin deposits related to commodity positions 631 520 
Accumulated deferred income taxes (Note 8) 11 
Accrued interest 411 526 
Other current liabilities 442 714 

Total current liabilities 6.603 7,064 
Accumulated deferred income tang (Note 8) 5,350 6,131 
Investment tax credits 37 
Commodity and other derivative contractual liabilities (Note 17) 859 1.060 
Notes or other liabilities due to unconsolidated subsidiary (Note 22) 384 
Long-temi debt. less amounts due currently (Note I I) 34.226 41,440 
Other noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits (Note 24) 4.867 5.766 

Total liabilities 52.299 61,498 
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 12) 
Equity (Note 13). 

Common stock (shares outstanding 2010 — 1.671,812,118; 2009 — 1,668,065.133) 2 2 
Additional paid-in capital 7,937 7.914 
Retained earnings (deficit) (13,666) (10,854) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (263) (3$19) 
EFH Com. shareholders' equity (5,990) (3,247) 
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries 79 I 411 

Tt:tal equity (5.911) (1,836) 
Total liabilities and equity S 	46.388 $ 	59.662 

.1.22=6.061.- =1=120111MOIN 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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• ENERGY FUTURE HOLDINGS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED EQUITY 

(Millions of Dollars) 

Common stock stated value of S0.001 effective May 2009 (number of authorized shares - 2,000,000,000): 

Year Ended December 31, 
2010 	2009 	2008 

Balance as of beginning of period f 	2 $ 	-- 	$ 	- 
Effects of shareholder actions related fo stated value of common stock - 	2 	- 

Balance as of end of period (number of shares outstanding 2010 ,- 1,671,812,1 HI: 2009 - 1,668,065,133, 
1,667,149,663 

2008 - 
2 	2 	- 

Additional paid-in Capital: 
Balance as of beginning of period 	. 7,914 	7,904 	8.279 

Effects of stock-based incentive compensation plans 24 	II 	29 
Effects of shareholder actions related to stated value of common stock - 	(2) 	- 
Effect of sale of noncontrolling interests (Note 13) - 	- - 	(406) 
Common stock repurchases (2) 	 - 
Other 1 	1 	2 

Balance as of end of period 7 937 	7 914 	7.904 
Retained earnings (deficit): 

13alance as of beginning of period 
, 

(10,854) 	(11,198) 	(1,360) 
Net income (loss) attributable to EFH Corp. (2.812) 	344 	(9,838) 

Balance as of end of period (13,666) 	(10.854) 	(11,198) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax effects: 

Pension and other postretirement employee benefit liability adjustments: 
Balance as of beginning of period 	 f 

(181) 	(141) 	(57) 
Change in unrecognized gains (losses) related to pension and other retirement benefit costs (11). 	(40) 	(84) 

Balance as of end of period (194) 	(181) 	(141) 
Amounts related to cash flow hedges: 

Balance as of beginning of period (128) 	(238) 	(177) 
Change during die period . 	59 	110 	(61) 

Balance as of end of period Le 	(128) 	(238) 
Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) as of end of period (263) 	(309) 	(379) 

EFH Corp. shareholders' equity as of end of period (Note 13) (5,990) 	(3,247) 	(3,673) 
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries (Note 14): 	' 

Balance as of beginning of period 1,411 	1,355 	- 
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests - 	64 	(160) 
Effect of deconsolidation of Oncor Holdings (Notes 1 and 3) (1,363) 	- 	- 
Investments by noncontrolling interests 32 	48 	1,253 
Effect of sale of noncontrolling interests 

* 
- 	- 	265 

Distributions to noncontrolling interests 
Other 

/ - 	(56) 	(2) 
..... _..... ..1.0 	_____ 

Noncontrufling interests in subsidiaries as of end of period 79 	1.411 	1355 
Total equity as of end of period S 	5.911) !Ilia) I.(,.;...3.111) 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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ENERGY FUTURE HOLDINGS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTFS TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. 	BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Description of Business 

EFH Corp.. a Texas corporation, is a Dallas-based holding company with operations consisting principally of our TCEH and Oncor subsidiaries. TCEH 
is a holding cornpany for subsidianes engaged in competitive electricity market activities largely in Texas, including electricity generation, wholesale energy 
sales and purchases, commodity risk manavment and trading activities, and retail electricity sales. Oncor is a majority (approximately 80%) owned 
subsidiary engaged in regulated electricity transmission and distribution operations in Texas. See Note 3 regarding the deconsolidation of Oncor (and it 
majority owner, Oncor Holdings) as a result of amended consolidation accounting standards related to variable interest entities (VIEs) effective January 1, 

2010. 

On October 10, 2007, EFH Corp. completed its Merger with Merger Sub. As a result of the Merger, EFH Corp. became a subsidiary of Texas Holdings, 
which is controlled by thc Sponsor Group. 

References in this report to "we," ''our," "us" and "the company" are to EFH Corp and/or its subsidiaries, TCEH ond/or its subsidiaries, or Oncor and/or 
its subsidiary IS apparent in the context. See "Glossary" for other defined terms. 

Various "ring-fencing" measures have been taken to enhance the credit quality of Oncor. Such measures include, arnung other things: the sale of a 
19.75% equity interest in Oncor to Texas Transmission in November 2008: maintenance of separate books and records for the Oncor Ring-Fenced Entities, 
Oncor's beard of directors being comprised of a rnajority of independent directors, and prohibitions on the Oncor Ring-Fenced Entities providing credit 
support to, or receiving credit support from, any member of the Texas Holdings Group. The assets and liabilities of the Oneor Ring-Fenced Entities are 
separate and distinct from those of the Texas Holdings Group and none of the assets of the Oncor Ring-Fenced Entities are available to satisfy the debt or 
contractual obligations of any member of the Texas Holdings Group. Moreover, Oncor's operations are conducted, and its cash flows managed, independently 
from the Texas Holdings Group. 

See Note 14 for discussion of noncontrolling interests sold by Oncor in November 2008. 

We have two reportable segments: the Competitive Electric segment, which is cornprised principally of TCEH, and the Regulated Delivery segment, 
which is comprised of Oncor lloldings and its subsidiaries. See Note 23 for further information concerning reportable business segments. 

Basis of Presentation 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with US GAAP. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on 
the same basis as the audited financial statements included in the 2009 Form 10-K with the exception of the prospective adoption of arnended guidance 
recording consolidation accounting standards related to V lEs that resulted in the deconsolidation of Oncor Holdings as discussed in Notc 3 and amended 
guidance regarding transfers of financial assets that resulted in the accounts receivable securitization program no longer being accounted for as a sale of 
accounts receivable and the funding under the program now reported as short-term borrowings as discussed in Note 10. All intercornpany items and 
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. All acquisitions of outstanding debt for cash, including notcs that had been issued in lieu of cash interest, 
are presented in the financing activities section of the statement of cash flows. All dollar amounts in the financial statements and tables in the notes are stated 
in millions of US dollars unless otherwise indicated. 
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Ilse of Estimates 

Preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions about future events tha atTect the reporting of assets and liabilities as of the 
balance sheet dates and the reported amounts of revenue and expense. including fair value measurements. In the event estimates and/or assumptions prove to 
he different fforn actual amounts, adjustments are made in subsequent periods to reflect more current information. No material adjustments, other than those 
disclosed elsewhere herein, were made to previous estimates or assumptions during the current year. 

Derivafive Instruments and Mark-to-Market Accounting 

We enter into contracts for the purchase and sale of electricity, natural gas and other commodities and also enter into other derivative instruments such 
as options, swaps, futures and forwards primarily to manage our commodity price and interest rate risks. If the instrument meets the definition of a derivative 
under accouMing standards related to derivative instruments and hedging activities, changes in the fair value of the derivative are recognized in net income as 
unrealized gains and losses, unless the criteria for certain exceptions are met, and an offsetting derivative asset or liability is recorded in the balance sheet. 
This recognition is referred to as "mark-to-market" accounting. The fair values of our unsettled derivative instruments under mark-to-market accounting are 
reported in the balance sheet as commodity and other derivative contractual assets or liabilities. When derivative instrurnents are settled and realized gains and 
losses are recorded, the previously recorded unrealized gains and losses and derivative assets and liabilities are reversed. See Notes 15 and 17 for additional 
information regarding fair value measurement and commodity and other derivative contractual assets and liabilities. Under the election criteria of accounting 
standards related to derivative instruments and hedging activities, we may elect the "normal" purchase and sale exemption. A commodity-related derivative 
contract may be designated as a "normal7 purchase or sale if the commodity is to be physically received or delivered for use or sale in the normal course of 
business If designated as normal, the derivative contract is accounted for under the accrual method of accounting (not marked-to-market) with no balance 
sheet or income statement recognition of the contract until settlement. 

Because derivative instruments are frequently used as economic hedges, accounting standards related to derivative instruments and hedging activities 
allow for !hedge accounting," which provides for the designation of such instruments as cash flow or fair value hedges if certain conditions are met. A cash 
flow hedge mitigates thc risk associated with the variability of the future cash flows related to an asset or liability (e.g., a forecasted sale of electricity in the 
future at market prices or the payment of interest related to variable rate debt), while a fair value hedge mitigates risk associated with fixed future cash flows 
(e g., debt with fixed interest rate payments). In accounting for changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges, derivative assets and liabilities are recorded on 
the balance sheet with an offset to other comprehensive income or loss to the extent the hedges are effective and the hedged transaction remains probable of 
occurring. If the hedged transaction becomes probable of not occurring. hedge accounting is discontinued and the amount recorded in other comprehensive 
income is immediately reclassified into net income. If the relationship between the hedge and the hedged transaction ceases to exist or is dedesignated. hedge 
accounting is discontinued, and the amounts recorded in other comprehensive income arc recognized as the previously hedged transaction impacts earnings. 
Changes in value of fair value hedges are recorded as derivative assets or liabilities with an offset to net income, and the carrying value of the related asset or 
liability (hedged item) is adjusted for changes in fair value with an offset to net income. If the fair value hedge is settled prior to the maturity of the hedged 
item, the cumulative fair value gain or loss associated with the hedge is amortized into income over the remaining life of the hedged item. In the statement of 
cash flow, the effects of settlements of derivative instruments are classified consistent with the related hedged transactions. 

To qualify for hedge accounting, a liedge must be considered highly effective in offsetting changes in fair value of the hedged item. Assessment or the 
hedge's effectiveness is tested at least quarterly throughout its term to continue to qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in fair value that represent hedge 
ineffectiveness, even if the hedge continues to he assessed as effective, are immediately recognized in net income. Ineffectiveness is generally measured as the 
cumulative excess, if any, of the change in value of the hedging instrument over the change in value of the hedged item. See Notes 11 and 17 for additional 
information concerning hedging activity 

At December 31, 2010 and 2009. there were no derivative positions accounted for as cash flow or fair value hedges. Accumulated other comprehensive 
income includes amounts related to interest rate swaps previously designated as cash flow hedges that will be recognized in net income as the hedged 
transactions impact net income (see Note II). 
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Realized and unrealized gains and losses from transacting in energy-related derivative instruinents are primarily reported in the income statement in net 
gain (loss) from commodity hedging and trading activities. In accordance with accounting rules, upon settlement of physical derivative sales and purchase 
contracts that are marked-to-market in net income, related wholesale electricity revenues and fuel and purchased power costs are reported at approximated 
market prices, instead of the contract price. As a result, this noncash difference between market and contract prices is included in the operating revenues and 
fuel and purchased power costs and delivery fees line items of the income statement, with offsetting amounts included in net gain (loss) from comrnodity 
hedging and trading activities. 

Revenue Recognition 

We record revenue from electricity sales and delivery service under the accrual method of accounting. Revenues are recognized when electricity or 
delivery services are provided to customers on the basis of periodic cycle meter readings and Mclude an estimated accrual for the revenues tamed front the 
meter reading date to the end of the period (unbilled revenue). 

We report physically delivered commodity sales and purchases in the income statement on a gross basis in revenues and fuel, purchased power and 
delivery fees, respectively, and we report all other commodity related contracts and financial instruments (primarily derivatives) in the income statement on a 
net basis in net gainAloss) from commodity hedging and trading activities. As part of ERCOT's transition to a nodal wholesale market effective December I. 
2010, volumes under nontrading bilateral purchase and sales contracts, including contracts intended as hedges. are no longer scheduled as physical power with 
ERCOT. Aceordingly, unless the volumes represent physical deliveries to customers or purchases from counterparties, effective with the nodal market 
implementation, such contracts are reported net in the income statement in net gain/(loss) from commodity hedging and trading activities instead of reported 
gross as wholesale revenues or purchased power costs. As a result of the changes in wholesale market operations, effective with the nodal market 
implementation, if volumes delivered to our retail and wholesale customers are less than our generation volumes (as determined on a daily settlement hasis). 
we record additional wholesale revenues. and if volumes delivered to our retail and wholesale customers exceed our generation volumes, we record additional 
purchased power costs. The additional wholesale revenues or purchased power costs are offset in net gain/(loss) from commodity hedging and trading 
activities. 

Impairment of Long-Lived ,Assets 

We evaluate long-lived assets (including intangible assets with finite lives) for impairment whenever indications of impairment exist. The carrying 
value of such assets is deemed to be impaired if the projected undiscounted cash flons arc less than the carrying value, lf there is such impairment, a loss 
would be recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value. Fair value is cktennined primarily by discounted cash flows. 
supported by available market valuations, if applicable. See Note 5 for details of thc impairment of the natural gas-fueled generation facilities recorded in 
2008. 

We evaluate investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries for impairment when factors indicate that a decrease in the value of the investment has occurred 
that is not temporary. Indicators that should be evaluated for possible impairment of investments include recurnng operating losses of the investee or fair 
value measures that are less than carrying value. Any impairment recognition is based on fair value that is not reflective of temporary conditions. Fair value is 
determined primarily by discounted long-term cash flows, supported by available market valuations, if applicable. 

Finite-lived intangibles identified as a result of purchase accounting are amortized over their estimated usetial lives based on the expected realization of 
economic effects. See Note 4 for additional infortnation. 
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets with Indefinite Lives 

We evaluate goodwill and intangible assets with indefmite lives for impairment at least annually (as of December I) See Note 4 for details of goodwill 
and intangible assets with indefinite lives, including discussion of fair value determinations and impairments of goodwill and trade name intangible assets 
recorded in 2010,2009 and 2008. 

Amortization of Nuclear Fuel 

Amortization of nuclear fuel is calculated on the units-of-production method and is reported as fuel costs. 

Major Maintenance 

Major maintenance costs incurred during generation plant outages and the costs of other maintenance activities are charged to expense as incurred and . 
reported as operating costs. 

Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Other Postrelirement Employee Benefit Plans 

We offer pension benefits based on either a traditional defined benefit formula oi a cash balance formula and also offer certain health care and life 
insurance benefits to eligible employees and their eligible dependents upon the retirement of such employees from the company. Costs of pension and OPEB 
plans arc dependent upon numerous factors, assumptions and estimates. The pension and OPEB accrued benefit obligations reported in the balance sheet are 
in accordance with aecountmg standards related to employers accounting for defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans. See Note 20 for 
additional inforination regarding pension and OPEB plans. 

Slock-Based Incentive Compensation 

Our 200 Stock Incentive Plan authorizes discretionary grants to directors, officers and qualified managerial employees ofF.FH Corp. or its affiliates of 
non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted shares, shares of common stock, the opportunity to purchase shares of common stock and 
other stock-based awards. Stock-based compensation expense is recognized over the vesting period based on the grant-date fair value of those awards. See 
Note 21 for information regarding stock-based incentive compensation. 

Sales and Excise Tates 

Sales and excise taxes are accounted for as a "pass through" item on the balance sheet; i.e., the tax is billed to customers and recorded as trade accounts 
receivable with an offsetting amount recorded as a liability to the taxing jurisdiction. 

Franchise and Revenue-Based Taxes 

Unlike sales and excise taxes, franchise and gross receipt taxes are not a "pass through'.  itcm. These taxes are assessed to us by state and local 
government bodies. based on revenues or kWh delivered, as a cost of doing business and are recorded as an expense. Rates we charge to customers are 
intended to reco;ier our costs, including the franchise and gross receipt taxes, but we are not acting as an agent to collect the taxes from customers. 
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income Ta.xes 

We file a consolidated federal income tax return, and federql income taxes arc calculated for our subsidiaries substantially as if the entities file separate 
income tax returns Deferred income taxes are provided for temporaty differences between the book and tax basis of assets and liabilities. Effective with the 
sale of noncontrolling interes(s in Oncor in 2008 (see Note 14), Oncor became a partnership for US federal income tax purposes, and we provide deferred 
income taxes on the difference between the book and tax basis of our investment in Oncor. investment tax credits related to Oncor's regulated operations are 
deferred and amortized over the lives of the related properties in accordance with regulatory treatment. Certain provisions of the accounting guidance for 
income taxes allow regulated enterprises to recognize deferred taxes as regulatory tax assets or tax liabilities if it is probable that such amounts will be 
recovered from, or returned to, customers in future rates. 

We report interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as current income tax expense. 

Accounting for Contingencies 

Our financial results may be affected by judgments and estimates related to loss contingencies. Accruals for loss contingencies are recorded when 
management determines that it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred and that such economic loss can be reasonably 
estimated. Such determinations are subject to interpretations of current facts and circumstances, forecasts of future events and estimates of the financial 
impacts of such events. Sce Note 12 for a discussion of contingencies. 

Cash and Cash Equivaletus 

For purposes of reporting cash and cash equivalents, ternporary cash investments purchasad with a remaining maturity of three months or less are 
considered to be cash equivalents. 

Restricted Cash 

The terms of certain agreements require the restriction of cash for specific purposes. As of December 31, 2010, $1.135 billion of cash was restricted to 
support letters of credit. See Notes I l and 24 for more details regarding restricted cash. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

As a result of purchase accounting, canying amounts of property, plant and equipment related to unregulated businesses were adjusted to estimated fair 
values at the Merger date. Subsequent additions have been recorded at cost. Oncor's properties are reported at original cost, which is considered to be fair 
value due to thc cost-based regulated recovery and returns associated with those assets. The cost of self-constructed property additions includes materials and 
both direct and indirect labor and applicable overhead, including payroll-related costs. 

Depreciation of our property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated service lives of the properties. Depreciation 
expense for unregulated properties is calculated on a component asset-by-asset basis. As is common in the industry for regulated operations. Oncor's 
depreciation expense is calculated using composite depreciation rates that reflect blended estimates of the lives of major asset groups. Estimated depreciable 
lives are based on management's estimates of the assets economic useful lives or, in the case of Oncor, as set by PUCT orders. See Note 24. 

Capitalized Interest 

interest related to qualifying construction projects and qualifying software projects is capitalized in accordance with =counting guidance related to 
capitalization of interest cost. See Note 24. 
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Inventories 

Inventories arc reported at the lower of cost (on a weighted average basis) or market unless expected to be used in the generation of electricity. Also see 
discussion immediately below regarding environmental allowances and credits. 

Environmental Allowances and Credits 

We account for all environmental allowances and credits as identifiable intangible assets with finite lives that are subject to amonization. Thc recorded 
values of these intangible assets were originally established reflecting fair value determinations as of the date of the Merger under purchase accounting. 
Amortization expense associated with these intangible assets is recognized on a unit of production basis as the allowances or credits are consumed in 
generation operations. The environmental allowances and credits zue assessed for impairment when conditions or events occur that could affect the carrying 
value Of the assets. See Note 4 for details of impairment amounts recorded in 2008. 

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities 

The financial statements of our regulated electricity delivery operations reflect regulatory assets and liabilities under cost-based rate regulation in 
accordance with accounting standards related to the effect of certain types of regulation. Regulatory decisions can have an impact on the recovery of costs, the 
rate earned on invested capital and the timing and amount of assets to bc recovered by rates. See Note 24 for details of the regulatory assets and liabilities. 

Investments 

Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries, which are 50% or less owned and/or do not meet accounting standards criteria for consoltdation, are 
accounted for under the equity method See Note 2 for discussion of equity method investments and Note 3 for discussion of VIEs. 

Investments in a nuclear decommissioning trust fund are carried at current market value in the balance sheet. Assets related to employee benefit plans 
represent investments held to satisfy deferred compensation liabilities and are recorded at current market value. See Note 18 for discussion of these and other 
investments. 

Noncontrolling Interests 

See Note 14 for discussion of accounting for noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries. 

Changes in Accounting Standards 

As oflartuary 1. 2010, we adopted new FASB guidance that requires reconsideration of consolidation conclusions for all VIEs and other entities with 
which we are involved. See Note 3 for discussion of our evaluation of VIEs and the resulting deconsolidation of Oncor Holdings and its subsidiaries that . 
resulted in our investment in Oncor Holdings and its subsidiaries being prospectively reported as an equity method investment. There were no other material 
effects on our financial statements as a result of the adoption of this new guidance. 

As ofJanuary I, 2010, we adopted new I:ASH guidance regarding accounting for transfers of financial assets that eliminates the concept of a qualifying-
special purpose entity, changes the requirements for derecognizing financial assets and requires additional disclosures. Accordingly, the trade accounts 
receivable amounts under the accounts receivable securitization program discussed in Note 10 are now reported as pledged balances, and the related funding 
amounts are reported as short-term borrowings. Prior to January 1, 2010. the activity was accounted for as a sale of accounts receivable in accordance with 
previous accounting standards, which resulted in the funding being recorded as a reduction of accounts receivable. This new guidance does not impact the 
covenant-related ratio calculations in our debt agreements. 
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2. 	EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENTS 

Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries consisted of the following' 

Demmber 31, 

 

  

 

2011) 	 200 

 

Investment in Oncur Holdings (t00% owned) (a) 
Investment in natural gas gathering pipeline business (b) 

Total investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries 

5,544 	$ 
44 

5 544 	$ 	44 

(a) Oncor Holdings owns approximately 80% of the member-Alin interests of Oneor and was deconsolidated effective January 1, 2010 
(see Notes I and 3) 

(b) A contiolling interest in this previously consolidated subsidiary was sold in 2009, and the temaining interests were sold in June 
2010. 

Oncor Holdings 

Effective January 1, 2010, we account for our investment in Oncor Holdings under the equity method (see Note 3). Prior to this date, Oncor Hohlings 
was a consolidated subsidiary. Oncor Holdings owns approximately 800. of Oncor (an SEC registrant), which is engaged in regulated electricity transmission 
and distribution operations in Texas. Distribution revenues from TCEH represented 36°0, 38°. and 39% of total revenues for Oncor Holdings for the years 
ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Condensed statemmts of consolidated income of Oncor HoWings for the years ended December 31. 
2010, 2009 and 2008 are presented below: 

Year Ended December 31, 

2010 1009 211011 

Operating revenues $ 	2,914 $ 	2.690 5 2,580 
Operation and maintenance expenses (1,009) (962) (852) 
Write off of regulatoty assets — (25) — 
Depreciation and amortization (673) (557) (492) 
Taxes other than income taxes (384) (385) (391) 
Impairment of goodwill — — (860) 
Other incorne 36 49 45 
Other deductions (8) (14) (25) 
Interest income 38 43 45 
Interest expense and related charges (347) (346) (316) 
Income (loss) before income taxes 567 493 (266) 
Income tax expense (220) 173) (217) 
Net income (loss) 347 320 (483) 
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontiolling interests (70) 64) 160 
Net income (loss) attributable to Oncor Holdings $ 	277 $ 	256 $ 	223) 
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Assets and liabilities of OncorlIoldings as of December 31.2010 and 2009 are presented below: 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

December 31. 

2010 	 2609 

(millions of ctoll.rs) 

Cash and cash equivalents 33 $ 	 29 
Restricted cash 53 47 
Trade accounts receivable — net 254 243 
Trade accounts and other receivables from affiliates 182 188 
Income taxes receivable from EFH Corp. 72 
inventories 96 92 
Accurnulated deferred income taxes 10 10 
Prepayments 75 76 
Other current assets 5 8 

Total current assets 780 693 
Restricted cash 16 14 
Other investments 78 72 
Property, plant and equipment — net 9.676 9,174 
Goodwill 4,064 4.064 
Note receivable due from TCEH 178 217 
Regulatory assets — net 1,782 1,959 
Other noncurrent assets 264 51 

Total assets 16.838 S 	16.244.  

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities:' 

Short-term borrowings 377 $ 	616 
Long-term debt due currently 113 108 
Trade accounts payable — nonaffiliates 125 129 
IncOme taxes payable to EFH Corp. 5 
Accrued taxes other than income 133 137 
Accrued interest 108 104 
Other cuirent liabilities 109 106 

Total current liabilities 965 1,205 
Accumulated deferred income taxes 1,516 1,369 
Investment tax crcdits 32 37 
Long-term debt less amounts duc currently 5,333 4,996 
Other noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits 1 996 1.879 

Total liabilities 9.843,  $ 	9\486,  
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Oncor Debt Issuances and Exchanges 

In September 2010, Oncor issued S475 million aggregate principal amount of 5.250% senior secured notes maturing in September 2040. Oncor used the 
net proceeds of approximately $465 million from the sale of thc notes to repay borrowings under its revolving credit facility, including loans under the 
revolving crcdit facility made by certain of thc initial purchasers of the notes or their affiliates, and for general corporate purposes. The notes are secured by a 
first prioriri lien on Oncor's asscts equally and ratably with all of Oncor's other secured indebtedness. 

In October 2010, Oncor issued approximately $324.4 'pillion aggregate principal amount of 5.000% senior secured notes due 2017 arid approximately 
S126.3 million aggregate principal amount of 5.750% senior secured notes due 2020 in exchange for an equivalent principal amount of its outstanding 6.375°0 
senior secured notes due 2012 and 5.950% senior sccurcd notes due 2013, respectively. Oncor did not receive any cash proceeds from the exchange. 
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3. 	CONSOLIDATION OF VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES 

A variable interest entity (VIE) is an entity with which we have a relationship or arrangement that indicates some level of control Over the entity or 
results in economic risks to us. We adopted amended accounting standards on January 1, 2010 that require consolidation of a VIE if we have (a) the power to 
direct the significant activities of the VIE and (In the right or obligation to absorb profit and loss from the VIE (primary beneficiary). The previous standards 
did not require power to direct significant activities of the VIE in order to consolidate. As discussed below, our balance sheet includes assets and liabilities of 
VIEs that meet the consolidation standards and also reflects the deconsolidation of Oncor Holdings. which holds an approximate 80% interest in Oncor. 

Our VIEs consist of equity investees. In determining the appropriateness of consolidation of i VIE, we evahiate its purpose, governance structure. 
decision making processes and risks that are passed on to its interest holders. We also examine the nature of any related party relationships among the interest 
holders of the VIE and the nature of any special rights granted to the interest holders of the VIE. 

Consolidated VIEs 

No additional VIEs were consolidated as a resUlt of the new accounting standards. See discussion in Note 10 regarding thc VIE related to our accounts 
receivable securitization program that continues to he consolidated under the amended accounting standards. 

We also continue to consolidate Comanche Peak Nuclear Power Company LLC (CPNPC). which was fonned by subsidiaries of TCEH and Mitsubishi 
Heavy Industries Ltd. (MHI) for the purpose of developing two new nuclear generation units at our existing Comanche Peak nuclear-fueled generation facility 
using MHEs US-Advanced Pressurized Water Reactor technology and to obtain a combined operating license from the NRC. CPNPC us currently financed 
through capital contributions from the subsidiaries of TCEH and MHI that hold 88°. and 12°0 of CPNPC's equity interests. respectively (sec Note 14). 

The carrying amounts and classifications of the assets and liabilities related to our consolidated VIEs as of December 31, 2010 are as follows: 

AIK13: 
Cash and cash equivalents 9 Short-term borrowings (a) $ 	96 
Accounts receivable (a) 612 Trade aecounts payable 	' 3 
Property, plant and equipment 112 	• Other current liabilities 1 
Other assets. including $2 of current assets 8 

Total assets 741 Total liabilities $ 	100 

(a) 	As a result of the January 1, 2010 adoption of new accounting guidance related to transfers of financial assets, the balance sheet as of December 31. 
2010 reflects $612 million of pledged accounts receivable and $96 million of short-term borrowings (see Note 10). 

The assets of our consolidated VIEs can only be used to settle the obligations of the VIE, and the creditors of our consolidated VIEs do not have 
recourse to our general credit. 

129 

0001275 



4bILItti 

Non-Consolidated IlEs 

The adoption of the amended accounting standards resulted in the deconsnlidation of Oncor Holdings, which holds an approximate 80% interest in 
Oncor, arid the reporting of our investment in Oncor Holdings under the equity method on a prospective basis. 

In reaching the conclusion to deconsolidate, we conducted an extensive analysis of Oncor I loldings underlying governing documents and management 
structure. Oncor Holdings' unique governance structure was adopted in conjunction with the Merger, when the Sponsor Group. EFH Corp. and Oncor agreed 
to implement structural and operational measures to "ring-fence (the Ring-Fencing Measures) Oncor Holdings and Oncor as discussed in Notc 1. The Ring-
Fencing Measures were designed to prevent. among other things, (i) increased borrowing costs at Oncor due to the attribution to Oncor of debt from any of 
our other subsidiaries, (ii) the activities of our unregulated operations Ibllowing the Merger resulting in the deterioration of Oncor's business, financial 
condition andlor investment in infrastructure. and (iii) Oncor becoming substantively consolidated into a bankruptcy proceeding involving any member of the 
Texas Holdings Group. Thc Ring-Fencing Measures effec(ively separated the daily operational and management control of Oncor Holdings and Oncor from 
EFH Corp. and its other subsidiaries. By implementing the Ring-Fencing Measures. Oncor maintained its investment grade credit rating following the Merger, 
and we reaffirmed Oncor's independence from our unregulated businesses to the PUCT. 

We determined the most significant activities affecting the economic performance of Oncor Holdings (and Oncor) arc the operation, maintenance and 
growth of Oncor's electric transmission and distribution assets and the preservation of its investment grade credit profile. The boards of directors of Oncor 
Holdings and Oncor have ultimate responsibilit) for the management of the day-to-day operations of their respective businesses. including the approval of 
Oncor's capital expenditure and operating budgets and the timing and prosecution of Oncor's rate cases. While both boards include members appointed by 
EFH Corp.. a majority of the board members arc independent in accordance with rules established by the New York Stock Exchange. and therefore. we 
concluded for purposes of applying the amended accounting standards that EFH Corp does not hiwc the power to control the activities deemed most 
significant to Oncor Holdings' (and Oncor's) economic performance. 

In assessing EFH Corp.'s ability to exercise control over Oncor Holdings arid Oncor, we considered whether it could take actions to circumvent the 
purpose and intent of the Ring-Fencing Measures (including changing the composition of Oncor Holdings' or Oncor's board) in order to gain control over the 
day-to-day operations of either Oncor Holdings or Oncor. We also considered whether (i) EFH Corp. has the unilateral power to dissolve. liquidate or force 
into bankruptcy either Oncor Holdings or Oncor, (ii) EFH Corp. could unilaterally amend the Ring-Fencing Measures contained in the underlying governing 
documents of Oncor Holdings or Oncor. and (iii) Ell I Corp. could control Onwr's ability to pay distributions and thereby enhance its own cash flow. We 
concluded that, in each case, no such opportunity exists. 

Wc account for our investment in Oncor Holdings under the equity method, as opposed to the cost method, because we have the ability to exercise 
significant influence (as defined by US (IAAP) over its actwIties. Our maximurn exposure to loss from our variable interests in VIEs does not exceed our 
carrying value. See Note 2 for additional information about equity method investments including condensed income statement and balance sheet data for 
Oncor Holdings. 
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4. 	GOODWILL AND IDENTIFIABLE INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Goodwill 

The following table provides tht goodwill balances as of December 31,2010 and the changes in such balances for the year ended December 31, 20(0. 
With the &consolidation of Oncor (including its 54.064 billion goodwill balance) effective January I. 2010, thc amounts below relate only to our competitive 
business. None of the goodwill is being deducted for tax purposes 

Goodwill before impairment charges 18,342 
Accumulated impairment charges through 2009 (a) (8,090) 
Balance as of.lanuary I, 2010 10,252 
Additional impairment charge in 2010 (4.100) 
Balance as of December 31, 2010 (b) 6.152,  

(a) Includes S90 million in 2009 ($20 million of which was recorded in Corporate and Other results) and S8.0 billion in 2008. 
(b) Net of accumulated impairment charges totaling SI2.190 billion. 

Goodwill and Trade Name Intangible Asset Impairments 

ln the third quarter 2010, we recorded a $4.1 billion noncash goodwill impairment charge related to the Cornpetitive Electric segment. The impairment 

testing and resulting charge was driven by the sustained decline in fonvard natural gas prices and reflected the estimated effect of lower wholesale power 
prices on the enterprise value of the business as indicated by our cash flow projections and declines in market values of securities of comparable companies. 

The calculation of the goodwill impairment involved the following steps: first. we estimated the debt-free enterprise value of the business as ofJuly 31, 

2010 taking into account future estimated cash flows and current securities values of comparable companies: second. we estimated the fair values of the 
individual operating assets and liabilities of the business at that date; third, we calculated "implied" goodwill as the Mess of the estimated enterprise value 
over the estimated value of the net operating assets; and finally, we compared the implied goodwill amount to the carrying value of goodwill and recorded an 
impairment charge for the amount the carrying value of goodwill exceeded implied goodwill. 

The annual impairment testing performed as of December l, 2010 for goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives resulted in no 
additional impairment beyond the charge recorded in the third quarter 2010 discussed immediately above. The annual goodwill test determined that the 
'Competitive Electric segment carrying value exceeded its estimated fair value (enterprise value) by approximately 11%. The estimated enterprise value as of 

December I, 2010 did not change materially from the estimate at July 31, 2010. Additional testing was performed to ascertain that the estimated implied 
goodwill amount as of December l had not declined further from the arnount estimated at July 31. 

In the first quarter 2009, we completed the fair value calculations supporting an initial S8.860 billion goodwill impairment charge that was recorded in 

the fourth quarter 2008 and consisted of an estimated impairment of S8.0 billion related to the Competitive Electric segment and $860 million related to the 
Regulated Delivery segment. A S90 million increase in the charge, largely related to the Competitive Electric segment. was recorded in the first quarter 2009. 
The impairment charge primarily retlected the dislocation in the capital markets during the fourth quarter 2008 that increased interest rate spreads and the 
resulting discount rates used in estimating fair values and the effect of declines in market values of clebt and equity securities of comparable companies. The 

calculation involved the same steps as those discussed above for the 2010 impairment. The total 58.950 billion charge was the first goodwill impairment 
recorded stibsequent to the Merger date. 

Also in the fourth quarter 20(38, we recorded a trade name intangible asset impairment charge totaling $481 million (S310 million aller-tax). The 

impairment primarily arose from the increase in the discount rate used in estimating fair value as discussed above. 
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Although the annual impairment test date for goodwill and intangible assets with indefmne lives set by management at that timc was October 1, 
management determined that in consideration of the continuing deterioration of securities values during the fourth quarter 2008, an impairment testing trigger 
occurred subsequent to that test date; consequently, the impairment charges were based on estimated fair values as of December 31, 2008. 

The impairment determinations involved significant assumptions and judgments. The calculations supporting the estimates of the enterprise value of 
our businesses and the fair values of their operating assets and liabilities utilized models that take into consideration multiple inouts, including commodity 
prices, discount rates, debt yields, securities prices of comparable companies and other inputs, assumptions regarding each of which could have a significant 

effect on valuations. The fair value measurements resulting from these models are classified as non-recurring Level 3 measurements consistent with 
accounting standards related to the determination of fair value (see Note 151. Because of the volatility of these factors, we cannot predict the likelihood of any 

future impairment. 

Identifiable Intangible Assets 

Identifiable intangible assets reported in the balance sheet are comprised of the following: 

identiliabk Intangible Awl 

As or December 31. 2010 (a) As al' December 31, 2009 

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount 

Ateuniulated 
Amortiration Net 

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount 

Accumulated 

Amortuatina Net 

Retail customer relationship $ 	463 $ 	293 $ 	170 $ 	463 $ 	215 $ 	248 

Favorable purchase and sales contracts 548 257 291 700 374 326 

Capitalized in-service software 278 97 181 490 167 323 

Environmental allowances and credits 986 304 682 992 212 780 

Land easements — 188 72 116 

Mining development costs 47 17 30 32 5 27 

Total intangible assets subject to amortization $ 	222 .  $ 	968 1.354 $ 	2,865 $ 	1.045 1,820 

Trade name (not subject to amortization) 955 955 

Mineral interests (not currently subject to unionization) 91 101 

Total intangible assets $ 	2.400 $ 2.876 

(a) 	See Notes 1 and 3 for discussion of the decunsolidation of Oncor Holdings effective January I, 2010. 
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Amortization expense related to intangible assets (including income statement line item) consisted of: 

Identifiable Intangible Asset Income Statement Line Segment 

Useful lives as 
of December 31, 
2010 (weighted 

average irs 

years) 

Year Ended December 11, 

2010 2009 2008 

Retail customer relationship Depreciation and amortization Competitive Electric 7 $ 	78 $ 85 S 	51 
Operating revenues/fuel, purchased power costs 

Favorable purchase and sales contracts and delivery fees Competitive Electric 12 35 125 168 
Capitalized in-service software Depreciation and amortization All (a) 5 35 53 44 
Environmental allowances and credits Fuel, purchased power costs and delivery fees Competitive Electric 27 92 91 102 
Land easements Depreciation and amortization Regulated Delivery (a) N/A — 3 3 
Mining development costs Depreciation and amortization Competitive Electric 3 11 3 1 

Total amortization expense $ 251 $ 360 $ 369 

(a) 	See Notes l and 3 for discussion of the deconsolidation of Oncor lloldings effective January I, 2010. 

Separately identifiable and previously unrecognized intangible assets acquired arid recorded as part of purchase accounting for the Merger are described 
as follows 

Retail Customer Relation.ship Retail customer relationship intangible asset represents the estimated fair value of the non-contracted customer 
base and is being amortized using an accelerated method based on customer attrition rates and reflecting the expected pattern in which economic 
benefits are realized over their estimated useful life 

• Favorable Pwchase and Sales Contracts Favorable purchase and sales contracts intangible asset primarily represents the above market value, 
based on observable prices or estimates, of commodity contracts for which: (i) we have made the "normal" purchase or sale election allowed by 
accounting standards related to derivative instruments and hedging transactions or (ii) the contracts did not meet the definition of a derivative. 
'fhe amortization periods of these intangible assets are based on the terms of the contracts. Unfavorable purchase and sales contracts are recorded 
as other noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits (see Note 24). 

• 
• Made name — The trade name intangible asset represents the estimated fair value of the TXU Energy trade name, and was determined to be an 

indefinite-lived asset not subject to amortization. This intangible asset is evaluated for impairment at least annually in accordance with 
accounting guidance related to goodwill and other intangible assets. See above for discussion of an impairment charge recorded in 2008. 

Enviromnental Allowances and Credits This intangible asset represents the fair value, based on observable prices or estimates, of 
environmental credits, substantially all of which were expected to be used in our power generation activities. These credits arc amortized utilizing 
a units-of-production method. 
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Impairntent of Environmental Allowances and Credits Intangible Assets 

In March 2003, the EPA issued regulations called the Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) for 28 states, including Texas, where our generation facilities 
are located. CAIR requires reductions of SO2  and NO,emissions from power generation facilities in these states. The SO2  reductions were beyond the 

reductions required under the Clean Air Aces existing acul rain cap-and-trade program (the Acid Rain Program). CAIR also established a new regional cap-
and-trade program for NO„ emissions reductions. 

In July 2008. the US Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit (the D.C. Circuit Court) invalidated CA1R. The D.C. Circuit Court did not overturn the 
existing cap-and-trade program for SO2  reductions under the Acid Rain Program. 

Based on the D.C. Circuit Coures ruling. we recorded a noncash impairment charge to earnings in 2008. We impaired NO, allowances in the amount of 
$401 million (before deferred income tax benefit). As a result of the D.C. Circuit Court's decision, NO, allowances would no longer bc needed. and thus there 
would not be an actively traded market for such allowances. Consequently, our NO, allowances would likely have very little value absent reversal of the D.C. 

Circuit Coures decision or promulgation of new rules by the EPA. In addition, we impaired SO2  allowances in the amount of SIOCI million (before deferred 

income tax benefit). While the D C. Circuit Court did not invalidate the Acid Rain Program, we would have more SO2allowances than we would need to 

comply with the Acid Rain Program. While there continued to be a market for S02  allowances. the D.C. Circuit Court's decision resulted in a material 

decrease in the market price of SO2  allowances. 

The impairment amounts recorded in 2008 were reported in other deductions and reflected in the results of the Competitive Electric segment. 

In December 2008, in response to an CPA petition. the D.C. Circuit Court reversed, in part, its previous ruling. Such reversal confirmed CAIR is not 
valid, but allowed it to remain in place while the EPA revises CA1R to correct the previously identified shortcomings. In July 2010. the EPA released a 
proposed rule called the Clean Air Transport Rule (CATR). The CATR, as proposed, would replace CAIR in 2012. We cannot predict the impact of a final 
rule on our business. results of operations and financial condition 

Estimated Amortization of Intangible .4ssets The estimated aggregate amortization expense of intangible assets for each of the next five fiscal years 
is as follows' 

Vow  
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 

 

Amortization 

Expense 

 

134 
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154 
132 
l 16 
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5. IMPAIRMENT OF NATURAL GAS-FUELED GENERATION FACILITIES 

In 2008, we performed an evaluafion of our natural gas-fueled generation facilities for impairment. Thi impairment test was triggered by a 
determination that it was more likely than not that certain generation units would be retired or mothballed (idled) earlier than previously expected. The natural 
gas-fueled generation units are generally operated to meet peak demands for electricity and all such facilities are tested for impairment as an asset group. As a 
result of thc evaluation, it was determined that an impairment existed, and a charge of $229 million ($147 million after-tax) was recorded to write down the 
assets to fair value of approximately $28 million, which was determined based on discounted estimated future cash flows. The impairmcnt was reported in 
other deductions in the Competitive Electric segment 

6. MERGER-RELATED STIPULATION APPROVED BY TIIE PUCT 

In 2008, the PUCT issued a final order approving a stipulation to resolve all outstanding issucs in the PUCT review related to the Merger. The terms of 
the stipulation were agreed to by Oncor and Texas Holdings as well as major interested parties, conditioned on completion of the Merger. The order has been 
appealed with respect to certain elements, none of which are expected to affect the following major provisions of the stipulation: 

Oncor provided a one-time S72 million refund to its REP customers in the September 2008 billing cycle. The refund was in the form of a credit on 
distribution fee billings. "fhe liability for the refund was recorded as part of purchase accounting. 

• Consistent with a rate settlement with certain cities in 2006, Oncor filed a system-wide rate case in lune 2008 based on a test-year ended 
December 31, 2007. In August 2009, the PUCT issued a final order on this rate case. See Note 24. 

. 	Oncor agreed not to request recovery of approximately $56 million of regulatory assets related to self-insurance reserve costs and 2002 restructuring 
expenses. These regulatory assets were eliminated as part of purchase accounting. 

• The cash distributions paid 6y Oncor to its members will be limited through December 31, 2012, to an amount not to exceed Oncoes net income 
(determined in accordance with US GAAP, subject to certain defined adjustments) for the period beginning October II, 2007 and ending 
December 31, 2012, and are further limited by an agreement that Oncoes regulatory capital strticture, as determined by the PUCT. will be at or 
below the assumed debt-to-equity ratio established periodically by the PUCT for ratemaking purposes, which is currently set at 601/4  debt to 40°.o 
equity (see Note 13). 

• Oncor committed to minimum capital spending of S3.6 billion over the five-year period ending December 31, 2012, subject to certain defined 
conditions. 

Oncor committed to an additional $100 million in spending over the five-year period ending December 31, 2012 on demand-side management or 
other energy efficiency initiatives. These addifional expenditures will not be recoverable in rates, and this amount was recorded as a regulatory 
liability as part of purchase accounting and consistent with accounting standards related to the effect of certain types of regulation.. 

• If Oncoes credit rating is below investment grade with two or more rating agencies, TCEH will post a letter of credit in an amount of $170 million to 
secure TXU Energy's payment obligations to Oncor. 

• Oncor agreed not to request recovery of the $4.9 billion of goodwill resulting from purchase accounting or any future impairment of the goodwill in 
its rates. 
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7. 	ACCOUNTING FOR UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME TA.XES 

Accounting guidance related to uncertain tax positions requires that all tax positions subject to uncertamty be reviewed and assessed with recognition 
and measurement of the tax benefit based on a "more-likely-than-nor standard with respect to the ultimate outcome. regardless of whether this assessment is 

favorable or unfavorable 

We file income tax returns in US federal. state and foreign jurisdictions and are subject to examinations by the IRS and other taxing authorities. 
Examinations (Wow' income tax returns for the years ending prior to January 1. 2003 are complete, but the tax years 1997 to 2002 remain in appeals with the 
IRS. An IRS audit of tax years 2003 to 2006 is in progress and is expected to be completed in 2011. Texas franchise and margin tax returns are under 
examination or still open for examination for tax years beginning atter 2002. 

In 2008, we participated in negotiations with the IRS regarding the 2002 worthlessness loss associated with our discontinued Europe business, iuid we 
reduced the liability for uncertain tax positions in accordance with accounting guidance. The reduction in the liability of appioximately $375 million was 
largely offset by a reduction of deferred tax assets related to alternative minimum tax. 

In 2010, we again engaged in negotiations with the IRS regarding this worthlessness loss as well as other matters. Accordingly, we have adjusted the 
liability for uncertain tax positions to reflect the most likely settlement of the issues. The adjustment resulted in a net reduction of the liability for uncertain tax 
positions totaling $162 million. This reduction consisted of a $225 million reversal of accrued interest ($146 million after tax). reported as a reduction of 
income tax expense, principally related to the discontinued Europe business, partially offset by $63 million in adjustments related to several other positions 
that have been accounted for as reclassifications to net deferred tax liabilities. The conclusion of all issues contested from the 1997 through 2002 audit, 
including IRS Joint Committee review. is expected to occur before the end of 2012. Upon such conclusion, we expect to further reduce the liability for 
uncertain tax positions by approximately $700 million with an offsetting decrease in deferred tax assets that arose largely from previous payments of 
alternative minimum taxes. No cash income tax liability is expected related to the conclusion of the 1997 through 2002 audit. 

We classify interest and penalties related to unceitain tax positions as current income tax expense. Amounts recorded related to interest and penalties 
totaled a benefit of $115 million in 2010. and expenses of $42 million in 2009 and 588 million in 2008. including $29 million recorded as goodwill (all 
amounts after tax). 

Noncurrent liabilities included a total of $164 million and $361 million in accrued interest as of December 31, 2010 and 2009. respectively. Oncor 
Holdings, which had $20 million in noncurrent liabilities related to accrued interest. was &consolidated as ofJanuary 1, 2010 as discussed in Note 2. The 
federal income tax benefit on the interest accrued on uncertain tax positions is recorded as accumulated deferred income taxes. 

The following table sunitnarizes the changes to the uncertain tax positions, reported in other noncurrent liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet, 
during the years ended December 31. 2010. 2009 and 2008: 

2010 2009 2003 

Balance as of January I. excluding interest and penalties (a) $ 	1.566 $ 	1,583 $ 	1,834 
Additions based on tax positions related to prior years 312 71 124 
Reductions based on tax positions related to prior years (308) (82) (451) 
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year 72 66 33 
Settlements with taxing authorities 43 

Balance as of December 31, excluding interest and penalties $ 	1.642 $ 	1.638 $ 	1.583 

(a) 	2010 reflects the deconsolidation of ()neer Holdings, which had a balance of 572 million, as of January 1. 2010. 

Of the balance as of December 31. 2010. 51 442 billion represents tax positions for which the uncertainty relates to the timing of recognition in tax 
returns. The disallowance of such positions would not affect the effective tax rate, but could accelerate the payment of cash to the taxing authority to an earlier 

period. 
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With respect to tax positions for which the ultimate deductibility is uncertain (permanent items), should we sustain such positions on income tax retums 
previously filed, tax liabilities recorded would be reduced by S200 million, and accrued interest would be reversed resulting in a $28 million nfter-tax benifit, 
resulting in increased net income and a favorable impact on the effective tax rate. 

Other than the items discussed above, we do not expect the total amount of liabilities recorded related to uncertain tax positions will significantly 
increase or decrease within the next 12 months. 

8. 	INCOME TAXES 

The components of our income tax expense (benefit) applicable 

Current: 

to continuing operations are as follows: 

'Veer Ended December 31, 

2010 2009 2008 

US Federal S 	(256) $ 	64 S 	(46) 
State 41 51 52 

Total (215) 115 6 
Deferred: 

US Federal 590 256 (482) 
State 14 l 10 

Total 604 257 (472) 
Amortization of investment tax credits — (5) (5) 

To(al $ 	389 S 	367 $ 	- (471,) 

Reconciliation of income taxes computed at the US federal statutory rate to income tax expense: 

Veer Ended December 31. 

2010 2009 2008 
Income (loss) before income taxes $ 	q..700) s 	775.  1_(1041.6.2) 

Income taxes at the US federal statutory rate of 35% $ 	(945) $ 	271 .  S 	(3,664) 
Nondeducfible goodwill impairment 1,435 32 3.101 
Lignite depletion allowance (21) (18) (29) 
Amortization of investment tax credits, net of tax — (5) (5) 
Amortization (under regulatory accounting) of statutory rate changes — 5 2 
Medicare subsidy — retiree benefits — , (7) .(6) 
Nondeductible' interest expense l I 13 11 
Nondeductible losses (earnings) on benefit plans — (1) 9 
Texas margin tax. net  of federal benefit 34 30 39 
interest accrued for uncertain tax positions, net of tax . (115) 42 59 
Deferred tax charge for effect of health care legislation 8 — -- 
Reversal of previously disallowed interest resulting from debt exchanges (21) — - - 
Other, including audit settlements 3 5 12 

Income tax expense (benefit) $ 	389 S 	367 LS4W 

Effective tax rate (14.4)% 47.4°. 4.5°0 
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Deferred income taxes provided for temporary differences based on tax laws in effect as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 balance sheet dates are as 
follows: 

Deferred income Tax Assets 

December 31, 

2010 (a) 2009 

Total Current Noncurrent Total Current Noncurrent 

Alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards $ 	406 S 	— $ 	406 $ 	438 $ $ 	438 
Employee benefit liabilities 216 25 191 206 2/ 184 
Net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards 833 — 833 422 422 
Unfavorable purchase and sales contracts 240 — 240 249 249 
Accrued interest 157 — 157 211 211 
Other 317 2 315 351 13 338 

Total 2.169 27 2 142 1 877 35 1.842 

Deferred income Tax Liabilities 
Property, plant and equipment 4.321 — 4,321 4,141 — 4,141 
13asis difference in ()near partnership _ — — 1,369 ...... 1,369 
Commodity contracts and interest rate swaps 1,692 31 1,661 1,325 30 1,295 
identifiable intangible assets 846 846 921 — 921 
Debt fair value discounts 126 — 126 184 — 184 
Debt extinguishment gains 503 — 503 35 — 35 
Other 42 7 35 28 — 28 

Total 7,530 38 7 492 8 003 30 7 973 
Net Deferred income Tax (Asset) Liability $ 	5.361 $ 	11 $ 	5h  350 =am. $ 	6.126 L) $ 	6.131 

(a) 	See Notes 1 and 3 for discussion of the deconsolidation of Oncor Holdings effective January 1, 2010. 

As of December 31, 2010 we had $406 million of alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards (AMT) available to offset future tax payments. The 
AMT credit carryforwards have no expiration date. As of December 31, 2010, we had net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards for federal income tax purposes 
of $2.4 billion that expire between 2028 and 203 l. The NOL carryforwards can be used to offset future taxable incomc. We expect to utilize all of our NO1. 
carryforwards prior to their expiration dates. 

The component of deferred incorne tax liabilities referred to as "basis difference in Omar partnership" arose as a result of the sale of noncontrolling 
interests in Oncor (see Note 14) at which time Oncor became a partnership for US federal income tax purposes. The amount of this basis difTerence at the date 
of the transaction represented our interest (approximately 80%) in the net deferred tax liabilities related to Oncoes Mdividual operating assets and liabilities. 
The remaining net deferred tax liabilities associated with Oncor ($321 million as of December 31, 2009) that were attributable to the noncontrolling interests 
were reclassified as other noncurrent liabilities and deconsolidated with Oncor Holdings in 2010 as discussed in Notes l and 3 (see Note 24). 

The income tax effects of the components included in accumulated other comprehensive income as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 totaled a net 
deferred tax asset of $141 million and $165 million, respectively. 

See Note 7 for discussion regarding accounting for uncertain tax positions. 
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Effect of Health Care Legislation — The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act enacted in 
March 2010 reduces, effective in 2013. the amount of OPEB costs deductible for federal income tax purposes by the amount of the Medicare Part D subsidy 
we receive. Under income tax accounting rules. deferred tax assets related to accrued OPEB liabilities must he reduced immediately for the future efTect of the 
legislation. Accordingly, in the first quarter 2010, EFI1Corp:s and Oncoes deferred tax assets were reduced by $50 milhon. Of this amount, S8 million was 
recdrded as a charge to income tax expense and $42 million was recorded in receivables from unconsolidated subsidiary, reflecting a regulatory asset recorded 
by Oncor (before gross-up for liability in lieu of deferred income taxes) as the additional income taxes are expected to be recoverable in Oncoes future rates. 
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9. 	OTHER INCOME AND DEDUCTIONS 

Other income: 

Year Ended December 31. 

2010 2009 2098 

Debt extinguishment gains (Note II ) (a) $ 1,814 $ 	87 $ — 
Gain on termination of long-term power sales contract (b) (c) 116 — — 

Gain on sale of land/water rights (c)  
Gain on sale of interest in natural gas gathering pipeline business (c) 37 _ — 

Office space rental income (a) 12 — — 
Insurance/litigation settlements (c) (di 6 — 21 
Sales tax refund 5 5 — 

Mineral rights royalty income (c) I 6 4 
Reveisal of reserves recorded in purchase accounting (e) — 44 — 
Accretion of adjustment (discount) of regulatory assets resulting from purchase accounting (Note 24) (í _ 39 44 
Fee received related to interest rate swap/commodity hedge derivative agreement (Note 17) (c) — 6 — 
Other 16 17 11 

Total other incorne $ 2.051 $ 204 S 	80 

Other deductions: 
Impairment of trade name intangible asset (Note 4) (cj $ — $ 	. - $ 	481 
Impairment of emission allowances intangible assets (Note 4) (c) _ 501 
Charge for impairment of natural gas-fueled generation facilities (Note 5) (c) — — 229 
Impairment of land (c) 34 — 
Charge related to Lehman bankruptcy (g) — 26 
Write-off of regulatory assets (Note 24) (f) — 25 — 
Ongoing pension and OPEB expense related to discontinued businesses (a) 7 _ 

Professional fees incurred related to the Merger (h) 5 14 
Net charges related to cancelled development of generation facilities (c) 3 6 12 
Severance charges 3 7 _ 

Costs related to 2006 cities rate settlement (t) — 2 13 
Litigation/regulatory settlements _ 3 10 
Other 13 20 15 

Total other deductions $ 	31 $ 97 $ 1.301 

(a) 	Reported in Corporate and Other segment. except for $687 million of debt extinguishment gain reported in Competitive Electric segment. 

(b) 	In November 2010, the counterparty to a long-term power sales agreement terminated the contract, which had a remaining term of 27 years. The 
contract was a derivative and subject to mark-to-market accounting. The termination resulted in a noncash gain of $116 million, which represented the 
derivative liability as of the temiination date. 

(e) 	Reported in Competitive Electric segment 
(d) 	2008 amount represents insurance recovery for damage to mining equipment. 
(c) 	Includes $23 million for reversal of a use tax accrual. related to periods prior to the Merger, due to a state ruling in 2009 (reported in Competitive 

Electric segment) and $21 million for reversal of excess exit liabilities recorded in connection with the termination of outsourcing arrangements (see 
Note 19) (reported in Competitive Electric ($11 million) and Regulated Delivery segments ($10 million)). 

(f) Reported in Regulated Delivery segment. 
(g) Represents reserve established against amounts due (excluding termination related costs) frorn subsidiaries of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. (Lehman) 

arising from commodity hedging and trading activities. Reported in Competitive Electric segment. 
(h) Includes post-Merger consulting expenses related to optimizing business performance. Reported in Corporate and Other actsvities 
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IO. 	TRADEACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE SECURITIZATION PROGRANI 

TXU Energy participates in Eft I Corp.'s accounts receivable securitization program with financial institutions (the funding entities). Under the 
program, TXU Energs (originator) sells trade accounts'receivable to TXU Receivables Company, which is an entity created for the special purpose of 
purchasing receivables from the originator and is a consolidated, wholly-owned, bankruptcy-remote, direct subsidiary of EF1-1 Corp. TXU Receivables 
Company sells undivided interests in the purchased accounts receivable for cash to entities established tbr this purposc by the funding entities. In accordance 
with the wedded transfers and servicing accounting standard as discussed in Note I. the trade accounts receivable amounts under the program are reported as 
pledged balancei, and the related funding amounts 'are reported as short-term borrowings. Prior to the January 1. 2010 effective date of the new accounting 
standard, the activity was accounted for as a sale of accounts receivable in accordance with previous accounting standards, which resulted in the funding being 
recorded as a reduction of accounts receivable. 

In June 2010, the accounts receivable securitization prograrn was amended. The amendments. among other things, reduced the maximum funding 
amount under the program to $350 million frorn $700 million. Program funding declined from $383 million as of December 31.2009 to $96 million as of 
December 31, 2010. Under the terms of the program, available funding was reduced by $38 million of customer deposits held by the originator because 
TCEll's credit ratings were lower than Ba3/BB-. The declines in actual and maximum funding amounts reflected exclusion of receivables under contractual 
sales agreements. 

All new trade receivables under the program generated by the originator are continuously purchased by TXU Receivables Company with the proceeds 
from collections of receivables previously purchased. Ongoing changes in the amount of funding under the prograrn, through changes in the amount of 
undivided interests sold hy TXU Receivables Company, reflect seasonal variations in the level of accounts receivable, changes in collection trends and other 
factors such as changes in sales prices and volumes. TXU Receivables Company has issued a subordinated note payable to the originator for the difference 
between the face amount of the uncollected accounts receivable purchased, less a discount. and cash paid to the originator that was funded by the sale of the 
undivided interests. The subordinated note issued by TXU Receivables Company is subordinated to the undivided interests of the funding entities in the 
purchased receivables. The balance of the subordinated note payable, which is elirninated in consolidation, totaled $516 million and $463 million as of 
December 3 I, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 

.The discount from face arnount on the purchase of receivables from the originator principally funds program fees paid to the funding entities The 
program fees consist primarily ot' interest costs on the underlying financing. Consistent with the change in balance sheet presentation of the funding discussed 
above, the program fees are currently reported as interest expense and related charges but were previously reported as losses on sale of receivables reported in 
SG&A expense. Thc discount also funds a servicing fee, which is reported as SG&A expense, paid by TXU Receivables Company to EFH Corporate Services 
Company (Service Co.). a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of EFH Corp., which provides recordkeeping services and is the collection agent for the program. 

Program fee amounts were a.s follows: 

Veer Ended December 51. 

Program fees 
Program fees as a peicentage of average funding (annualized) 

2010 " 2009 	 200  

$ 	10 	$ 	12 	$ 	25 
3.8% 	2.4% 	5.2% 
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Actwities of TXU Receivables Company were as follows: 

Year Ended December 31. 

2010 2009 2008 

Cash collections on accounts receivable $ 	6,334 $ 	6,125 $ 	6,393 
Face amount of new receivables purchased (6,100) (6,287) (6,418) 
Discount from face amount of purchased receivables 12 14 29 
Program fees paid to funding entities (10) (12) (25) 
Servicing fees paid to Service Co. for recordkeeping and collection services (2) (2) (-11 
Increase (decrease) in subordinated notes payable 51 195 (23) 
Financing/operating cash flows used by (provided to) originator under the program $ 	287 $ 	33 1._(D„)  

Changcs in funding under the program have previously been reported as operating cash flows, and the amended accounting rule requires that the 
amount of funding under the program as of the January I, 2010 adoption ($383 million) be reported as a use of operating cash flows and a source of financing 
.:ash flows. All changes in funding subsequent to adoption of the arnended standard are reported as financing activities. 

The program, which expires in October 2013. may be terminated upon the occurrence of a number of specified events, including if the delinquency ratio 
(delinquent for 31 days) for the sold receivables, the default ratio (delinquent for 91 days or deemed uncollectible), the dilution ratio (reductions for discounts. 
disputcs and other allowances) or the days cuitection outstanding ratio exceed stated thresholds, and the funding entities do not waive such event of 
termination. The thresholds apply to the entire portfolio of sold receivables. In addition, the program may be terminated if TXU Receivables Company or 
Service Co. defaults in any payment with respect to debt in excess of $50,000 in the aggregate for such entities, or if TCEH, any affiliate of TCEH acting as 
collection agent other than Service Co,, any parent guarantor of the originator or thc originator shall default in any payment with respect to debt (other than 
hedging obligations) in excess of $200 million in the aggregate for such entities. As of December 31, 2010, there were no such events of termination. 

Upon termination of the program, liquidity would be reduced tis collections of sold receivables would be used by TXU Receivables Company to 
repurchase the undivided interests from the funding entities instead of purchasing new receivables. The level of cash flows would normalize in approximately 
I 6 to 30 days. 

Trade Accounts Receivable 

December 31, 

2010 fa) 	2009 

Wholesale and retail trade accounts receivable, including 56I2 in pledged retail receivables as of December 31, 2010 $ 1.063 	$ 1,726 
(Jndivided interests in retail accounts receivable sold by TXU Receivables Company — 	(383) 
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (64) 	(83) 
Trade accounts receivable — reported in balance sheet $ 	999 	$ 1.260 

(a) 	See Notes l and 3 for discussion of the &consolidation of Oncor Holdings effective January 1, 2010. 

Gross trade accounts receivable as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 included unbilled revenues of $297 million and $546 million, respectively. 
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Allowance for Uncollectible Acconiatt Receivable 

Year Ended I/mother .11, 

2010 2009 2908 
Allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable as of beginning of period 81 $ 	70 $ 	32 

increase for bad debt espense 108 113 81 
Decrease for account write-offs (125) (99) • (69) 
Charge related to Lehman bankruptcy 26 
Other 

Allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable as of end of period 64 $ 	83 S 	70 

Receivables front Unconsolidated Subsidiary 

Receivables from unconsolidated subsidiary are measured at historical cost and primarily consist of Oncor's obligation under the EFI-I Corp. pension 
and OPEB plans. EF1-1 Corp, reviews Oncor's credit scores to assess the overall colleetability of its affiliated receivables, which totaled $1.463 billion as of 
December 31, 2010. There were no credit loss allowances as of December 31. 2010. See Note 22 for additional information about related party transactions. 
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11. 	SIIORT-TF.RM BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT 

Short-Term Borrowings 

As of December 31, 2010, outstanding short-term borrowings totaled 51.221 billion, which included 51.125 billion under TCEH credit facilities at a 
weighted average interest rate of 3.8060. excluding certain customary fees, and 596 million undcr the accounts receivable securitization program discussed in 
Note 10. 

As of December 31, 2009, we had outstanding short-term borrowings of $1.569 billion at a weighted average interest rate of 2.50%, excluding certain 
custonsary fees, at the end or the period. Short-terrn borrowings under credit facilities totaled $953 million for TCEH and $616 million for Oncor. 

Credit Futilities 

Credit facilities with cash borrowing and/or letter of credit availability as of December 31, 2010 are presented below. The facilities art all senior 
secured facilities of TCEH. 

mammy 

Date 

Aa or Deeeraber 31, 2010 
Fiscally 

Limit 

Letters or 

Credit 

Ca* 

Borrowings Availability Aotholized Borrowers sod Facility 
TCE1 Revolving Csedit Foci; ity (a) October 2013 $ 	2,700 $ 	— $ 	1,125 $ 	1,440 
TCEH Letter of Credit Facility (b) October 2014 1,250 — 1.250 — 

Subtotal TCEH $ 	3 950 $ 	— $ 	2 375 $ 	1 440 
TCEH Commodity Collateral Posting Facility (c) December 2012 Unlimited $ 	— 5 	— Unlimited 

(a) Facility used for letters of credit and borrowings for general corporate purposes. Borrowings are classified as short-term borrowings. Availability 
amount includes 594 million of commitments from Lehman that are only available from the fronting banks and the swingline lender and excludes 5135 
million of requested cash draws that have not been funded by Lehman. All outstanding borrowings under this facility as of Deamber 31, 2010 bear 
interest at LIBOR plus 3.5%, and a commitment fee is payable quarterly in arrears at a rate per annum equal to 0.50% of the average daily unused 
portion of the facility. 

(b) Facility used for issuing letters of credit for general corporate purposes, including, but not limited to, providing collateral support under hedging 
arrangements and other commodity transactions that are not eligibte for funding under the TCEH Commodity Collateral Posting Facility. The 
borrowings under this facility were drawn at the inception of the facility, are classified as long-term debt, and except for $115 million related to a letter 
of credit drawn in June 2009, have been retained as restricted cash. Letters of credit totaling 5874 million issued as of December 31, 2010 are supported 
by the restricted cash, and the remaining letter of credit availability totals $261 million 

(c) Revolving facility uscd to fund cash collateral posting requirements for specified volumes of natural gas hedges totaling approximately 330 million 
MIs4Blu as of December 31, 2010, As of December 31, 2010, there Were no borrowings under this facility. See "TCEH Senior Secured Facilities" below 
for additional information. 
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Long-Term Debt 

As of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, long-term debt consisted of the following: 

TCER 

December 31. 
2010 

December 31. 
2009 

s 	39 
I I 1 

16 
50 
71 

217 
171 

S 	39 
III 

16 
50 
71 

217 
171 

Pollution Control Revenue Bonds. 
Brazos River Authority: 
5.400% Fixed Series 1994A due May I, 2029 
7.700% FLxed Series I999A due April 1, 2033 
6.750% Fixed Series 1999B due September 1, 2034, remarketing date April 1, 2013 (a) 
7.700% Fixed Series I999C due March I. 2032 
8.250% Fixed Series 2001A due October I, 2030 
5.750% Fixed Series 2001C due May I, 2036, remarketing date November 1, 2011 (a) 
8.250% Fixed Senes 2001D-1 due May 1, 2033 
0 320% Floating Series 20010-2 due May l, 2033 (b) 97 97 
0.310% Floating Taxable Series 20011 due December I, 2036 (c) 62 62 
0.320% Floating Series 2002A due May 1, 2037 (b) 45 45 
6 750% Fixed Series 2003A due April 1, 2038, remarketing date April I, 2013 (a) 44 44 
6.300% Fixed Series 2003B due July I, 2032 39 39 
6.750% Fixed Series 2003C due October 1. 2038 52 5/ 
5 400% Fixed Series 2003D due October 1, 2029, remarketing date Odober I, 2014 (a) 31 31 
5.000% Fixed Series 2006 due March I, 2041 100 100 
Sabine River Authority of Texas: 
6.450% Fixed Series 2000A due June I. 2021 51 51 
5.500% Fixed Series 2001A due May 1, 2022, remarketing date November I. 2011 (a) 91 91 
5.750% Fixed Series 2001B due May I, 2030, remarketing date November 1, 2011 (a) 107 107 
5.200% Fixed Series 2001C due May 1, 2028 70 70 
5.800% Fixed Series 2003A due July 1. 2022 12 12 
6.150% Fixed Series 200313 due August 1, 2022 45 45 
Trinity River Authority of Texas: 
6.250% Fixed Series 2000A due May I, 2028 	 - 14 14 
Unamortized fair value discount related to pollution control revenue bonds (d) (132) (147) 

Senior Secured Facilities: 
3.764% TCEll Initial Term Loan Facility maturing October 10, 2014 (e)(f)(g) 15,895 16,079 
3 764% TCEH Delayed Draw Term Loan Facility maturing October 10, 2014 (e)(f) 4.034 4,075 
3.761% TCEH Letter of Credit Facility maturing October 10, 2014 (f) 1.250 1.250 
0.250% TCEH Commodity Collateral Posting Facility maturing December 31, 2012 (h) .....: — 

Other: 
10.25% Fixed Senior Notes due November I, 2015 (i) 1.873 2.944 
10.25% Fixed Senior Notes due November I, 2015, Series B (i) 1.292 1.913 
10.50 / 11.25% Senior Toggle Notes due November 1, 2016 1,406 1,952 
15.00% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes due April 1, 2021 336 — 
15.00% Senioi Secured Second Lien Notes due April 1. 2021, Series B 1,235 — 
7.000% Fixed Senior Notes due March 15. 2013 	 , 

3 3 
7 460% Fixed Secured Facility Bonds with amortizing payments through January 2015 42 55 
Capital lease obligations 76 153 
Other 3 ,, — 
Unamortized fair value discount (d) (2) 4) 

Total 10EH $ 	28,848 $ 	29 MO 
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December 31, 

2010 

46 	$ 9.580% Fixed Notes due in semianmial installments through December 4. 2019 
8.254% Fixed Notes due in quarterly installments through December 31. 2021 46 
1 087% Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Debentures, Senes D due January 30, 2037 (f) 
8.175% Fixed Junior Subordinated Debentures, Series E due January 30, 2031 8 
Unamortized fair value discount (di (loi 

Total EFCH 91 

EFH Coro. (parent entity) 
10.875% Fixed Senior Notes due November I, 2017 (j) 359 
11.25 / 12.00% Senior Toggle Notes due November 1, 2017 (j) 571 
9.75% Fixed Senior Secured Notes due October 15, 2019 115 
10.000% Fixed Senior Secured Notes due January 15. 2020 1,061 
5.550% Fixed Senior Notes Series P due November 15, 2014 (k) 434 
6.500% Fixed Senior Notes Series Q due November 15. 2024 (k) 740 
6 550% Fixed Senior Notes Sencs R due November 15, 2034 (k) 744 
8.820% Building Financing duc semiannually through February 11, 2022 (1) (18 
Unamortized fair value premium related to Building Financing (d) 15 
Capital lease obligations 4 
Unamortized fair value discount (d) (476) 

Total EFH Corp. 3 635 

EF1H 
9.75% Fixed Senior Secured Notes due October 15. 2019 141 
10.000% Fixed Senior Secured Notes due December I, 2020 2,180 

Total EFIH 2.321 

December 31, 

2009 

51 
50 

1 

(11) 
99 

1,831 
2,797 

115 

983 
740 
744 

75 
17 

(599) 

6 703 

141 

141 

Oncor (m) (ri) 
6.375% Fixed Senior Notes due May 1. 2012 
f..950% Fixed Seniur Notes due September 1, 2013 
6.375% Fixed Senior Notes due January 15, 2015 
6.800% Fixed Senior Notes due September I. 2018 
7.000% Fixed Debentures due September 1, 2022 
7.000% Fixed Senior Notes due May 1, 2032 
7.250% Fixed Senior Notes due January 15, 2033 
7.500% Fixed Senior Notes due September I, 2038 
tinamortized discount 

Total Oncor 
Oncer Electric Delivery Transition Bond Company LLC (n) (o) 
4.030% Fixed Series 2003 Bonds duc in semiannual installments through 
4 950% Fixed Series 2003 Bonds due in semiannual installments through 
5 420% Fixed Series 2003 Bonds due in semiannual installments through 
4.810% Fixed Series 2004 Bonds due in semiannual installments through 
5.290% Fixed Series 2004 Bonds due in semiannual installments through 

Total Oncor Electric Delivery Transition Bond Company LLC 
Unamortized fair value discount related to transition bonds (d) 

Total Oncor consolidated 

Total EFH Corp. consolidated 
Less amount due currently 

Total long-tenn debt 

    

700 
650 
500 
550 
800 
500 
350 
300 
(15) 

4,335 

    

February 15, 2010 
February 15. 2013 
August 15, 2015 
November i 5. 2012 
May 15, 2016 

   

13 
130 
145 
197 
290 

 

    

775 
(6) 

5,104 

    

  

	

34,895 	41,857 
669) 	 417) 

$ 	34.226 $ 	41.440 

These series are in the multiannual interest rate mode and are subject to mandatory tender prior to maturity on the mandatory remarketing date. On such 
date. the interest rate and interest rate period will be reset for the bonds. 
Interest rates in effect as of December 31, 2010. These series are in a daily interest rate mode and are classified as long-term as they are supported by 
long-term irrevocable letters of credit. 
Interest rate in effect as of December 31, 2010. This series is in a weekly interest rate mode and is classified as long-term as it is supported by long-term 
Irtevocabk letters of ciedit. 
Amount represents unamortized fair value adjustments recorded under purchase accounting 
Interest rate swapped to fixed on SI 5.80 billion principal amount. 
Interest rates in effect as of December 31, 2010. 

146 

0001292 



'table of Cofv,,nrs 

(g) 2010 amount excludes S20 million that is held by EFH Corp. and eliminated in consolidation. 
(h) Interest ratc in effect as of December 31, 2010. excluding a quarterly maintenance fee of SII Million. See "Credit Facilities" above for more 

information 
(i) 2010 amounts exclude $i 73 million and $150 million of the TCE1 I Senior Notes and TCEI I Senior Notes, Series B, respectively. that are held either by 

EFI I Corp. or EFIH and eliminated in consolidation. 
(J) 	2010 amounts exclude $1.428 billion and $2.296 billion of EFH Corp. 10.875% Notes and EFH Corp. Toggle Notes, respectively, that are held by 

EFIH and eliminated in consolidation. 
(k) 	Amounts exclude $9 million, $6 million and $3 million of the Series P, Series Q and Series R notes, respectively, that are held by EFIH and eliminated 

in consolidation. 
(1) 	This financing is secured and will be serviced with cash drawn by the beneficiary of a letter of credit. 
(m) Secured with first priority lien. 
(n) See Notes I and 3 for discussion of the deconsolidation of Oncor Holdings effective as ofianuary I, 2010. 
(o) These bonds are nonrecourse to Oncor and were issued to securitize a regulatory asset. 

Debt-Related Activity in 2010 — Repayments of long-term debt in 2010 totaling S309 million included S205 million of principal payments at 
scheduled maturity dates as well as other repayments totaling $104 million principally related to capitalized leases. See "2010 Debt Exchanges. Repurchases 
and Issuances" below for discussionsof S6.904 billion principal amount of debt acquired in debt exchanges and repurchases completed in the year ended 
December 31. 2010. 

During 2010, EFH Corp. issued, through the payment-in-kind (PIK) election, $194 million principal amount of ILS 1 I .25V0/12.00% Senior foggle Notes 
duc November 2017 (EFH CorP. Toggle Notes), and TCEH issued. through the PIK election. $205 million principal amount of its 10.50%/11.25% Senior 
Toggle Notes due November 2016 (TCEH Toggle Notes), in each case, in lieu of making cash interest payments 

2010 Debt Exchanges, Repurchases and Issuances — Debt exchanges and rePurchases completed in 2010 resulted in acquisitions of $6.904 billion 
aggregate principal amount of outstanding EFH Corp. and TCEH debt with due dates largely 2017 or earlier in exchange for $3.962 billion aggregate 
principal amount of new debt and $1.042 billion in cash. The new debt issued in exchange transactions consisted of $2.180 billion aggregate principal amount 
of EFII I 10% Notes due 2020, $561 milhon aggregate principal amount of EFH Corp 10% Notes due 2020, $336 million aggregate principal amount of 
TCEH 15% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes due 2021 and $885 million aggregate principal amount of TCEH 15% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes due 
2021 (Series B). EFH Corp. also issued $500 million principal amount of EFH Corp. 10% Notes due 2020 for cash, and TCEH issued $350 million principal 
amount of TCEH 15% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes (Series (3) due 2021 for cash. A discussion of these transactions and descriptions of the EFIH I 0°0 
Notes, EFH Corp. 10% Notes and TCEH 15% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes are presented below. 

Transactions completed in the year ended December 31, 2010 were ai follows: 

• fn November, TCEH and TCEH Finance issued $885 million aggregate principal amount of TCEH 15% Senior Sectied Second Lien Notes 
(Series B) due 2021 in exchange for S850 million aggregate principal amount of TCEH 10.25% Notes and S420 million aggregate principal 
amount of TCEH Toggle Notes. 

• In October, TCEH and TCEH Finance issued $336 million aggregate principal amount of TCEH 15% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes due 
2021 in exchange for $423 million aggregate principal amount of TCEH 10.25% Notes (plus accrued interest paid in cash) and S55 million 
aggregate principal amount of TCEH Toggle Notes (together, the TCEH Senior Notes): 

• In October, TCEH and TCEH Finance issued S350 million aggregate principal amount of TCE11 15% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes (Series 
B) due 2021, and used the $343 million of net proceeds to repurchase $240 million principal amount of TCEH 10.25% Notes (including SI4 	• 
million from EFH Corp ) and S283 million principal amount of TCEH Toggle Notes (including 583 million from EFH Corp.) and paid accrued 
interest from cash on hand. TCEH paid $53 million of the net proceeds for the -MEI{ notes held by Ulf Corp., which were retired. 
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• In a public (registered with the SEC) debt exchange transaction in August, ER} I and EF1H Finance (together, the Issuers) issued $2.180 billion 
aggregate principal amount of EFIH 10% Notes due 2020 and paid 5500 million in cash, plus accrued interest, in exchange for $2.166 billion 
aggregate principal amount of EFH Corp. Toggle Notes and $1.428 billion aggregate principal amount of EFH Corp. 10.875% Notes (together, 
the EFH Corp. Senior Notes). 

Between April and July. EF/I Corp. issued $527 million principal amount of EFH Corp. 10% Notes due 2020 in exchange for $549 rnillton 
principal amount of EFH Corp. 3.55% Series P Senior Notes (EFH Corp. 5.55% Notes), 5110 million principal amount of EFH Corp. Toggle 
Notes. $25 million principal ainount of EFH Corp. 10.875% Notes, $13 million principal amount of TCEH 10.23% Notes and $17 million 
principal amount of TCEH Toggle Kotes. 

In March, EFH Corp. issued S34 million principal amount of Hit Corp 10% Notes due 2020 in exchange for $20 million principal amount of 
EFII Corp. Toggle Notes and $27 million principal arnount of TCEH Toggle Notes. 

In January, EFH Corp. issued S500 million aggregate principal amount of EFH Corp. 10% Notes due 2020, with the proceeds intended to be used 
for general corporate purposes including debt exchanges and repurchases. 

In addition, from time to time in 2010, EFH Corp. repurchased 5124 rnillion principal amount of EFH Corp. Toggle Notes. $19 million principal 
amount of FTH Corp. 10.875% Notes. 5181 million principal amount of TCEH 10 25% Notes, $32 million principal amount of TCElš Toggle 
Notes and $20 million principal amount of initial term loans under thc TCEH Senior Secured Facilities for $252 million in cash plus accrued 
interest. 

These transactions resulted in debt extinguishment gains totaling 51.814 billion (reported as other income). 

In connection with the debt exchange transactions, EFH Corp. received the requisite consents from holders nf the EFH Corp. Senior Notes and EFH 
Corp. 5.55% Notes applicable to certain amendments to the respective indentures governing such notes. These amendments, among other things, eliminated 
substantially all of the restrictive covenants, eliminated certain events of default, modified covenants regarding mergers and consolidations and modified or 

eliminated certain other provisions in such indentures. 

The EFII Corp. notes acquired by EFIH and the majority of the TCEH notes and initial term loans under the TCFH Senior Secured Facilities acquired 
by EFII Corp. are held as investments by EF1H and EFH Corp., and are eliminated in consolidation. All other securities acquired in the above transactions 

have been cancelled. 

Debt-Related Activity In 2009 — Repayments of long-term debt in 2009 totaling 5396 million represented principal payments at scheduled maturity 
dates as well as other repayments totaling 550 million, principally related to capitalized leases. Payments at scheduled amortization or maturity dates included 
$165 million repaid under the TCEH Initial Term Loan Facility, $104 million of Oncor transition bond principal payments, $65 million repaid under a 1-CEH 
promissory note, 59 million repaid under the TCEH Delayed Draw Term Loan Facility and $3 million of EFH Corp. senior notes. 

Increases in long-term debt during 2009 totaling $522 million consisted of increased borrowings under the TCEH Delayed Draw Term Loan Facility, 
which was fully drawn as ofJuly 2009, to fund expenditures related to construction of new generation facilities and environmental upgrades of existing 
lignite/coal-ftieled generation facilities. In addition, long-term debt increased as a result of EFH Corp. increasing, through the PIK election, the principal 
amount of its EFH Corp. Toggle Notes by 5309 million, and TCEII increasing. through the PIK election, the principal amount of its TCEli Toggle Notes by 

5202 million, in each case, in lieu of making cash interest payments. 
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2009 Debt Erchanges — In November 2009, Ent Corp., EFIH and ERN Finance completed debt exchange transactions. which resulted in the issuance 
of $113 million principal amount of 9.75% Senior Secured Notes due 2019 by EFH Corp. (the EFH Corp. 9.75% Notes) and $141 million principal amount of 
9.75% Senior Secured Notes due 2019 by EFIH and EFIll Finance (the EFIH 9.75% Notes) (both discussed further below) in exchange fur S169 million 
principal amount of EFH Corp. 10.875% Notes. $12 million principal amount of EFH Corp. Toggle Notes. $143 million principal amount of TCEH 10.25% 
Notes, 517 million of EFH Corp. 5.55% Series P Senior Notes, $10 million of EFH Corp. 6.50% Series Q Senior Notes and $6 million principal amount of 
EFH Corp. 6.55% Series R Senior Notes. 

Maturities — Long-term debt maturities as of December 31. 2010 are as follow's: 

Year 
2011 651 
2012 237 
2013 296 
2014 21,046 
2015 3,187 
Thereafter (a) 10,003 
Unamortized fair value premium 15 
Unamortized fair value discount (b) (620) 
Capital lease obligations 80 

Total 34,895 

(a) 	Long-term debt maturities for EFH Corp. (parent entity) total $7.766 billion, including $3.742 billion held by EFIH that is not 
included above. 

(h) 	Unamortized fair value discount for EFH Corp. (parent entity) totals $(476) million. 

TCEll Senior Secured Facilities The applicable rate on borrowings under the TCE/1 Initial Term Loan Facility. the TCEH Delayed Draw Term 
I.oan Fncility, the TCFH Revolving Credit Facility and the TCEH Letter of Credit Facility as of December 31, 2010 is provided in the long-term debt table 
and in the discussion of short-term borrowings above and reflects LIBOR-based borrowings. These borrowings totaled $22.304 billion as of December 31, 
2010, excluding $20 million held by EFH Corp. as a result of debt repurchases. 

In August 2009, the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities were amended to'reduce the existing first lien capacity under the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities 
by $1.25 billion in exchange for the ability for TCEH to issue up to an additional 54 billion of secured notes or loans ranking junior to TCEH's first lien 
obligations, provided that: 

such noses or loans mature later than the latest maturity date of any of the initial term loans under the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities, and 

• any net cash proceeds from any such issuances are used (i) in exchange tbr, or to refinance, repay, retire. refund or replace indebtedness of TCEH 
or (ii) to acquire. directly or indirectly, all or substantially all of the property and assets or business of another person or to finance the purchase 
price, cost of design. acquisition. construction, repair, restoration, replacement, expansion, installation or improvement of certain fixed or capital 
assets. 
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In addition. the amended facilities permit TCEH to, among other things: 

• issue new securcd notes or loans, which may include. in each case. debt secured on a pari pawl basis with the obligations under the TCEH Senior 
Secured Facilities, so long as. in each case. among other things, the net cash proceeds from any such issuance are used to prepay certain loans 
under the TCEI-1 Senior Secured Facilities at par; 

• upon making an offer to all lenders within a particular series, agree with lenders of that series to extend the maturity of their term loans or ....xtend 
or refinance their revolving credit commitments under the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities, and pay increased interest rates or otherwise modify 
the terms of their loans or revolving commitments in connection with such an extension, and 

• exclude from the financial maintenance covenant under the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities any new debt issued that ranks junior to TCEI l's first 
lien obligations under the TCE11 Senior Secured Facilities. 

Under the terms of the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities, the commitments of the lenders to make loans to TCEH are several and not joint. Accordingly, 
if any lender fails to make loans to TCEH. TCEH's available liquidity could bc reduced by an amcunt up to the aggregate amount of such lender's 
commitments under the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities. 

The TCEI-1 Senior Secured Facilities arc unconditionally guaranteed jointly and severally on a senior secured basis by EFCH. and subject to certain 
exceptions, each existing and future direct or indirect wholly-owned US restricted subsidiary of TCEH. The TCEH Senior Secured Facilities, including the 
guarantees thereof, certain commodity hedging transactions and the interest rate swaps described under "TCEH Interest Rate Swap Transactions" below are 
secured by (a) substantially all of the current and futare assets of TCEH and ICEH's subsidiaries who are guarantors of such facilities and (b) pledges of the 
capital stock of TCEH and certain currcnt and future direct or indirect subsidiaries of TCEH. 

The TCEH Initial Term 1.oan Facility is required to be repaid in equal quarterly installments in an aggregate annual amount equal to 1% of the original 
principal amount of such facility (541 million quarterly), with the balance payable in October 2014. The TCEH Delayed Draw Term Loan Facility is required 
to be repaid in equal quarterly installments in an aggregate annual amount equal to 1% of the actual principal outstanding under such facility as of December 
2009 (SIO million quarterly), with the balance payable in October 2014. Amounts borrowed under the TCEH Revolving Facility may be reborrowed from 
tirne to time until October 2013. The TCEH Letter of Credi: Facility arid TCEH Commodity Collateral Posting Facility will mature m October 2014 and 
December 2012, respectively. 

The TCEH Senior Secured Facilities contain customary neaative covenants that, arnong other things, restrict, subject to certain exceptions. TCEH and 
its restricted subsidiaries ability to: 

• incur additional debt; 

• create additional liens; 

• enter into mergers and consolidations; 

• sell or otherwise dispose of assets*. 

• make dividends, redemptions or other distributions in respect of capital stock; 

• make acquisitions, investments, loans and advances, and 

• pay or modify certain subordinated and other material deht 

In addition, the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities contain a maintenance covenant that prohibits TCEH and its restricted subsidiaries from exceeding a 
maximum consolidated secured leverage ratio and to observe certain customary repotting requirements and other affirmative covenants. 

The TCEH Senior Secured Facilities coniain certain customary events of default for senior leveraged acquisition financings. the occurrence of which 
would allow the lendeis to accelerate all outstanding loans and terminate their commitments. 
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TCEH 15% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes — The TCEH 15% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes and the TCEH 15% Senior Secured Second 
Lien Notes (Series B) (collective)y, the TCEH Senior Secured Second Lien Notes) mature in April 2021, with interest payable in cash quarterly in arrears on 
January I, April I, July I and October I. beginning January 1. 2011, at a fixed rate of 15% per annum. The notes are unconditionally guaranteed on a joint 
and several basis by EFCH and, subject to certain exceptions. each subsidiary of TCEH (collectively, the Guarantors). The notes are secured, on a second-
priority basis, by security interests in all of the assets of TCEH. and the guarantees other than the guarantee of EFCH) are secured on a second-priority basis 
by all of the assets and equity interests of all of the Civarantors other than EFCH (collectively, the Subsidiary Guarantors), in each case, to the extent such 
assets and security interests secure obligations under the TCEH Senior Secured Credit Facilities on a first-priority basis (the TCEH Collateral), subject to 
certain exceptions (including the elimination of the pledge of equity interests of any subsidiary Guarantor to t)le extent that separate financial statements 
would be required to be filed with the SEC for such subsidiary Guarantor under Rule 3-16 of Regulation S-X) and permitted liens. The guarantee from EFCII 
is not secured. 

As of December 31, 2010, there were SI.571 billion total principal amount of TCEH Senior Secured Second Lien Notes. The TCEH Senior Secu'red 
Second Lien Notes are a senior obligation and rank equally in right of payment with all senior indebtedness of TCEH, are senior in iight of payment to all 
existing or future unsecured debt of TCEII to the extent of the value of the TCEH Collateral (after taking into account any first-priority liens on the TCEH 
Collateral) and are senior in right of payment to any future subordinated debt of TCE11. These notes are effectively subordinated to ICEH's obligations under 
the TCEH Senior Secured Credit Facilities and TCEH's commodity and interest rate hedges that arc secured by a first-priority lien on the TCEH Collateral 
and any future obligations subject to first-priority liens on the TCEII Collateral, to the extent of the value of the TCEH Collateral, and to all secured.  
ohligations of TCEH that are secured by assets other than the TCEH Collateral, to the extent of the value of the assets securing such obligations. 

The guarantees of the TCEH Senior Secured Second Lien Notes by the Subsidiary Guarantors are effectively senior to any unsecured debt attic 
Subsidiary Guarantors to the extent of the value of the TCEli Collateral (after taking into account any first-priority liens on the TCEH Collateral). These 
guarantees are effectively subordinated to all debt of the Subsidiary Guarantors secured by the TCE/1 Collateral on a first-priority basis or that is secured by 
assets that arc not part of the TCEH Collateral, to the extent of the value of the collateral securing that debt. EFCH's guarantee ranks equally with its 
unsecured debt (including debt it guarantees on an unsecured basis) and is effectively subordiriated to any of its secured debt to the extent of the value of the 
collateral securing that debt. 

The indenture for the TCEH Senior Secured Second Lien Notes contains a number of covenants thaL among other things, restrict, subject to certain 
exceptions. TCEH's tut(' its restricted subsidiaries ability to 

• make restricted payments, including certain investments; 

• incur debt'and issue preferred stock; 

• create liens; 

• enter into mergers or consolidations: 

• sell or otherwise dispose of certain assets, and 

• engage in certain transactions with affiliates. 

The indenture also contains customary events of default, including, among others, failure to•pay principal or interest on the notes when due. In general, 
all of the series of Tali Senior Secured Second Lien Notes vote together as a single class. As a result, if certain events of default oecur under the indenture, 
the trustee or the holders of at least 30°0 of aggregate principal amount of all outstanding TCEH Senior Secured Second Lien Notes may declare the principal 
amount on all such notes to be due and payable immediately. 
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Until October I, 2013, TCEH may redeem, with the net cash proceeds of certain equity offerings, up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of each 
series of the TCEH Senior Secured Second Lien Notes fmm time to time at a redemption price of 115.00% of the aggregate principal amount of the notes 
being redeemed, plus accrued interest. TCEH may redeem each senes of the notes at any nine prior to October 1, 2015 at a price equal to 100% of their 
principal amount. plus accrued interest and the applicable premium as defined in the indenture. TCEH may also redeem each series of the notes, in whole or in 
part at any time on or after October 1. 2015, at specified redemption priccs, plus accrued interest. Upon the occurrence of a change of control (as described in 
the indenture), TCF.H must offer to repurchase each series of the notes at 101% of their principal amount, plus accrued interest 

The TCEH Senior Secured Second Lien Notes were issued in private placements and have not been registered under the Securities Act TCEH has 
agreed to use its commercially reasonable efforts to reaister with the SEC notes having substantially identical terms as the TCEI I Senior Secured Second Lien 
Notes (except for provisions relating to transfer restrictions and payment of additional interest) as part of an offer to exchange freely tradable exchange notes 
for the TCE11 Senior Secured Second Lien Notes unless such notes tneet certain transferability conditions (as described in the related registration rights 
agreement). If the registration statement has not been filed and declared effective within 365 days after the original issue date (a Registration Default). the 
annual interest rate on the notes will increase by 25 basis points for the first 90-day period during which a Registration Default continues. and thereafter the 
annual interest rate on the notes will increase by 50 basis points for the remaining period during which the Registration Default continues. If the Registration 
Default is cured, the interest rate on the notes will revert to the original level. 

TCEH Senior Notes The TCEH 10.25% Notes mature in November 2015, with interest payable in cash semi-annually in arrears on May 1 and 
November 1 at a fixed rate of 10.25% per annum. The TCEH Toggle Notes mature in November 2016, with interest payable semi-annually in arrears on 
May 1 and November 1 at a fixed rate of 10.50% per annum for cash interest and at a fixed rate of 11.25% per annum for PIK Interest. For any interest period 
until November 2012, TCEH may elect to pay interest on the notes (i) entirely in cash; (ii) by increasing the principal amount of the notes or by issuing new 

TCEH Toggle Notes (PIK Interest); or (iii) 50% in cash and 5 0 % in PIK Interest. Once TCEH makes a PIK election, the election is valid for each succeeding 

interest payment period until TCE11 revokes the election. 

The TCEH 10.25% and Toggle Notes (collectively, the TCEH Senior Notes) had a total principal amount as of December 31, 2010 of S4.570 billion 
(excluding S323 million principal amount held by EFH Corp. and EF1H) and are fully and unconditionally guaranteed On a joint and several unsectned basis 

by TCEld's direct parent, EFCH (which owns 100% of TCEH and its subsidiary guarantors), and by each subsidiary that guarantixs the TCEH Senior Secured 

Facilities. 

TCE11 inay redeern the TCEII 10.25% Notes and TCEH Toggle Notes at any time prior to November I, 2011 and 2012, respectively, at a price equal to 
100% of their principal amount. plus accrued and unpaid interest and Me applicable premium as defined in the indenture. TCEH may redeem the TCEH 
10.25% Notes and TCEH Toggle Notes, in whole or in part. at any time on or after November I, 2011 and 2012. respectively. at specified redemption prices, 

plus accrued and unpaid interest, tf any Upon the occurrence of a change of control of EFCH or TCEH. TCEII must offer to repurchase the TCEI1 Senior 
Notes at 101% of their principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any. 

The indenture for the TCEH Senior Notes contains a number of covenants that, among other things. restnct, subject to certain exceptions, TCEHs and 

its restricted subsidiariee ability lo: 

make restricted payments; 

incur debt and issue preferred stock: 

create liens; 

enter into mergers or consolidations: 

sell or otherwise dispose of certain assets, and 

engage in certain transactions with affiliates. 

The indenture also contains customary events of default, including, among others, failure to pay principal or interest on the notes when due. lf certain 
events of default occur and are continuina under the indenture. the trustee or the holders of at least 30% in principal amount of the notes may declare the 
principal amount on the notes to be due and payable immediately. 
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EFII Corp. 10% Notes— The EFEI Corp 10% Notes mature in January 2020, with interest payable in cash semi-annually in arrears on January 15 and 
July 15 at a fixed rate of 10% per annum. The notes are fully and uncondittonally guaranteed on a joint and several basis by EFCH and EFIH. The guarantee 
from EFIII is secured by EFIH's pledge of 100% of the membership interests and other investments it owns in Oncur Holdings (such membership interests 
and o(her investments, the EFIH Collateral). The guarantee from EFCH is not secured. EF1H's guarantee of the EFH Corp. 10% Notes is secured by the EFIH 
Collateral on an equal and ratable basis with the EFIH Notes and EFIH's guarantee of thc EFF1 Corp. 9.75% Notes. 

# — 

As of December 31, 2010, there were 51.061 billion total principal amount of EFH Corp 10% Notes. The EFH Corp, 10% Notes are a senior obligation 
and rank equally in right of payment with all senior indebtedness of EFH Corp. and are senior in right of Payment to any future subordinated indebtedness of 
EFI 1 Corp. These notes are effectively subordinated tO any mdebtedness of EFH Corp. secured by assets of EFH Corp. to the extent of the value of the assets 
securing such indebtedness and structurally subordinated to all indebtedness and other liabilities of EFH Corp.'s non-guarantor subsidiaries. 

The guarantees of Me EFH Corp. 10% Notes are the general senior obligations of each guaramor and rank equally in right of payment with all existing 
and future senior indebtedness of each guarantor. The guarantee from EFIH is effectively senior to all unsecured indebtedness of ERN to the extent of the 
value of the EFIH Collateral. The guarantees are effectively subordinated to all secured indebtedness of each guarantor secured by assets other than the EFIH 
Collateral to the extent of the value of the assets securing such indebtedness and are structurally subordinated to any existing and future indebtedness and 
liabilities of EFH Corp.'s subsidiaries that are not guarantors. 

The indenture for the EFH Corp. lO% Notes contains a number of covenants that, among other things. restrict; subject to certain exceptions, EFH 
Corp.'s and its restricted subsidiariee ability to: 

• make restricted payments; 

• incur debt and issue preferred stock; 

• create liens. 

• enter into mergers or consolidations; 

• sell or otherwise dispose of certain assets, and 

• engage in certain transactions with affiliates. 

These notes arid indenture also contain customary events of default, including, among others, failure to pay principal or interest on the notes when due. 
If certain events of default occur and are continuing under these notes and the indenture, the trustee or the holders of at least 30% in principal amount 
outstanding of the notes may declare the principal amount of the notes to be clue and payable immediately. 

Until January 15, 2013, EFH Corp. may redeem, with the net cash proceeds of certain equiry offerings. up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of 
the EFH Corp, 10% Notes from time to time at a redemption price of 110.000% of the aggregate principal amount of the notes being redeemed. plus accrued 
and unpaid interest. EFH Corp. may redeem the notes at any time prior to January 15, 2015 at a price equal.to 100% of their principal amount. plus accrued 
and unpaid interest and the applicable premium as defined in the indenture. EFII Corp. may also redeem the notes, in whole or in part, at any time on or after 
January 15. 2015, at specified redemption prices, plus accrued and unpaid interest. Upon the occurrence of a change of control (as described in the indenture), 
EFH Corp. must offer to repurchase the notes at 101% of their principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest. 
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